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3 550,342 200,000 89,686 58,328 18 347 415
ElE 363,000 137,940 45,980 31,27 7 129 196
BA% 634,243 111,309 71812 49,867 3 200 319
ERE 1,037,000 469,000 145,201 57,495 2 342 439
LSl 188,209 45,815 14,184 5,240 3 18 59
REE 290,822 37,869 12,623 9,969 4 60 %
TEREE 129,078 26,760 8,285 5353 5 18 3%
EDG 158,000 110,000 49,327 30614 a7 283
BREIIZE 1,000 10,000 3,006 726 2 5
ERpIEA 921,800 368,720 113,452
ENAREERER 116,000 116,000 35,913
R 177,686 177,686 50,767 29,234 1 66 19
W& & 176,610 176,610 50,460 18,580 3% 79
BT 873,500 268,165 83,023 9,797 4 2 5
;i 568,724 68,247 21,129 9,689 2 2
RIEMERIE 500,000 500,000 263,158 168,000 34 145

iblg HE 4,130,000 1,280,300 426,767 364,024 81 3,090 1,256
ZR 883,000 500,000 217,391 185,823 80 1,389 721
I 1,116,628 225,621 90,248 85,087 132 467 287
5 665,900 300,000 107,143 71,497 23 49 616
28 632,500 140,624 70,312 57,071 28 405 249
BN 2,201,800 1,084,300 335,607 133,171 52 825 588
XM 1,086,600 667,745 206,732 80,324 34 556 723
gk 563,528 189,462 58,657 47513 3% 352 260
REFWE 485,400 200,000 61920
RELH 320,000 320,000 106,667 71,881 626 34
Zmn 612,030 252,000 78019 50,902 17 475 670
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BE 194,471 48,854 15,125 8,403 5 4 48
N 702,723 101,860 31,536 4,116 3 4 42
ge 699,710 216910 67,155 21,556 3 27 1Y)
RABIZRE 25,000 25,000 7,740
TERELEE 60,000 60,000 18,576 12,625 12 % 4
B& 488,000 83,000 25,697
RARNE 400,000 400,000 114,086
Bl 673,000 361,000 103,143 13
oyl 931,900 295,100 91,362 36,999 88 3,450
g m 899,304 371,599 115,046 31,933
RETHME 900,000 221,256 68,500 21,104
BAH 853,512 169,500 76,009 30,842 16
R 404,900 60,000 20,000 13,603
B& 401,085 49,408 27,449 17,966

2016/17 %5k

FEMRRIZERERAA




2016/17 %5k

o SRIERBIRAE

B

h

CEGER

Wog-tE=A=t-8
LV4:b-1-74 EEHE LN TEAR TER R DER 2B &R 2B &R EERE
E&m EEAF EERAF IXAF BERF
50,000 30,000 9,288 423
370,000 207,000 138,000 127,876
1,087,748 160,280 49622 34,302
145,000 60,000 18576 8945
1,007,270 161,000 85517 3825
1,194,200 800,000 330579 229773 19
402629 67,308 20838
230,000 69,000 21,362
48M200 1356376 387,58 205,357 4 1442 885
869826 43168 127,916 35815 4 1 189
1,708,700 704,300 218050 i 1 430 204
108,400 54900 16997
158,000 168,000 48916
1,874,900 963,699 275,459 103,467 2% 647 404
281,606 170,231 81,062 85,376 79 %4 96
1700000 1,700,000 653846 528261 9 2,868 1437
769,900 664,800 205823
428,700 24200 74985 45,630 14 189 9%
1,126,600 319,700 98978 57,001 ] 276 517
4616700 2515195 679,782 307,783 51 1429 1911
30,000 30,000 16,667 11,550 14 k) 143
240,000 240000 74308 28 1
48,000 48,000 13714 6 7
53,000 53,000 15,143 1 1
247 464 247 464 70,704 50522 4 58 433
265,99 265,992 75998 67,002 1 146 45
177,197 177,197 50628 25,644 54 179
52,000 52,000 16,090
1275000 1,002,200 200440 132216 44 31 1202
600,000 600,000 185,759 71,770 15 486 498
4,811,500 968,500 290845 110328 132 39 577
420,000 240,000 74308
35,000 3,000 10,000
370000 270,000 83,591 9,926 5 o 72
780,000 190,000 58,824 30,481 % 64 189
407,000 113,000 34985 7658 18 ®
270,000 100,000 40,000 27912 5 231 27
170000 78,000 32,500 25,664 24 123 264
4320000 983,400 304458 282,282 195 1671 1409
750,000 750000 174419 139 10 6 2
150,000 90,000 27,864 4,198 2 8 10
590,000 310000 9975 299 3 14 155
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918,000 70,000 21672 7,157 9 1 b
430,000 156,000 69955 47,872 5 14 %
600,000 150,000 46,440 6454 6 45
300,000 68,000 21,053
830,000 380,000 117,647
38357 100,092 30,088 1482
33000 62,500 19350 7,505 2 5 2
1,222,000 521,000 129,740
219481 210481 62,709 52,048 8 % 19
215378 215378 61,537 36,082 3 4 215
130,162 130,162 37,189 23% 7 142
72849 72849 20814 16,030 16 104
170,148 170,148 48614 16,485 1 12 125
86,051 86951 24,843 13188 12 8 177
131,380 131,380 37,537 25,721 6 119 29
136,930 136,980 3,128 17,784 7 2% 176
86,151 8,151 24615 13884 3 119
21538 21,53 6,154 4538 1 3
53844 53804 15,384 7692 10 %
183,378 183,478 5234 24,000 1 48 153
197,724 197,724 56,498 32702 k% 114
5,178 55,173 15,764 7,620 5 18 72
31879 31879 10,100 10099 7 2 9%
283,000 127,746 39550 84 9
250,000 95,000 29412
7073200 1415200 438142 116,823 % 799 469
4,041,000 588,600 182,229 105,282 5 507 30
386700 1468474 454,63 38547 61 1,406 1778
918400 506,300 156,749 84725 8 39 521
200000 200000 61920 10897 16 45 8
2,685,600 400,000 123839 53467 3 219 40
4,131,900 364930 109,885 1% 1 105 212
1,822,100 400,000 123,839 20234 4 134
7517400 3310000 1,108,333 953810 133 4,360 3088
2,488,000 745,400 230,774 24,298 2 68 154
1,996,000 260,260 83,362 16,226 2 % 117
1,719,700 91,682 294,633
1,100,000 720,000 222910 60 2 1 2
460,000 314,700 97,430 273 7 1
468326 93218 28,860 2,774 2 16
4245400 1219700 377616 9,998 1 5 3
280,000 25844 8001 1,581 5
77500 1916190 638730 518725 27 4,257 1,720
473600 230550 71378
3,382,000 660,000 204,334 11,950 6 129 40
87,357 0514 9447
245,900 118.900 36,811
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7988500 1220000 377,709 87,405 1 520 677
586,800 220,995 108,137 60295 1 28 676
1,287,000 887,000 274613 8,878 13 318 707
2,480,800 319,000 98762 8,128 26 36
3618900 535,235 165,707 18821 2 161 184
542,289 108,458 3578 16,899 ® 76 216
711,676 253428 78,461 12,002 5 I 17
264,256 83441 26,833 11,146 1 57 109
553,945 199,808 61,860 12014 2 8 ®
1,463,929 175,804 54428 11,083 6 145 110
1,653,000 593425 183,723 21,504 2 152
354,371 157,814 48859 1,063 4 5 2
610,169 135,161 41,846
2048000 1,600,000 53338 368,684 k4 6,330 733
200000 200000 89,686 52322 13 211 210
474,779 474779 146,990 77,071 11 496 750
1,100,000 480,000 165,517 115,389 % 240 732
1,790,000 750,000 232,198 110955 5 411 605
730,000 288,000 89,164 24,537 8 139 218
925,000 286,750 88,777 4,2 21 154 879
97,000 69,000 21362
916,000 343958 106,489 16,193 18 % 170
87,000 63,200 19567
160,900 70,000 21672
320,000 150,000 46,440 3635 10 ®
60,000 25000 12,500 7347 1 21 60
333700 104,500 32353 7,299 27 4
582,019 116,404 3,038
220000 150,000 46,440
35,496 3,496 10989 2 6 5
7289 40757 12618
80,000 80,000 24,768 1 3
30,000 30,000 9,288
3020000 1,267,000 553,275 874,707 16 9414 1,155
8291000 5,299,000 2,511,374 2,205,102 890 14558 6809
1602500 1,285,800 398,080 170891 3% 9,79 1810
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5792300 1,980,000 613003 219,762 ® 2319 636
9204000 3354000 1,118,000 47,235 10 6,108 2522
676,300 828,700 101,765 3378 13 2 78
664,500 398000 123,220 43314 % 110 170
620,000 169,000 5032 18248 3 & 70
654,500 398,000 72,400 2501 10 3 £
150,000 150,000 46,440 3426 17 &4 62
260000 260,000 80,495 90 2 9 16
1 6 61
1370000 1370000 391,429 309,965 187 1,182 8
275,000 275,000 78571 61,209 " 148 535
9,000 9,000 2571 853 64 4 155
480,000 320000 128,000 88,208 101 158
281930 1,500,000 464,39 311,755 54 633 1679
350,000 350,000 108,359 14,247 69 634
234,486 52900 16,378
600,000 150,000 46,440 2692 4 9 24
50,000 50,000 15,480 5078 % 3
701,100 162,500 50310 1,008 3 1 %
920,000 86,500 20279 1272 9
342065 342,065 97,733 59811 201 21
158,936 158,936 45410 5,000 5 ®
90,000 38,000 11,765
3080000 2500000 925,926 758,297 136 7,745 2,173
120,360 0270 4,032 27,258
288000 2000000 800,000 589,400 544 5512 2528
200900 89,500 27,709
207621 120,358 37,263
365,000 100,000 30,960
180,000 60,000 18576
243500 187,100 57,926
30,000 30,000 9,288
13,000 6,000 1858
558,300 449989 130315
450,000 150,000 46,440
249,000 44621 13815
7,439 7,439 7,439
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9821000 4678000 2,126,364 1,760,845 79 10356 2840
Q4TI 124603 385,770 200,708 1 1,000 1252
902,532 255,566 79122
2751000 1,000,000 309598 163,956 3 373 o7t
550,000 160,000 49536 9217 % %
220000 137,000 445 14963 2 142 3077
330445 114,000 3.204 9057 7 5 75
461,000 140,000 4334 7,004 1 109 73
220000 100,000 30,960 2,022 15 2
211,609 116,184 3970 3211 1 2% 45
70,000 70,000 21672
209,700 149,789 46374 3693 3 2
150,000 100,000 30960 2519 2 big
25,000 22,000 22,000 16933 1 8
274,000 120,000 87,152
198,000 198,000 56571 5505 7 2
300,000 120,000 37,152 815 21
296,000 108,750 33669 5,805 12 20
230,000 136,000 42105 149 4
58,420 58,420 18087 35 6 1
380,000 181,200 56,099 16,008 1 40 4
109,180 91,273 28258 2578 18
1,679,000 800000 228571 1726 21
345,555 69,111 21,307 7
370000 210000 65,015 2 1 3
99,498 37,809 11,706
380,000 144,400 44,706 5,000 12
1,141,600 446,100 133,111 56,821 16 1725 637
1,601,100 360,000 111,455 12625 48 208
4450000 4,450,000 1,436,484 946,774 a7 5,990 8307
2550000 1,466,000 453870 15,887
165,000 165,000 47,143 8973 1 21 8
391,100 126,100 39,040
135,000 62,968 19495
155,994 %972 11,187
150,000 80,000 24,768
90,000 50,000 45,455 2872 4 109 234
800000 260,000 80495 2,898 8 140 406
370,000 100,000 30960
380310 120,000 37,152 9,060 6 52 107
300,000 70,000 21672 £59% 3 2
30,000 2312 716
232,200 130,000 40248
196,000 106,300 32910
488900 144,274 44,667
108,100 58,324 18057
135,500 40,975 12,686 97 21
200000 70261 21,758 1338 14
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RE& 520,000 520,000 148,571 23,352 10 68 219
BRE 90,000 90,000 25,714 9,806 38 66 296
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iR 32,800 32,800 9,371
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Sl 390,000 390,000 111,429 81,622 31 367 387
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=MKI%E 7
BEm 120,000 120,000 34,286 2818 8 21 73
{=:0) 150,000 150,000 42,857 30,668 109 % 290
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BE& 665,000 285,019 88,241 1
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Hirg 62,000 38,760 12,000
EEMEIHHA 9,000 9,000 2,571 859 33 2 3%
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ABERIE 80,000 80,000 24,768 2,045 9 17
Rl 170,000 170,000 52,632 12,282 43 19
SE% 232,700 46,540 14,409 1
ERRMAERER 85,000 85,000 26,316
ENBERER 100,000 100,000 30,960 2,486 23 6
LkER BERYE 92,707 16 1424 2,156
L k5 4,475 16 7 365
BEIE 5 %1 574
PN 2 3
B3 1 202
£k 1 71
RN
B 3 51
BN 4 1
EERE 3340 6 23 134
ER-EM 4
&
&1
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CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Gas
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 9 to 210, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at March 31,
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HEErEE

Recognition of gas connection income

MRERRA Z TR

We identified recognition of gas connection income as a key
audit matter due to its quantitative significance to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and significant judgments involved in
the recognition of income.

RITEBAMREZEEWAZ BRRARETFE AR
HiigaBa kA2 ARARKEEATEYE 2
BN A TR S & E KA E -

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
income from gas connection, which relates to contracts for
gas pipeline construction, is recognised based on the
percentage of completion method and measured by reference
to the proportion of contract cost incurred for work performed
to date to the estimated total contract costs. The Group
recognised income of approximately HK$5,748,458,000 from
gas connection during the year ended March 31, 2017.
NGRS IS MR e A 3 ER - SR B MR E R A A
(B PR SR B BURR e 3 2 & AV AH R = AR 4R 2 A L B 75
ERER - WRRE KRG A RS QAR E 05t
2 ERBERBE_ZT—+F=A=+—RHILEEMH®
PRI B A E BB U AR 5 5,748,458,000% 7T ©

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
significant judgments are applied in determining the extent of
progress towards completion of the construction contracts,

budgeted costs to complete, and the ability to deliver contracts

within forecast timescales as at the end of the reporting period
for gas connection income.

AR E M BREMT4EE AR ERWAMNES &
ATERABEENREPARNBES O THER
BRIEEKA  UAEREERFBERAZNALIHEET -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMOEFNAHBEREGIERETERE

Our procedures in relation to recognition of gas connection
income included:

RITRERRREBRAFEZEFEE

° Understanding and testing the key controls relating to
the approval of construction contracts for gas
connection and monitoring of stage of completion;

. TS EMRREZEE R ES O R ERE L THE
EFrE R e R SR R )

° Discussing with management with respect to the
recognition basis of gas connection income;

e BHEEENWABMRERBAZERELE:

o Evaluating the extent of progress of gas pipeline
connection by examining the relevant contracts,
invoices, completion reports from external parties and
other supporting documents on a sample basis;
assessing the reasonableness of budgeted material
costs against recent purchase prices and budgeted
labour cost by reference to historical experience taking
into account the size and complexity of the gas
connection contracts on a sample basis; and verifying
the percentage of completion by reference to the
proportion of the contract costs incurred for the work
performed to date over the estimated total contract
costs; and

e BEBHMEIXNBERBINZTOEMA L &
B mIRERAMBAXHEUTERAE BEK
B TERHE JE ¢ DA AR 75 AT Al R A R TR BBk AR A B
REHZBABZEBEER2ERAT LRI EER
REREGHZHRERERBEATHALEENK
ZABMREBEEBITIEZEHNRTIEZENZ
EEERALIZEREKERZBDL &

° Considering the historical accuracy of the Group’s
percentage of completion estimates through assessing
the significance of historical changes made to the
estimates to adjust these based on actual costs incurred
or changes to estimated progress of the contract.

. BBRIBEEEBERAARE QG #ERY E TG
HEMEHABRNELEHNEEL - UER B
SEBA BTN ERT -
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B BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HRREETSEHE

Impairment of goodwill

A& R E

We identified impairment assessment of goodwill arising from
acquisition of businesses in current and prior years as a key
audit matter due to the involvement of significant judgements
and assumptions in determining the recoverable amounts of
cash generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill have been
allocated, which are derived from value in use calculations
using discounted cash flow models.
RIERANIEAFERBEFERBEBGMELZEBEZ
MENERABREFFE DAETEHEEEIEER
BreReEAEN(ReELBN D 2RISR (A
ARREBVUAEEREEELRSEHERABR R

B -

At March 31, 2017, the Group has goodwill of approximately
HK$3,354,612,000 relating to CGUs principally engaged in the
sale of piped gas and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) business
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) which are
subject to annual impairment assessment. Details are
disclosed in notes 4 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RZE—+tF=A=+—H BEEEZHEBELOAR
3,354,612,000/& 7T » UL A E 8 EA R E AR HLME (A
THEEPEDREHEETBEBMRRREAHE(LPG])
ReEABNER ZAEXHNFERERN G - FE
ERBRIGEA M BMERMET4 %22 -

Management’s assessment of goodwill impairment is highly
judgmental and is dependent on certain significant inputs
including the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs, which are based on
past practices, expectations of future changes in the market
and the stage of each operation with reference to the
development curve of the natural gas business and LPG
business in the PRC region. No impairment loss has been
recognised during the year ended March 31, 2017.
ERBUHERMENTEBEYRERHE - Mz
BARETERBASE 2EURE ERERHFEEE
BREERANTEHES  FIASEHERBEE T5
AREBTRAPREZEREGE(DRBL2ERTEMENX
RREBRIPGEBHMERMAE  THEEPB 2 RRTI5H
FHEERR BEZFT—LF=A=+T—"BERER
WEEE -

AR EF S8R (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNBTNMEERARETSHE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
goodwill included:

AT BEBRENGZEFEE:

Understanding the Group’s impairment assessment
process, including the impairment model, basis of
allocation of goodwill to CGUs and the preparation of
the cash flow projections;

TR EEERENGZBEE(BERERE A
BOREZECELABMNCEERBEERERAZR
2)

Evaluating the appropriateness of the impairment model
applied by the management;

AEEEEERMERL ZRENE:

Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s cash flow
forecasts by comparing the actual results of those CGUs
to the previously forecasted results;
FHREREEE B 2 B AR BT TEA & R
THBUFGHEREEcRenS AN ERE

Testing discount rates applied in the forecast by
comparing them to the economic and industry data;
RS TEOR P8 PR 2 BR IR R BRAG R R AT BB
ITEEBR AR Z R IR %

Engaging our internal valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of certain of the discount rates used ;

AITAREEERFEE THERFIUE:

Assessing the reasonableness of growth rates applied in
the forecast based on historical experiences and trends;

and
BEBFLRLEBAUTHEARZENFR 2R
EHEEME K

Comparing the expected changes in selling prices and
direct costs against historical performance and the
management’s business plans in respect of each CGU.
RE—EREELEM BHESEBRAEERETZ
EHEZHEBTREREBENEBTEETY
B o




Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

HttfE 8
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Wang Hei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

June 21, 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

GEEmREMEEBRARR

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expense
Items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Decrease in fair value on
available-for-sale investments
Reclassification adjustment for
the cumulative loss included in
profit or loss upon disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation

Other comprehensive expense for
the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year
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HE RN KA
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NOTES
Pt 5

10

11

For the year ended March 31

BE=A=t+—HL

2017

S
HK$’000
FHT

31,993,323
(23,616,497)

8,376,826
445,644
(214,653)

(1,229,274)

(1,675,472)
(705,116)
293,060
611,187

5,902,202
(1,207,506)

4,694,696

(21,794)

(1,240,162)

(1,261,956)

3,432,740

2016
—E-RF
HK$’000
FHET
(restated)
(E7)

29,496,869
(22,283,324)

7,213,545
486,233
(958,581)

(1,087,858)

(1,560,846)
(758,180)

185,462
197,925

3,717,700
(984,408)

2,733,292

(11,042)
5,463

(1,082,357)
(1,087,936)

1,645,356
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Other Comprehensive Income

mEBERREMAEERARRE

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

For the year ended March 31
BZ=HA=t-—-H1L

2017

—EB—tHF
NOTE HK$’000
B 5 THxT

FERANEB -

ARRER A 4,147,732

FEVE R b == 546,964
4,694,696

FHINABERE :

ZiN/NETEZ ¥ =N 3,047,451

eI R = 385,289
3,432,740

5 & & F 15

AR HK84.51 cents &l

28 55 HK84.51 cents &1L

2016
A
HK$'000
FHET
(restated)

(E5)

2,273,121
460,171

2,733,292

1,449,198
196,158

1,645,356

HK45.79 cents 71l

HK45.79 cents 1L




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investments in associates

Investments in joint ventures

Available-for-sale investments

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Deposit for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Amounts due from customers for
contract work

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Prepaid lease payments

Held-for-trading investments

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amounts due to customers for contract
work

Derivative financial instrument

Taxation

Amount due to a non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary

Bank and other borrowings —
due within one year

Asat March 31,2017 A-ZZ—+HF=A=+—H

FRBEE

BEME

WME - BB RERE
BENBERE
RBERRZKE
REERAZKE
AfhEZRE

Bk

Hi\EEE
WYX BB ERE
biiga

WEREAR a&AR
MEERRZES
EXERBEE

mEEE
&
EREFZEHIRIA

B 5 & E e R IR
i NI/}
FEY & & N A RIA
BENBERE
RIFEERE
EEMBITHER
RITEFERRAE

mEAE

B 5 & H AL AT BRIA
&< Bt & X R SRR

e & & R AIRA
ENEFZEHTRREA

fTESmMIT A

iR

JEAT B B8 X R SR I AR i
IR
RITREMER —
R—FR3H

NOTES
Pt

16
17
18
e
20
21
22
23

36

25

26
27
24
20
18
28
29
29

30
24
20
26
35
31

32

As at March 31
R=A=+—H

2017

S
HK$’000
FHT

219,221
25,782,679
1,516,323
4,165,789
5,412,087
324,304
3,354,612
3,003,196

417,854

267,264
160,617

44,623,946

1,678,888

1,738,107
6,066,993
255,015
304,156
49,991
27,402
517,676
4,724,646

15,362,874
9,649,805
100,939
797,393
645,193

936
511,844

10,873,256

22,579,366

2016
—ZE-RF
HK$’000
FAT

190,450
22,849,608
1,493,028
3,832,849
5,070,331
211,175
2,479,992
3,060,222

485,949

46,632
166,106

39,886,342

1,213,116

1,136,446
5,093,878
100,540
271,069
47,641
11,364
275,554
5,496,941

13,646,549

8,549,457

525,157
4,500
398,773
509
10,324,484

19,802,880

2016/17 81 k=
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AsatMarch 31,2017 A-ZZ—+HF=A=+—H

2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

As at March 31

R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Net current liabilities mE) B EFE (7,216,492) (6,156,331)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERAEEE 37,407,454 33,730,011
Equity W=
Share capital B& 75 33 49,685 49,104
Reserves E 20,500,548 17,803,458
Equity attributable to owners of the HEANAER A2 ER
Company 20,550,233 17,852,562
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR 3,377,375 3,111,558
Total equity B 23,927,608 20,964,120
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Bank and other borrowings — due after BITREMEE —R—F
one year 1% %\ HA 32 12,745,179 12,009,698
Deferred taxation EIET IR 36 734,667 756,193

13,479,846 12,765,891

37,407,454 33,730,011

The consolidated financial statements on pages 9 to 210 were approved FNE A —TEZHEAUBRERER =Z
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 21, 2017and —+tE& XA -+ —BEKEEZ S AT RET)

are signed on its behalf by: BOUWANTALIRRER:
ZHOU si LIU MING HUI
AR 2|85
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EE
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

At Apil1, 2015 R-Z-7%MmA-A

Proft for the year FREN

Other comprehensive expense £E £ 2 ER X
for the year

Total comprehensive (expense) 4/ 2 & (B 3%) A
income for the year 2%

Acqisition of addtional WEHB A R85 MER
interest of subsidiaries (H337)
(note 37(B))

Acquisition of subsiciaries WK B AT
(note 38(B) (Hz£38B)

Acqisition of assets Wi A (i3k9)
(note 39)

Repurchase of shares BERR

Transfer to acoumulated profits 1R B REL EHE
upon forfeiture of share 258
options

Capital contribution from WEARELRERZ
non-controling inferests of &
subsicliaries

Dividends paid by subsidiaries B 72 7 & 1 3 12 i
tonon-controling interests & Z kS

Dividends paid EftRE

Transfer a5

At March 31, 2016 RZE-1E

=A=1-8

Share
capital

i
HKS'000
Tt

50,019

©15)

49,104

Attributable to owners of the Company

Employee
share-based Investment
Share  compensation Translation  revaluation
premium reseve  reseve  resenve
EERH k&
RAEE  BEEE EXHE ZRHEG
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEr  FEr TR
(note 34)  (note 34)
(PEE34)  (HiEE3s)
8,020,635 1,368 792,119 36,355
- - (818344 (5579
- - (818344 (65579
(946,354) - - -
- (1,368) = =
7,074,281 - (26225 30,776

SEARAHEA

Properties Capital
revaluation  Special  Capital redemption
reseve  feseve  reserve  reserve
Bfkh BRIRE AXRE BOER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK$000
TEn FExr FEr  TiEn

(note)  (notei)

(PREED)  (tEi)
1601 1602 (74174 192
- - (103,591) -
- - - 915
1601 1,602 (177,765) 1,107

Statutory  Accumulated

funds

EEAE
HK$000
T
(note i)

(Ft 3Fii)

831,183

154,142

985,325

profits Total
it Ea
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEnr  FEn

8,785,417 18,396,317

2273121 2,273,121

- (823929

2273121 1,449,198

—  (103591)

015 (947,269)

1,368 =

©942,099) (942,099
(154,142 =

9,912,756 17,852,562

Non-

controling
interests Total
FEkER @it
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL  TERL
3,089,183 21,435,500
460,171 2,733,292
(264,013) (1,087,936)
196,158 1,646,356
(64,602 (158,193)
53187 53,187
7,532 7,532
— (47,269
166,662 166,662
(296,562) (296,562
- (942,09

3,111,558 20,964,120

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
MEERRER

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
SEALAREA

Investment  Properties

Share Translation revaluation revaluation
premium  reserve reserve reserve
RE ES
EftfiR
HK$1000
TER
(note 34)
(Hzz34)

Share
capital

Kt RHEE
HK$000  HK$'000
TEn TEn

ERRfE
HK$'000

TiEn
(note 34)
(GEE)

HK$'000
Tign

At April 1, 2016 RZZ-~EMA-R 49104 7,074281 (26225 30,776
Proft for the year FEER
Other comprehensive expense for & £ 2 E B
the year
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ EE 2 (F%) WA LR
income for the year
Acquisition of adaitional interest of B F & 2 IR SME
subsidiaries (note 37(A) (HtsEarA)

Acqistion of subsidiaries b0 PellGER:)

(note 38(A))

Issuance of new shares upon WERBARGRRT

acquistions of subsidiaries HR (i zF38(1)

(rote 38IA) 1108 1,268,923
Repurchase of shares BE KR (521)  (538,068)
Capital contribution from HEBARFERERZ

non-controling interests of HE

subsidiaries
Dividends paid by subsidiariesto i B 2 &R i SE g 25 2

non-controling interests 458
Dividends paid BRRE
Transfer 23
At March 31, 2017 W-E-—+EZf=+-A 49,685 7,805,136 (1,104,712) 8,982 1,601

Notes:

)

(i)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

Capital reserve represent the effect of changes in the ownership interests in
subsidiaries on the equity attributable to owners of the Company upon the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.

In accordance with statutory requirements in the People’s Republic of China,
other than Hong Kong (the “PRC”), subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage of the annual net income from
accumulated profits to the statutory funds, until the statutory funds are
accumulated up to 50% of its registered capital. Under normal
circumstances, the statutory funds are not allowed to be distributed to the
subsidiaries’ shareholders as dividends. The statutory funds shall only be
used for making good losses, capitalisation into paid-in capital and
expansion of its production and operations.

Special

EfffE BHEE B2ER
HK$'000

TiEn
(note i)

(Hrii)

(177,765)

(127,400)

(i

(i)

Capital redemption
reserve  reserve

HK$'000
TiEn
(note i)

(B i)

Non-
controlling
interests

Capital
Statutory Accumulated
reserve funds profits Total Total
EEEE
HK$1000
T
(note iii)

(W i)

RitEA
HK$'000
AR

#it
HK$000
T

FERER
HK$'000
TEn

@it
HK$'000
TR

1107 985325 9,912,756 17,852,562 3,111,558 20,964,120

4,147,732 4,147,732 546,964 4,694,696

- (1,100281)  (161,675) (1,261,956)

385,289 3,432,740

(1274000 (24175) (151,575)

- 99,634 99,634

- 1,270,031 = 1,270,031
(6527)  (538,595) - (538,59)

16377 116377
= = (311,308)  (311,308)
- (053816) (953816) - (953816)
146362 (146,362) =

1,634 1,131,687 12,959,783 20,550,233 3,377,375 23,927,608

AEEZHHNFREDEARBMBBHE A
AZBEMEEEARARBABOR - NAAEF L
MR EEEAMMETREMETARAR
HEEZZ5 -

ERFEERKRBHFERERER WEBQF
PERESZHHARAEEABRGEESZ
TE-

REPEARAMBE(HE] TBEEE)
MEERTE RPBEEMOMBRRARR
AAEMNBEFEEFRAETAD LBEEE
B BEEATESERHEZEMER0% S
WL FE—RIERT EEEETEDIRTZM
BARBRERRS - EZEESEBIER
WEE ATCLEBABARBEREERE
78 o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 3
SERERER *%

For the year ended March 31,2017 HZE =T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—H1

2017 2016
—E—+t5 —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Profit before taxation & B2 AT o A 5,902,202 3,717,700
Adjustments for: KA T
Change in fair value of investment properties KBREMEZ AN FEES (31,686) (2,792)
(Reversal of) allowance for trade receivables B Z W AR (B E) # & (1,289) 31,852
Impairment loss recognised on property, plant RYE - HERZEERZ
and equipment Rl {E &5 18 - 124,414
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- -BMELRERHEZITE 872,640 832,342
Release of prepaid lease payments REBNEENE 48,362 45,444
Amortisation of intangible assets | A E 87,157 81,179
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BEEEBEREZAFE
investments 2E) (16,038) 5,759
Gain on disposal on prepaid lease payments HEFEN AR ERE 2 WS - (4,155)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREEZ
equipment (Yezs) 5 8 (2,239) 8,112
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEHRIEREZERE
investments 5,463
Gain on deemed disposal of a joint venture BRIELERAE AR Z W (1,970)
Gain on bargain purchase HEBE RS (470)
Interest expense NN 705,116 758,180
Share of results of associates FEIL B & R R A (293,060) (185,462)
Share of results of joint ventures BREE QRIS (611,187) (197,925)
Interest income FLE WA (69,386) (69,210)
Exchange loss I &8 101,075 513,170
Operating cash flows before movements in CEES B KLEEHR
working capital ERE 6,691,667 5,661,631
Increase in inventories FEEM (302,448) (69,372)
Increase in amounts due from customers for BREFZAHNIERIE
contract work 0 (659,775) (381,689)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables & 5 K H fth & Y BR 78 (12 /n)
DA (764,057) 4,062
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from JE LB & R R ERIE DR > (B8 )
associates 34,188 (60,064)
Increase in amounts due to joint ventures A & A B FRIE N 1,742 =
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 Kk EH A ERIE OBl 2
other payables 10 (30,515) 1,579,806
Increase in amounts due to associates JE 151 Bgt & R B 3R IE 38 N 100,939 =
Increase in amounts due to customers for BNERPZAEAHITENIE
contract work 38840 146,891 120,545
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling FEAS B 8 2 ) FE 2 AR
interests of subsidiaries FKIE R D (682)
Cash from operations LETEEHELRG 5,218,632 6,854,337
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BENFRESEMGH (1,102,335) (992,260)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING RETEMEBRLSFHE

ACTIVITIES

4,116,297

5,862,077
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For the year ended March 31
BEZE=A=+-—-81Lt

2017 2016
—E—tHF NS
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
P 5 FER FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received SRS 69,386 69,210
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WHEME BERXEDN
plant and equipment e (426,218) (500,813)
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, WEEHB AT - A& A7 &
joint ventures and associates B N A E iR E (237,100) (32,935)
Placement of pledged bank deposits BHEBRITEREA (311,894) (334,953)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R B EFIRITER 55,681 119,462
Additions of property, plant and equipment R & ¥ % - B E & & (2,639,147) (2,722,334)
Additions of prepaid lease payments T8 7 & FRIE (141,089) (244,300)
Additions of available-for-sale investments — A] f H & Z ¥ & 3 /N (75,980) (2,569)
Additions of other intangible assets Hfih & A N (89,455) (63,477)
Additions of held-for-trading investments 1 {E & & & & 1% /N - (6,158)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale H & 7] fit £ €& & 7 15
investments KIB 4,334
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & %% « B & & & 5
and equipment and prepaid lease IR TEREE HRIE
payments 106,831 68,892
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash and W 27 - KR ATEIRE K&
cash equivalents acquired BE&ZEEHER 38 (366,612) (214,026)
Acquisition of assets through the acquisition 3% 48 U B [ff 8 A 7] W g & &
of subsidiaries 39 - (143,098)
Addition of investments in joint ventures REERAIZEERE M (25,568) (370,782
Repayment from non-controlling interests of ¥ & A & 3E 12 B #E 25 18 7%
subsidiaries 6,090 —
Advance to joint ventures mE &R aMELRBR (46,948) (13,747)
Repayment from associates FEHE & N RE K 11,770 18,120
Capital injection into associates mEEE N EEE (52,683) (15,028)
Dividend paid by an associate B NEENRE 5,644 14,968
Dividend paid by joint ventures ABERRENEKE 44,200 367,780
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEFBFAR S FHE

ACTIVITIES (4,112,162) (4,001,448)
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Payment on repurchase of ordinary shares

Dividends paid

New bank and other borrowings raised

Repayments of bank and other borrowings

Advance from joint ventures

Advance from non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary

Repayment to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries

Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries

Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

Dividend paid by subsidiaries to non-
controlling interests

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash

BMEED

B A8

(o] % & 38 AR 0A
ENBE
MESRTREMESR
BERTREMEE
BERABK
BB B IR M s K

[e) PR 88 2 B) I 28 S A 2508 K

U B B /B8 A ) BB S R

HEB AR FFERES L E

B8 A AR JE R
@5

METHMAZRSER

ReERASEEHEEZ
(R 4) 18 tn 7 8

FAZRERBEEEEER

ERBH o IE

FRZBEERREEERR

ReRBASEEHBEHR
a4
RITEFERES

For the year ended March 31
BE=ZA=+-—-H81Lt

2017

—2-tF
NOTE HK$°000
it TER

(963,409)

(538,595)

(953,816)

18,515,516
(17,085,407)

795,651

56,746

(509)

37 (151,575)

116,377

(311,308)

(520,329)

(516,194)

5,496,941

(256,101)

4,724,646

4,724,646

2016
—ZE—RF
HK$’000
FAT

(840,084)
(947,269)
(942,093)
23,034,776
(21,341,909)

(2,678)

(158,193)

166,662

(296,562)

(1,327,344)

533,285

5,228,497

(264,841)

5,496,941

5,496,941

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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g E For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z - Z—tH&=ZA=+—H I FE
~O
s
5 o~
GENERAL 1. —REH
The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda AANRIABRBRESMK I Z AR ER
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are NE B EEREER AR HK©HD
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock REBBEZX AR R B ([HR F)ﬂ)
Exchange”). The address of its registered office and principal place EW o ARARIZEFMPEERETEL S
of business are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate BTN AEBERIARBER ] — AR
Information” of the Group’s annual report. & o
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The ApalRh—EEREERAT - AREE
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out note 48. EME R Rz EHE PP FE48
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong SERMBERRIIABTAB TR
dollars (“HK$”) and the functional currency of the Company and its MARAIREMBAR 2 E%AA
subsidiaries is Renminbi (‘RMB”). As the Company is a listed entity ARETARRS]) BARARABRE
in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company consider that it is BETZER WARRAESIANE
appropriate to present the consolidated financial statements in TTENREUERRERE -
HKS$.
APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERAHTRELEITEBHTK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REEUN(EBHBEREE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

]

RAFEE AEEEERERLNTHE
gt g((FRESHMAE))BRMG
ZEBHMBEREEA (EFTA)

| —

EEVBRELR KREER ER
”*10?)5 FEMB  HEARZHIH

WEAERIE 125 (D
&%;ﬁ el
F285F (B AT A)
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of EAUBREED KREAEKEER
interests in joint operations E115% (B ET &) 2GR
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative ERGERFEIR BEDE
(&7 )
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods B e st R BERER#E
and HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation % 1 6ot kBB AERIH
FT#EBI 5 3857
(f'z HES)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants BEoHEAFI6 BE:LEMED
and HKAS 41 T REE G
B 415% (1B FT
)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs EAMBEHREED FABEREXEL
2012-2014 cycle ({&ETZ) —E—FF 5
T—MEEAZ

F 2B
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure initiative”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure
initiative” for the first time in the current year.

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need not provide
a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give guidance on
the bases of aggregating and disaggregating information. However,
the amendments reiterate that an entity should consider providing
additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of particular transactions,
events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering or grouping
of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively. Hence,
the grouping and ordering of certain notes has been revised to give
prominence to the areas of the Group’s activities that management
considers to be most relevant to an understanding of the Group’s
financial performance and financial position. Specifically, information
to capital risk management and financial instruments was reordered
to notes 40 and 41. Other than the above presentation changes,
the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 has not resulted in
any impact on the financial performance or financial position of the
Group in these consolidated financial statements.

2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of
share-based payment
transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets
and HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative*
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 cycle®

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment properties’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 or

January 1, 2018, as appropriate

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s available for sale
investments will have to be measured at fair value at the end of
subsequent reporting periods, with changes in the fair value being
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income of
certain criteria are met). In addition, the expected credit loss model
may result in early provision of credit losses for the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:
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e Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer o FE—S HAHBETFITUMNAY

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract o F L HBAAHFTHNELHNET

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price o F=H EBFEXHE

e Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance o ENS BRHEIEEZAHNPH

obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ’control’ of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipates that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts
of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) Al]) (&
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) ERAMBREERNEI65 A
E J (nﬁ)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under the
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing and financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether the
Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same
line item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As at March 31, 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$211,316,000 as disclosed
in note 42. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16,
and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements may
result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors of the
Company complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities including changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Specifically, the amendments require
the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after March 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted. The
application of the amendments will result in additional disclosures
on the Group’s financing activities, specifically reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from financing
activities will be provided on application.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e |level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity including reserves and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted (after
re-attribution of the relevant equity components) and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

EXRGHBE (H)

EB a0t (&)

PR AT B R(E (IR
mRWWEETT P ATIE S8 RRET AT
REMKRKES RENRFE@MEA) K
A AN - ORl FT R B B T A8 R B B NP R
MBEERKERHNFERMBLHNE
BAE -WEBEMNFGHR AEEDN
BRI EEEMAEABENKRER B
FERRRBENNKE  TAFERES
WU T AT G & A R TT T
REMKRKES RENAFEMA) K
e A ZRARRNIEEANERAREE
BB W e

BREREEES AN BERERFAA
BRRLADEHBHBARFEEN
S ATMFEAFERFER
REBGEREBIARNEEFEND
HRLBEUIFE - FEEERTERA
RSMIEHREE - HbBEANIFE A
BORERFEE -

WEBEHIBEERER  MARBEIRE
P 5 O 15 U BB 7 B 70 W iE B R (D AR
SERSEHZEER) RAFEEHN
E EEZBEB(WMB)NEBES®ER-
IMHEERKKRE T e DWEREME
T A T BB RO AU % S e R O WP B R AT
EENEREFO»BRERR(WHER
REREHREBEER) -

MEBAGONS BEEERA OB
R R R B AR E RS
RERGEHEIT AL RN RS
T MEEN T EHA(R EX) T LA
BRERENBEREME KB
M 1 B0 . 7 2 T 48 B 40 T 2 B %
BB R B B E SR ARG 13T A
e




—+F=A=+—AILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do not constitute
a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to the financial assets and financial liabilities at
the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other individual identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is amortised for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
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scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
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discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas (‘LPG”)
are recognised when the gas or goods are delivered and titles have
passed.

Deposits received by the Group prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under current liabilities.

Connection revenue from gas pipeline construction is recognised
when the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably and the
stage of completion at the end of the reporting period can be
measured reliably. Revenue from gas connection contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of contract cost incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs. When
the outcome of a gas connection contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract cost
incurred that it is probable to be recoverable.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from construction
services is described in the accounting policy for construction
contracts below.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land (classified as finance
leases) and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods and services, or for administrative purposes, (other than
construction in progress and described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Building under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or
for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included as
part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Transfer from investment property to owner-occupied
property

An item of investment property becomes an owner-occupied
property because its use has changed as evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation. When an investment
property carried at fair value is transferred to owner-property, the
property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting is measured at
its fair value of the date of change in use. Furthermore, the property
interests held under an operating lease that is transferred to
property, plant and equipment continues to be accumulated for as
if it were a finance lease.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended March 31,2017 HZE =T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

EXREHBEX (&)

M BERREGE)
RERREEIERZBRDET

ERFTLAEBRRFELELTEREREZ B
B2 BApL TR AR B SRR 8 2 BB YA
ANEZBTZHMOKAE - ERBFIEK
AR AEREBABEBEE BTN
AHERNEH AR AT HER
HaeRERENTANEE) KRB
qE-

REWE

BEMERFERDES I ERILEZ
ME - REMERERAERKRALZ
TH o ZELMERAFEEREER

WS RRE - RAMERAE (R
MEEREER)GE - NS ERE
BEMERAFESE  ARANEY
AFERHNEE2 BBNEHEEN
COPN-EE

BREMEDIREERIEREME KA
THBEREERLEZMETEELR
R4 N 2 B BUH RERR o 1 BUH T R 5%
MERKEENTARBECALEMRER
BFHEEZEENREAENEZRTE)
Tyat AR HERZIA B iR -

HREVEEBZEEAWE

REMEAENRAZEEYCFEMS
FERREMER - HERYWE - B
AFEIRZREVEERZARY
X MARZEMEEME  ZMER
SRERARENBEREZERAZAF
BFffE- M BEEVE BERR
BORBEEROFENMERSESE
EREREMD ARG -

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T

37



38

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, measured based on the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract costs, except where this would not be representative of
the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can
be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position, as a liability, as
advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customer are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under trade and other receivables.

Inventories

Inventories, including construction materials, gas appliances and
gas for sales, LPG, coke, consumables and spare parts, are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model and those that are transferred from investment
properties under the fair value model to property, plant and
equipment. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before January 1,
2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the
acquirer and reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date
of acquisition.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after January 1,
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
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Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any

changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ’profit before taxation’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
on production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into one of the three categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

EXREHBEX (&)
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Financial assets (Continued) EMEE (B
Effective interest method B FE X

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as FVTPL,
of which interest income included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group
comprise held for trading financial assets.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 41.

BEREMNEFERHEBEB TABHEKAR
PTREREEMEZANBRAZTE B
BRA R T IZ B T A 2 A H sk (fi
) B B R AR Y] R R
BAEFRERESWA(EREBERERA
ERAEREIL O 2 —NENKZKRER
REB  XPRAREMBERITE)E
HERMEFEZ X o

HRAFDBERBRAFEFABRZER
BEZBEHITAMS EMBWATIE
ABEFE -

BRFEFABDRZ 2 HEE
AEFERRFEFABZZEREER
ERFEEZEREE -

HWETIEE  SREEDDBERTE

B5E:

e IEEROHALEREMEBA:
"

o VIRHERE EERENEREE
REAEBEHFRER22mMIAA
BZ—WMOREARBRHERNZE
HIEERER %

e SRMEERVNETIAMMEETER
REEHRTA-

BAFEFABRZEREENARFE
AE MEAEMAEMELENERAE
AR BEER - REEER BB FR
TEESREEMRIRZ E MRS A
B UMNATEMEERERIEE - A
FERM A2 TEERE °




SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from associates and joint
ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank balances are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or not classified as (a) loan and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using the effective interest
method. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default and delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment

losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent financial liabilities held for
trading, which comprise derivatives that are not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates, joint ventures and a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in note 44 to the Group’s consolidation
financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee share-based compensation reserve). Market conditions
are taken into account when estimating the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. Vesting conditions other than market
conditions are not taken into account when estimating the fair value
of the shares or share options at the measurement date. At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on an
assessment of the non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee
benefits reserve.

For market conditions, the Group recognised share-based payment
expense from employees who satisfy all other vesting conditions,
inspective of whether the market conditions is satisfied.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in employee share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

EXREHBEX (&)

R ARG E R RGN A
ZR5

BRTFEEZHEBRE

MES REMRHBELURBEHALED
A B AN 45 8 Ko DA B 9 2 =45 BT 32 B AR
TEARBEHBHZATEFE - BEE
TURALEERUBNERATRZKZS
ZRAFENFBEIERANEELEA MR
F M 5E44 -

RUABRAEE RABROD AR E L
FHETZATVTEREBHRRER
FEERALEMBARAREBZBRATLA
X mEE(BEERNDBMER Te
HEE M R AAERATANRAF
BRFEERMSMR - NI D X
BREREFTEB RO R FER  BRHSER
MO BBIERGETEMAZE - RER
FHR ERAKEFEIFTEEE G
HETEERER 2 RAT A2 HE
gH ARG ZEEWA)NESR
TR EMERAXRREET R
oMU ASENRERANEETE
fEHAE B o

BB RO T - AR g R R B9 A
B F 1t 58 8 0 B B2 DA IR 49 7 R0
MRE% - TR SRR A -

ERREETER LANBRERE
MRZHAERERERDEER - BB
PR iR B RO WS R BN B D
RITRE - SRR R B B M AR
ZHREREREREN o




—+F=A=+—AILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful life to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition of gas connection contract

Construction income from gas connection contracts is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the proportion of the contract costs incurred for the work
performed to date over the estimated total contract costs.
Accordingly, any changes to the estimated total contract cost may
have material impact on the contract revenue recognised in each
accounting period over the contract term. Management of the
Group is required to exercise significant judgements in the
assessment of the extent of progress towards completion of the
construction contracts, budgeted costs to complete, and the ability
to deliver contracts within forecast timescales as at the end of the
reporting period for gas connection income.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount which is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value. When the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at March
31, 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$3,354,612,000
(2016: HK$2,479,992,000) with no impairment loss recognised.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation disclosed in note 22.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and if
the expectation differs from the original estimates, such differences
from the original estimates will impact the depreciation charges in
the year in which the estimates change.

Deferred taxation

As at March 31, 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$5,526,864,000 (2016: HK$4,932,062,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset in relation to these
unused tax losses approximately to HK$5,398,576,000 (2016:
HK$4,844,000,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In cases where there are future
profits generated to utilise the tax losses, a material deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
period in which the estimated future profits are expected.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

As described in note 3, at the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to employee share-based compensation reserve.
Therefore, the directors of the Company are required to exercise
judgment in the estimation of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. After the assessment, as at March 31,
2017, the directors of the Company consider that the options
granted during the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 will not
vest as the performance condition for exercising those share
options is not probable to be met. Accordingly, for the year ended
March 31, 2017, no share-based payment expense is recognised
(2016: nil).

REVENUE

Revenue mainly represents the net amounts received and
receivable for sales of piped gas, LPG, construction contract
revenue from gas connection contracts and revenue from value-
added services by the Group including the sales of gas appliances,
gas corrugated pipes and gas alarms, provision of comprehensive
gas insurance agency services, provision of maintenance and
renovation service for the year and is analysed as follows:
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2017 2016

—E—LF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

(restated)

(E%1)

Sales of piped gas BEERXAREE 13,778,572 12,995,664
Gas connection income R R WA 5,748,458 4,793,584
Sales of LPG AL BB E & 11,654,633 11,349,279
Value-added services 1% (5 R 7% 811,660 358,342

l! !!!!EI 29,496,869




SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(*CODM”"), being the managing director of the Group, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services rendered which
is also consistent with the basis of organisation of the Group.

The CODM reviews the results of Zhongyu Gas Holdings Limited
(“Zhongyu Gas”), an associate of the Group, being shared by the
Group under equity accounting separately and thus Zhongyu Gas
is presented as a single operating and reportable segment.

During the current year, due to the expansion of the operation of
the value-added services business, including the sales of gas
appliances, gas corrugated pipes and gas alarms, provision of
comprehensive gas insurance agency services, provision of
maintenance and renovation services, the management reclassified
the revenue from other income to value-added services segment
and the CODM reviewed it for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance. Accordingly, the
segment information reported below for the year ended March 31,
2016 has been restated to conform with the current year
presentation.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

(i) Sales of piped gas;

(i) Gas connection;

(iiy  Sales of LPG;

(iv)  Value-added services; and

(v)  Zhongyu Gas

Information regarding the above segments is presented below.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. D EEH (8)
Segment revenues and results DEBMAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REBIRSFLEEN IS D 2 WA KR
reportable and operating segment. EESWNUT
For the year ended March 31, 2017 BEZ-ZE2—-—tH=ZHA=+—8B Lt
FE

Value-
Sales of Gas  Sales of added Zhongyu Segment
piped gas connection LPG  services Gas Total
BE .34
AARHEE NEER AAEHE BERE THREE IBLE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000
TET TET TER TER TET TET

Segment revenue from external REIREFEZ
customers DEA 13,778,572 5,748,458 11,654,633 811,660 31,993,323

Segment profit 2 2% A 1,989,072 6,128,647

Change in fair value of investment ~ REWEAFE

properties e 31,686
Interest and other gains FlE RE Az 73,334
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries it B A 735 & 18 %% (77,454)
Litigation claim FARR (87,376)
Unallocated corporate expenses AAEARIAY (205,300

Finance costs BHEER (705,116)

Exchange loss on translation of BENEEKIFE
foreign currency monetary items RNEERZ
into functional currency [E 5 B8 (69,649)

Share of results of unlisted JEMG3E b= AR
associates ZEE 202,243

Share of results of joint ventures BEEERARZER 611,187

Profit before taxation B %5 A v A 5,902,202




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016 (restated)

Segment revenue from external
customers

Segment profit

Change in fair value of investment
properties

Interest and other gains

Impairment loss recognised on
property, plant and equipment

Litigation claim

Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Gain on deemed disposal of a
joint venture

Exchange loss on translation of
foreign currency monetary items
into functional currency

Share of results of unlisted
associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation

2EER (B
2R A K F & (&)

BE_Z-X"E=ZA=1t—-HL
FE(ES)

Value-
Sales of Gas Sales of added  Zhongyu  Segment
piped gas  connection LPG services Gas Total
EiE i tle
AARHEE MAEE DAREE HERE HHRRR 2H8E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET FTAET FTAET AT TET
REIARF 2
S EBRA 12,995,664 4,793,584 11,349,279 358,342 — 29,496,869
AE 1,951,856 2,527,088 508989 144,960 41,142 5,174,035
REMELTE
#E) 2,792
FERE s 77,639
mE - BEREE
ERAREER (124,414)
FRER (287,310)
AAERRAX (269,973)
HER (758,180)
HEAHNE ZIRE
ZE#B (5,469)
RAELEEEAT
P& 1,970
BENEEKIEE
BURERZ
ELER (435,641)
M3 EmitE A
ZEE 144,320
EEEBRAIZER 197,925
B 5t Al A 3,717,700

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Al of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers and no inter-segment sales are noted for current and
prior years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Except for
segment profit of Zhongyu Gas, segment profit for remaining
reportable segments represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of bank interest income and other gains, central
administration cost, change in fair value of investment properties,
impairment loss recognised on property, plant and equipment,
litigation claim, loss on liquidation of subsidiaries, loss on disposal
of available-for-sale investments, gain on deemed disposal of a joint
venture, share of results of unlisted associates, share of results of
joint ventures, exchange loss on translation of foreign currency
monetary items into functional currency and finance costs. The
segment profit of Zhongyu Gas represents share of results of
Zhongyu Gas. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

6.

2EESR (H)
/xMBLI&)\&%m (lnﬂ)

NE2RZ2ED BMBABKEIRE
P AEERBEFEGEDNHEEE
A% o
aL%ﬁm S IRER R M RES AT A 2 A
5E +ﬁﬁﬁﬁ°%¢%Wﬁ2“*
imﬁWh'%T' oy AR o 2R A 3 B
“%%ﬁﬂmﬂﬂ i I & 5+ R SR 1T A
BUA K E AWz 3 B R IT AR
A -BREMELFEEY WX BFE
RECHERREER FREAR K
BARABRELX HEAHBEZRE
ZEE RRHERER Rz KE &
EHFLTBERRERE BIERERT
XE BREIEEBHRERDEEEZ
EXBERMBEM - PRVED AR
MIEEREFRRREE WL DRERD
ERERRFAGMEATIELERREE
WHEHETE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment assets and

segment liabilities that are regularly reviewed by the CODM:

As at March 31, 2017

Assets
Segment assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
(for corporate)
Prepaid lease payments
(for corporate)
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets
Held-for-trading investments
Other receivables (for corporate)
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Other payables (for corporate)
Derivative financial instrument
Taxation

Bank and other borrowings
Amounts due to joint ventures
Amounts due to associates
Deferred taxation

Consolidated total liabilities

BE

NEAE

REME

nE - BERR
(2 7))

BANEEFE(RA)

RBERAZRE
REERAZRE
JEMCH & AR 2 5R
ERAERAZHER
ARHEZRE
BEREHREE
RERERE

H 1t YR (R 7))
EERBRTER
RTBEFERRE

GREEMRR

af

NEAE

ES S E IO
TEERmITA

BB
RITREMEE
ENAERAZHE
JE M EEE R A 2 A
ERHR

RAARAE

Sales of
piped gas
BE
ARRHE
HK$'000
TER

34,900,614

2,433,155

connection

6. DEEH (H&)
THEERAESE
UWTAAEBREITELERRETHR
SRS BEEERYEEES T :
R-ZE—t&=H=+—H

Value-
added
services

Sales of
LPG
.34

REER AHEHE

HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TERT

Gas Zhongyu

Gas

Segment
Total

RERK
HK$'000
TR

RRR
HK$'000
Ti#n

AHAR
HK$'000
Tign

3,998,695 4,312,045 1,396,611 44,683,746

219,221
55,868

31,740
2,769,178
5,412,087

255,015
304,156
324,304
160,617
27,402
501,164
517,676
4,724,646

59,986,820

5,451,884 904,064 91,626 - 8,880,729
1,414,269
936
511,844
23,618,435
797,393
100,939

734,667

36,059,212

2016/17 8164 4&
R R IERERA T
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7 EER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEREE (&)

As at March 31, 2016 (restated) R-ZE-RNE=ZA=+—H(EH))

Value-
Sales of Gas Sales of added  Zhongyu  Segment
piped gas  connection LPG services Gas Total
EE AL
ARRHE MAEK HARHEE HERE THARE 2388
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
AT TAEL TAEL FTET AT AT
Assets EE
Segment assets PEEE 30,128,505 2,941,847 4,256,870 30,302 1,367,404 38,724,928
Investment properties REME 190,450
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - B = R &
(for corporate) (B7) 63,314
Prepaid lease payments BRBEHRE(AR)
(for corporate) 33,450
Investments in unlisted associates 73 M4 A 7 2
K& 2,465,445
Investments in joint ventures REEDRZIRE 5,070,331
Amounts due from associates B U EE & D B FUE 100,540
Amounts due from joint ventures ~ [EU 4 & A B 5118 271,069
Available-for-sale investments ~ A[ {1 & 7 % & 211,175
Deferred tax assets ERERIEEE 166,106
Held-for-trading investments RHIEEERE 11,364
Other receivables (for corporate) £ & U 2778 (A 7)) 452,224
Pledged bank deposits BEERROIER 275,554
Bank balances and cash BIEERAS 5,496,941
Consolidated total assets GREERE 53,532,891
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities NEAE 1,794,998 5325063 906,407 52,980 — 8,079,448
Other payables (for corporate) Hih it ERE (2 7)) 995,166
Derivative financial instrument TESRIA 4,500
Taxation FiIE 398,773
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 22,334,182
Amount due to a non-controlling & ff B 2 B JE 1 Bk
interest of a subsidiary - E e Or] 509
Deferred taxation BB 756,193
Consolidated total liabilities meakeRn 32,568,771
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° All assets are allocated to operating segments, except for the
investments in associates other than Zhongyu Gas,
investments in joint ventures, amounts due from associates
and joint ventures, available-for-sale investments, property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and prepaid
lease payments for corporate use, deferred tax assets, held-
for-trading investments, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash of the Group, and corporate assets of the
Group.

° All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
taxation, derivative financial instrument, bank and other
borrowings, amounts due to joint ventures and associates,
amount due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and
deferred taxation of the Group, and corporate liabilities of the
Group.

6. HEER (H)
FHEER MK (H)

o 5

ERHERRERA S EESRERM

BREE A AT(TBEERRBKE)
ZE - BERTZERE - B
ERERAERNRIRIE  AIHHE
ZIRE -BEME- -ME- -BEX
XE LA AR ZEREMERERN
HERE BREREBEEE FEE
EFRE BEHRITTREAEE
BRITEGFRBREESURANEER A

BESN FARELARELES
-

BRRIE- - fTEemI A BITRE
tiEE  ERBERAREERQA
FRIE - R B R R FEIE R R A X
T8 R 7N £ B R JE B 1R DA R AR 5
NABEIN FMEABHIEESE
BOAE o

2016/17 81 k=
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

For the year ended
March 31,2017

Additions of prepaid lease
payments

Additions to goodwil

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Release of prepaid lease
payments

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Reversal of allowance for trade
receivables

Share of results of associates

HAHEAR
BEAAH
AENLE

HE-Z-tF
=A=t+-AL
EE

BARERE
£

LN

RENE HER
B

LENE BE R
Bl €

BN EERH

BNRERE
BE

nE BER
REmE

B S EWER
RERE

EEBENAEE

Sales of
piped gas
B
AARHE
HK$'000
TER

139,693
1,002,453

3,179,004

1,707
87,157

32,353

783,062

1,289

RHRHE BERY

Value-
added Zhongyu Segment
LPG services Gas total

it

Sales of

PHRRR 2EAE
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TiE=n

HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
FTRER

141,089
1,002,453
193,869 3,372,873

532 2,239
= 87,157

48,362

863,970

- 1,289
90,817 90,817

Unallocated Consolidated

AR
HK$'000
TR

202,243

&a
HK$'000
TR

141,089
1,002,453

3,383,389

2,239
87,157

48,362

872,640

1,289
293,060
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7EEHR (&)
Other segment information (Continued) Hit o EER (&
Value-
Sales of Gas Salesof  added Zhongyu  Segment
pipedgas  connection LPG  services Gas total  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
@ i

ARRHEE  MRER DHRHE LERE THER 2BRE  AOK &4
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$O00  HKS000  HK$000
TEL  ThAr  TExT TET TEL TER  TEx TEL

For the year ended BR-Z—\#
March 31, 2016 (restated) =A=t+-HB1
£F (85))
Additions of prepaid lease BNHEERE
payments 0 235,944 - 8,356 - — 244,300 - 244,300
Additions to goodwil AR 109,341 - - - - 109,341 - 109,341
Additions to property, plantand FENZ - BE R
equipment B 3,065,538 - 225,948 - — 3,281,486 7,011 3,288,497
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE  HER
plant and equipment SfE BB 8,112 - - - - 8112 = 8,112
Amortisation of intangible assets /& & B 34 81,179 - - - - 81,179 - 81,179
Release of prepaid lease BNHENE
payments BE 28,396 — 17,048 — — 45,444 — 45,444
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - K5 &
and equipment RENE 731,157 - 87,516 - - 818,673 13,669 832,342
Allowance for trade receivables % 5 & Ui B 3%
B 31,066 - 786 - - 31,852 - 31,852

Share of results of associates  FE/5 B4 A ]
EY | = = =

“142 41142 144,320 185,462
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEEH (&)
Geographical information i EE R
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC. REBOEBFEGMRREH -
All of the Group’s revenue contributed by the external customers in AEBE2TWZREEFHMNINAR
the PRC. =
None of the customers contributed over 10% of total revenue of the WMEEE B EMEANEBR AW A K 10% A
Group. ko
The following is the information about non-current assets other than UTNAEZLEEMEME »HNIERDE
financial instruments and deferred tax assets by the geographical ELRTEREEMREBEBEERINDGE
area in which the assets are located: e
As at March 31
R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—t&F —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THE T FAT
Hong Kong &5 182,267 166,440
PRC ==l 43,956,758 39,342,621

44,139,025 39,509,061




67

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M EE

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hfg A

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—H1L

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(E3))
Interest income T E U A 69,386 69,210

Subsidies from PRC governmental AR BT 8 2 e B (BT D)
authorities (note i) 195,048 157,531
Tax refund (note i) AR B (B =Eii) 48,604 17,644
Repair and maintenance services fee HERREREE 2,583 7,645
Other services income H b AR 75 WA 41,946 64,880
Income from gas storage containers i A A 15,681 40,800
Income from leasing of equipment AR SR A 40,608 30,741
Others H A 31,788 97,782
445,644 486,233

Notes: P& -

(i

During the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, certain
subsidiaries received subsidies for (1) the cost incurred for connection
contracts relating to pipeline network for customers in new urban
areas and replacement of old pipeline network of the natural gas
users in the relevant cities; (2) the additional costs incurred in certain
gas connection contracts in which the connection fee is fixed by the
relevant government authority in the PRC; and (3) the cost incurred in
removing the coal gas pipelines and the coal gas storage and replace
with the newly built natural gas pipelines. All the required work has
been completed by the relevant subsidiaries. All the costs incurred
were recognised as cost of sales in profit or loss either during the
current or prior year.

The PRC government authorities have granted tax incentives to
certain subsidiaries in the PRC by way of tax refund for natural gas
business operated in the PRC.

HE-_Z—tFR-_ZTZ—X"F=A=
+—BLEFE - ETHBARERNUAT
HEERMEM  (NWEBEETOmESR
FEEREMZERAGORXARR
FREEERERELENKRE: QB
FEBRRREN(EFPHNEREIHTP
EABABRFEEET) TELE ZBEINK
A RQBBRERBEEREFZER
FEEZRA  WAHENRAZEE
MR- HEANBARE RKAERTET
freFTBEEEZRAERAFELR
TFEEZBETREABHBEERA -

FEBFRBEERE AR BRE T
ETHEMBAR  AROEFRELE
RARREBGZHIEA -
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses comprise:

Gain on deemed disposal of a joint
venture

Gain on bargain purchase

Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries (Note i)

Impairment loss recognised on property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

Change in fair value of investment
properties

Change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Reversal of (allowance for) trade
receivables (note 27)

Litigation claim (Note ii)

Exchange loss

8. HtlmKREIHE

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—HIL

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F# T
Hip sz M ESEETE:
BIEHERERARIZKE
— 1,970
HEBE WS - 470
iENGIDET- £ EN =) (77,454) =
REEWE BERZERR
BB EE (124,414)
HEWME -  BERZER
FERAEERIE 2 W 4,155
WEMEZ AT EZE
2,792
RIEEBEREZ AT EEZS
(5,759)
EEHEEZRE ZEIE
(5,463)
B 5 e s AR 3 | (B ) (B eE27)
1,289 (31,852)
F 7A BB 2R (FfT #Eii) (87,376) (287,310)
IE 3 B 18 (101,075) (513,170)

(958,581)
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0

(i

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group resolved to
dissolve two of its subsidiaries in the PRC which are dormant. As at
March 31, 2017, the Group was in the process of voluntarily winding
up these two subsidiaries and the loss from the liquidation of the
subsidiaries of HK$77,454,000 was recognised during the year
ended March 31, 2017.

In April 2011, two former directors initiated legal proceedings against
the Company with regards to their respective purported exercise of
share options of the Company. On October 15, 2015, the Court of
Appeal of Hong Kong ordered the Company to pay the former
directors a total sum of HK$279,291,000 as damages, plus interests
and costs of the trial and appeal. During the year ended March 31,
2016, the Court of Appeal stayed enforcement of the judgment
pending determination of the Company’s application for leave to
appeal to the Court of Final Appeal on condition that the Company
make payment into court the full judgment sum of HK$279,291,000,
together with HK$8,019,000, being part of the post-judgment
interests. The Company duly made the payment into the Court. The
Company then applied to the Court of Final Appeal for leave to
appeal.

On August 18, 2016, the Court of Final Appeal decided not to grant
the Company a leave to appeal against the judgment and, as a result,
the legal action was brought to an end. In addition to the sum of
damages and interests of HK$287,310,000 paid during the year
ended March 31, 2016, additional interest of HK$87,376,000 was
paid during the year ended March 31, 2017.

8. HtlhzmREE &)

BI5E

(i

HE-_ZT—+tFZA=+—HLLFE"
AEBAZHEREPERREEES
HHER AR RN _E—+tF=A=+—
A A4EEEERELEEMRMNBR
ACHEZ—tHE=ZA=F+—HIL#E
EEMRE B IEK77,454,0007 7T °

RZZ——FMNA MEMTEER
BESBEEBITEAQNR ZEBRER
ARAIBRHAEERERF RZZT—RF+
A+AB @B LFEEESARQAM
725 A E $ X 48 58279,291,0007%8
TAEREEE - SINF B RFA R EFK
K- BE_ET—ANFZA=Z+—HBILHF
B EFREEEERITHIR UEERQ
AIMER MR E AL ERFTAI BB
HRE R ABEARRAREEEZHRE
- #1748 %5279,291,000 7% 7T & [A) 1E &
B4 #R 18 F| B 498,019,000 7T A A
RIBRZARAEZNRIE - AR AIBER
MREAIR L ERFTAI RS -

RZZ—AR"ENA+TNB - REER R
ETRTFTARBEHREL EFFH
oAk WEERFAREERE R
HE-_Z—X"F=ZA=+—HLFE
A B8 & A B £ #8287,310,000 7
TN BE-_ZE-—tF=ZA=+—H1t

FE X F B HNFE2.87,376,00078 7T ©

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9.

Interest on bank loans and other RITERRHAEETR S
borrowings
Interest capitalised to construction in

progress

BAERIRERZHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MH%EH

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—HIL

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET F# T
963,409 1,048,532
(258,293) (290,352)

.!! I |’ 758,180

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate
of 4.46% (2016: 4.62%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying
assets.

10. TAXATION

PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEREMRER
Deferred taxation (note 36) i JE F T8 (MI 7E36)

10.

RFEENEBAEARAZEERNARDEE
A—RUEEEHAE RARGEREE
RS 24.46%(=F —NF : 4.62%) Y
FEAREFTHE -

Bl I8

For the year ended March 31
BZ=HA=+—HL

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET F# T
1,220,483 1,045,206
(21,977) (60,798)

l !!E!l’ 984,408

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no assessable
profit derived from Hong Kong for both years.

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% except for the tax relief
explained below.

e sans @it tmEna,

HRAEBRZMEFEYERNESE
SERREHN  MIETAREEMBERE
PEBFSF L BE -
BTGB RN FEMBARZ
B =E E25% o
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10. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 10. BiE (&)

Certain PRC group entities are entitled to the preferential tax rate ETHEHER AT EEZEREMREE
pursuant to the relevant regulations applicable to enterprises HEARURAPEASHERACELESR
situated in the western region of the PRC and high technology HItEMNEERR HE2-_ZET—+F=
enterprises. The applicable tax rates of those PRC group entities is A=+—BLHFE ZEFTHEERQA
15% for the year ended March 31, 2017 (2016: 15%). RE B EE15%(ZF —NF  15%) °
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before FERBHRESBELREME2EUI AR
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other AT TBR A (EB)EM 2 HEWNT -

comprehensive income as follows:

Hong Kong PRC Total
b H @it
For the year ended March 31
BE=A=t+-AL

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

= Sl — TN bRl T F B Rl —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn THER TiEx TER TR TEL

(Loss) profit before taxation  Br % A1 (E518) & M (704,321) ECAPLRILE 4,422,021 Rl 3,717,700

Tax at the domestic income 2B A1 BT 15 B A% B &1

tax rate 7 HIE (36,814) GRERAE] 1,531,329 [RBIVE0N 1,494,515 989,292
Tax effect of share of results & {f i 4 7\ 7] ¥ 4&
of associates ZHBTE (73,265) (46,369) (73,265) (46,369)
Tax effect of share of results [/ A & A Bl £ 4
of joint ventures IHERE (152,796) (49,481) (152,796) (49,481)
Tax effect of expenses not ~ FLE B M 5 A~ Al 1A
deductible for tax purpose 3 2 B 18 & £ 47,408 24,933 68,266 39,350 115,674
Tax effect ofincomenot ~ FHEM = BEEH
taxable for tax purpose BWAZBEZ 2 (304) (49,641) (42,326) (59,299) (42,630)
Tax effect of estimated tax 3 & # 2 2 b5t 8
losses not recognised EBRZHBETE 69,109 90,076 62,515 122,131 131,624
Tax effect of income taxat B EH KT E M5
concessionary rate BeHETE (163,130) (113,706) (163,130) (113,706)
Taxation A 1,207,506 984,408 1,207,506 984,408
Note: The applicable tax rate for Hong Kong and PRC are 16.5% (2016: M- BEARPEZERARES B A16.5%
16.5%) and 25% (2016: 25%) respectively. (ZE—RNF :16.5%) k25% (=T — X

F 1 25%) °
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FEREF

Profit for the year has been arrived at after 4 fE 3% F 2 f0k& (51 A) T 51

charging (crediting): I8

Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B B <

Depreciation of property, plant and - BEEEEZTE
equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments FEBRNHEERE

Amortisation of intangible assets included in 5+ A 88 & K AR Z E & &=
cost of sales 55

Minimum lease payments for operating BN TER 2KEHEAZ
leases in respect of: wIEEE :

— rented premises —HEME 147,044
— equipment — & 32,701

(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HE ¥ % « RE & & E 2 (Y

and equipment &5 18
Share of tax of associates (included in share F& {84 A &) 2 58 (5t AFE(S
of results of associates) NS )
Share of tax of joint ventures (included in ~ E{5 & B A"l 2 E (Gt AEG
share of results of joint ventures) BERAIEE)
Staff costs: B IR :
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EE5ME (MaE12)
Salaries and allowances of other staff Hih 8 T 7 %o %28
Contributions to retirement benefit AE A E T mRKEFRTE
scheme contributions of other staff R
Less: Amount capitalised in construction & - R EEZ IR EARAZ &5
in progress

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses A FTHEHE B HER AR 2

in respect of: FERA :
Sales of piped gas BERAARHEE |
Sales of LPG TRAL A R EH |
Contract costs recognised as expense in AR AIEE T2 A NHER 5
respect of gas connection construction 2 & #I R AR
contracts

Rental income from investment properties & & ¥ ¥ & 4 2 T & W A R 2
less outgoings of HK$1,095,000 (2016: $51,095,0008 7L (=& — 7~
HK$975,000) £ : 975,000 7T)

For the year ended March 31
BZ=HA=+—H1

2017
—E—tF
LG
TER

9,000

872,640
48,362

87,157

179,745

(2,239)

76,485
172,997

42,192 |
L47z332i

384,883
4
( 3,508)J

1,860,899

1L633375|

9,968,700

1,205,810
L - "

22,808,385

(25,300)

2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
T T

9,000

832,342
45,444

81,179
128,578
32,711

161,289

8,112
74,808
145,400

39,217
1,337,516

341,667
(92,626)

1,625,774

10,079,876
9,250,967

1,349,758

20,680,601

(30,857)
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS” AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 16 (2016: 16)
directors and the chief executive disclosed pursuant to the
applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, were as
follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2017

Directors’
fees

E2qe
HK$'000
TER

Executive directors HITEZE

Mr. Zhou Si (Chairman) ARRE(FE)

Mr. Liu Ming Hui (Executive ARREEBHTLIESR
Chairman and Managing Director) EEHaE)

Mr. Huang Yong HEAHE

Mr. Zhu Weiwei RERLE

Mr. Ma Jinlong BEELE

Ms. Li Ching FRET

Non-executive directors FHTEE

Mr. Yu Jeong Joon (Vice Chairman) ~ #1AE /& % 4 (8] £ )
Mr. Kim Yong Joong (alternate to SR (A EEEZ

Mr. Yu Jeong Joon) EffEZ)
Mr. Liu Mingxing SR AL E
Mr. Arun Kumar Manchanda Arun Kumar Manchanda %¢ 4
Mr. Jiang Xinhao ZHERE
Independent non-executive directors BV HHITEE
Ms. Wong Sin Yue Cynthia Effmat
Mr. Zhao Yuhua HEERE
Dr. Mao Erwan EZEBREL
Mr. Ho Yeung 7% % 4

Ms. Chen Yanyan ERLT

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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12 EERBITEEME

E=

REBEERLETRAERAEMNEEZD
Mk E16ER(ZE—RF 168 &
ERFBOTBRABZHMEWT

BE-Z—tHE=A=+—HLEE

Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
and other incentive benefits Total
benefits payments scheme emoluments
FER R RAKER
Hi @7l REBRE SRR WesE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TER
(Note iii
( Bt i)
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S 12 EERBITEFEMNE (B)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Directors (Continued) =% (48)
For the year ended March 31, 2016 BE-ZE—RE=-ZA=1t—HLEE
Performance  Contributions
Salaries related  to retirement
Directors’ and other incentive benefits Total
fees benefits payments scheme  emoluments
ek FRAAE RINEH
EZHs Hip A REFE FEIER [ilERx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET FET FTAL
(Note iii
(P &)
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Zhou Si (Chairman) BBEEFE) — - — — —
Mr. Liu Ming Hui (Executive ARBEEBHTLIESR
Chairman and Managing Director) EZpaE) - 6,300 3,600 18 9918
Mr. Huang Yong HERAE - 5,850 3,600 18 9,468
Mr. Zhu Weiwei KERREE - 2,850 1,800 18 4,668
Mr. Ma Jinlong BEELE - 2,021 1,800 - 3,821
Mr. Chen Xinguo (Note j W5 T B 5 4 (K 7i) - 490 1,600 - 2,090
Ms. Li Ching FHETL — 840 560 — 1,400
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Yu Jeong Joon (Vice Chairman) i EEE(BEE) 300 - 100 - 400
Mr. Kim Yong Joong (alternate to SR (A EEEZ
Mr. Yu Jeong Joon) EFEZF) - 1,652 1,600 - 3,252
Mr. Liu Mingxing ZIREEE 525 - 75 = 600
Mr. Arun Kumar Manchanda Arun Kumar Manchanda 7t 4 300 - 100 — 400
Mr. Jiang Xinhao (Note i FHE S (B i) = - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BV HHITEE
Ms. Wong Sin Yue Cynthia HEMZL 600 - 200 - 800
Mr. Zhao Yuhua BEELE 540 - 180 - 720
Dr. Mao Erwan ESat- i 540 - 180 - 720
Mr. Ho Yeung il S A 360 - 120 = 480
Ms. Chen Yanyan BRELL 360 - 120 - 480
3,525 20,003 15,635 54 39,217
Notes: B E
0] Resigned on June 24, 2015 0] R-ZZE—RAFNA-+HBET
(i) Appointed on June 24, 2015 (ii) RZZE—RAFANAZTHAEZRE
(i)  Performance related incentive payments were determined by the (i) KRBEBERBFEHTHNEZESERE
remuneration committee, having regard to the performance of EF2EEERARAEB 2 L& %
directors and the Group’s operating result. 4 o

e sans @it tmEna,
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

12.

13.

DIRECTORS” AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Liu Ming Hui is also the managing director of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, all of them
were directors which included the Executive Chairman of the
Company whose emoluments are included in note 12.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the chief executive or
the directors as an inducement to join the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office for both years.

Except for Mr. Zhou Si and Mr. Jiang Xinhao have waived their
rights to receive remuneration for the years ended March 31, 2017
and 2016, there was no arrangement under which the chief
executive or a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.

12.

13.

ESERVITEEME (B)

EE (&)

NEMTRATETCHEETEAMESE
BERARBRAREER 2R -

INEFRFATESTZME RIBIZIEH
TEFZMeETZERESFETARA
ERZRH -

FABAENRARA CEFTHKRE
LB BREzHe S BmAEREETRAE
BARH RIS AT T3 o

BEMWE

REBEE-_ZE—tFRZZE—R"F=ZA=
+—ALFE AEEHEaH ARG E
AEHABES(BEARFNITER) -
BREAMES IR E12-

REZzMmEFEAEEBEREZTRA
BREEXNEMMSIESMAREER
ZREHBBAE -

HEe-_Z—+tFRE_ZEZ—R"F=ZA=7
—BUHFEE BRABRLEERETELE
REHEBDME 2 ERNN BEZZF

—tFR_E—RFZAZ+—HLF
EITHRERRESRERETMLHE
HEXREHREEDMS -

2016/17 81 k=
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

14. DIVIDENDS 4. BB

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—HIL

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Final dividend paid in respect of year ENHBE-_ZTE—AF=ZA=+—H
ended March 31, 2016 of HK$0.1446 IEFEFK01446F L (=T —<
(2016: HK$0.1395 in respect of year FHEZZE-—RAEF=R=+—
ended March 31, 2015) per share BItFEF%0.1395% 7T) 2 K H
B& B 710,041 693,861
Interim dividend paid in respect of financial BN & Z T —~XFE LB =+H It
six months ended September 30, 2016  BA B/~ @l B & A%0.058 T (= Z —
of HK$0.05 (2016: HK$0.05 inrespect ~ ~F : HE-ZT—AFHLA=1
of six months ended September 30, B IE75 8 A& 80.05/%8 T) 2+ H
2015) per share % B 243,775 248,232
A final dividend of HK$0.2 in respect of the year ended March 31, EEERRBEE-_T—tF=A=+
2017 (2016: final dividend of HK$0.1446 in respect of the year —HLEFESR2ETL(ZZE—XRF:
ended March 31, 2016) per share has been proposed by the HE-T—R"F=ZA=1+—HBLFE
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the f£0.14468 T 2 REAIR B) 2 REARR B -
forthcoming general meeting. AR RREERE R R ET 1

ao
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RKATHEANEEERERNREBERT
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following Thi B EiEEtE -
data:

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—HL
2017 2016
—E—t&E —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET

Earnings for the purposes of basic and HEGREAREBRANZ AT
diluted earnings per share, being profit (BIARRAEE ABERFE
for the year attributable to owners of the % #l))

Company 2,273,121

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—HL
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
’000 '000
% T T6

Weighted average number of ordinary AESRERAREERN 2

shares for the purpose of basic and T AR AN RE T

diluted earnings per share 4,908,043 4,964,687
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume KE#EREF2AETEBRITERR
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as the RlZMRITEBERE BEHEZEER
exercise price of those share options is higher than the average BZOIFERRZZE—tF R —X

market price for the shares for both years 2017 and 2016. FRHzFHTE -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BEY
HK$'000
FAT
At April 1, 2015 R-_ZE—RFMA—H 262,364
Exchange adjustments PE o 3 & (8,870)
Transferred to property, plant and EREYE  BEREE
equipment (65,836)
Change in fair value NEEE 2,792
At March 31, 2016 R-ZE—XR"F=A=+—H 190,450
Exchange adjustments S (2,915)
Change in fair value NEEE 31,686
At March 31, 2017 R-_E—+F=A=+—H 219,221
The Group’s investment properties are analysed as follows: AREBZEEMES BT :
As at March 31
R=B=+-—H
2017 2016
= LR aN T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Properties held: BEZWME:
— in Hong Kong — R EH 145,200 126,000
— in the PRC — (IR 74,021 64,450
.!!I 190,450
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong at AEBMNREBZEREMER_T—+
March 31, 2017 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation FZA=ZF+—BZAFEDNIBEELASE
carried out as on the respective dates by LCH (Asia-Pacific) EWEEAENB LA ERIZGERF
Surveyors Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not SBOTRAEMBERARRZBETZMHE
connected to the Group. The resulting surplus of HK$19,200,000 8 5 ° B It E 4 219,200,000 7T & #
(deficit in 2016: HK$1,400,000) was credited (2016: debited) to the ZE—REEAL 1,400,000 7T) 51 A
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive meEakEMmezEKRARR(ZE—
income. The valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable NECHR) cHEDSEHEUMERE
market transactions available in the relevant markets for similar PR B RIGH T 2 BB M5 &5
properties in the similar locations and conditions. WA ELRTISER S MFH -

e sans @it tmEna,
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in the PRC at
March 31, 2017 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out at these dates by Crowe Horwath (HK) Consulting &
Valuation Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. The resulting surplus of HK$12,486,000
(2016: HK$4,192,000) was credited to consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to comparable market transactions available
in the relevant markets for similar properties in the similar locations
and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

During the year ended March 31, 2016, investment properties with
carrying amounts of HK$65,836,000 were transferred to property,
plant and equipment with the commencement of owner-
occupation.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about
the fair value hierarchy as March 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Commercial property units located in NRBEENEBEME
Hong Kong
Offices located in the PRC URFREBHAE

16. REY % (8)

s for

W_Z—+F=F=+—8 A&£EK
RPEZEEMEZ A FETREER
EEMERECBYAEREERKE
MITEESEE(EB)BATHBRAA
RZSHHETZ2HESE AREE
212,486,000 T B #h( =T — N F:
4,192,000 7T) B ¥ AR & 18w K H A
PEHBRABRE - HEDSEEUDER
BHOMEMNE MGG T2 BEm ST E
BHNABELRMERZIMEL -

AEE2HMRBELEHORFAFARRE
SHRERBEAREEBZYWERZTIUR
FEEANENFEEY ARTERED
E

HE - Z—R"F=A=+—HILFE"
R M 18 /5 65,836,0008 THREMED
HEREABEEARZYE BELR
ﬁo

AEEBR-_ZE—tFRZZT—-—~"F=A
=+t HRNREVEREBELAFEER
ERMFBOT

Fair value Level 3
AFE-E=R
As at March 31
R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
S Eal - F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET

145,200 126,000
74,021 64,450

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
works closely with the independent qualified external valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.

FALEEALELHE=R-

RBERR AEEERERBIAE
BOBEEMEZEE RE=ZRAF
BFfERYMEBEERBEDERBA
BE-WEEAFEEEAELY  BH
BHRERAEAARREERS -

2016/17 81 k=
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16. REW=E (&)

FRERITETTBEHAR

Information about fair value measurements

using key unobservable inputs (Level 3) B2AFYETE(E=RM)2E
*SI}

TRBETIAREMEET A FERMA
MEDERGERUAAEIETIAER

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in the
determination of fair values for investment properties and the key

unobservable inputs used in the valuation models. A B -
Relationship of
Valuation Range of unobservable
Description Fair value as at March 31 techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TURERAHER
R RZA=+-RZAYE #HEFE TABRBAYE FTABEBABEEE AFEZBE
2016
—E-RE
HK$'000
TET
Commercial units 145,200 126,000 Comparison  Adjusted transaction HK$25,400-HK$40,600 per The higher the adjusted
located in approach price to reflect market square foot (2016: HK$23,000~ transaction price the higher
Hong Kong value of similar properties HK$35,900 per square foot) the fair value
(e AV BRARRHERURMEMN §FHR254008TE BARRSERER
AREL ME A 40,6008 T (Z B —RF : ATFEHS
HFHR—23,000% L E
35,9007 7T
Offices located in 64,450 Comparison  Adjusted transaction RMB9,000-RMB69,085 per The higher the adjusted
the PRC approach price to reflect direction square meter (2016: RMB8,700-  transaction price the higher
and height RMB52,300 per square meter) the fair value
iz B R B 9 L &% BRAERSERURM AR FHKAREI000TE BRAERSERER
WRE k& ARH69,0657C (ZF— X ATEEES
BYHRARES 00T
Z AR ¥52,3007T)

219,221 190,450

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolio and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to the Group’s investment properties has been
measured based on the tax consequences of recovering the
carrying amounts entirely through use.

RABNBRAFERIUFENRENE
EEAMEERE ARAAERCRIAN
SENREMELRSG BRALTEEN
RAMXDIREABREMIEZBEE
HREREMEMEENBREBDEEF
SR EENEBRAFAE At K&
EXEEREMENELEHREAR AR
RAEEHTE FMAAFEERILFENR
BMENEHRENEAHEEZHEDM
RECHEER - At FREAKERKRE
MEMBETHEDRIBEBERZ BN
EIRREEMHRBRRTE -
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For the year ended March 31,2017 HZE =T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At April 1, 2015

Exchange adjustment

Additions

Acquired on acquisitions of
businesses

Acquisition of assets (note 39)

Transfer from investment
properties

Disposal for the year

Reclassffication

At March 31, 2016

Exchange adjustment

Additions

Acquired on acquisitions of
businesses

Disposal for the year

Reclassification

At March 31, 2017

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At April 1, 2015

Exchange adjustment

Provided for the year

Impairment loss recognised
in profit or loss

Eliminated on disposals

At March 31, 2016
Exchange adjustment
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At March 31, 2017

CARRYING VALUES
At March 31, 2017

At March 31, 2016

B
RZE-R4MA—-H
R A%

RE

WEEKAE

Wi A ()
ERENEER

FALE
ENNE

RZZ-AE=A=1-H
5

NE

KR EHE

FAHE
ENNE

W-E-+t&=f=+-H
FEREBH
RZE-RENA-A
ERH%

FREE
WERERAZHEFE

it & BB
R=F-~"E=ZA=+-H
A%

FRER

& B
R-_F—t%=A=1+—-H

BEE
RZE-tF=ZA=1+-H

RZZ-R"$=A=+—-H

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HEt#R
BT
HK$'000
TAT

244,03
(110,209)
168,602

21,655
160,630

66,836
(9,594)
172,899

2,904,060
(114,594)
78,121

262,138

(11,952)
136,966

3,264,729

392,372
(18379)
84,218

(2,089)
455924
(13.407)
87,270
(3,091)

526,696

2,728,033

2,448,136

17. W% BERKHE

Construction
Pipelines in progress
EE  EEIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FEL
12,618,823 5,610,954
(666,130) (295,960)
195,019 2,672,774
165,915 61,488
(8,003) =
1,619,707 (1,976,807)
13,830,331 6,072,449
(736,920) (304,983)
149,681 2,880,260
906,725 193,663
(38,305) =
1,971,198 (2,195,008)
16,082,710 6,646,381
1,876,420 —
(104,985) =
303,194 -
(1,042) -
2,163,587 -
(125,325) —
448746 -
(4.556) =
2,482,452 -
13,600,258 6,646,381
11,666,744 6,072,449

Machinery

and  Furniture
equipment and fixtures
BER  HEAR
®E ETEHE
HK$000  HK$'000
T FiEn
3,147,096 336,759
(144,398) (26,783)
128,677 41,641
25,705 3,788
(16,744) (8,203)
180,524 129
3,320,860 352,331
(205,69) (29,490)
162,354 17,726
328,631 7,790
(48,563) (17,129)
80,018 3,391
3,637,605 334,619
1,082,3% 160,778
(61,099) (12,138)
239,787 40,39
124,414 -
(9,294) (2,763)
1,376,204 186,272
(66,832) (17,489)
239,341 23,697
(21,029) (7,210)
1,527,684 185,270
2,109,921 149,349
1,944,656 166,059

Motor
vehicles

nE
HK$'000
TAL

628,089
(33489)
81,784

46,206

(78,549)
3,548

647,590
(39,352)
82,687

24,821

(43,484)
3,445

675,713

210,792
(11,712
62,023

(36672)
204,431
(10,139)
60,612
(07,652)

247,252

428,461

423,159

Vessels Total

i @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL  TAxn

200,989 24,886,945
(12,280) (1,289,242)
3,288,497

- 324,757
- 150,630

= 65,836
(5,947 (117,040)

182,762 27,310,383
(10,715) (1,441,749)
12,560 3,383,389

1,723,774
— (159,433

184,607 30,816,364

48,662 3,771,310

R617) (210929
12725 832,342

— 124414
(4303  (56,362)

54,357 4,460,775

(30000 (26,192)
10074 872,640
- (635%)
64,331 5033685

120,276 25,782,679

128,406 22,849,608
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The pipelines of the Group are located in the PRC.

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
terms of the leases or 50 years

Pipelines Over the shorter of 30 years or the
operation period of the relevant
company

Machinery and equipment 5%-10%

Furniture and fixtures 15%-50%

Motor vehicles 25%

Vessels 7% (new vessels acquired from

suppliers) or 34% (acquired from
second hand market)

During the year ended March 31, 2017, interest capitalised in
construction in progress amounted to HK$258,293,000 (2016:
HK$290,352,000).

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group is in the process
of obtaining title deeds from relevant government authorities for its
land and buildings in the PRC amounting to HK$17,672,000 (2016:
HK$18,625,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group is not required to incur additional cost in obtaining the
title deeds for its land and buildings in the PRC.

At March 31, 2017, the directors of the Company considered that
in the leasehold land and building elements of certain properties
located in the PRC with a carrying value of HK$84,441,000 (2016:
HK$71,186,000) cannot be separately identified.

17. M1 % - BB KRR (&)

AEEZEBURFE-

tatmx - BELRKEER (TREER
TH2) THR B ORI T F R R E -

HETHMRETFT BLOBKRTFHLE0F

TREE

EiE VFHBEHERAZ
KEFHzREE

38 R 5%-10%

EMEETEREE  15%-50%

RE 25%

s ha 7% (M EREAZ
FMAE) 3034% (1
ZFEMIBEAN)

REZE2-_ZT—+ttF=ZA=Z+—H
Jtil* BRERZBIREARZFEA
#258,293,000%8 T( = T — N F:
290,352,000 7T) °

REE-_FT—+tF=ZA=Z+—HBILF
B RS E IE R HEEE17,672,000% 7T
(ZZF— X4 18,625,000/ JT) i A
I REFRBEBAEBERAE
R - ARNREERE ASEHAE
RERTBE LW REFZRAAEZLOM
EEHERBINB AN o

R-_ZE—+tF=ZA=Z+—H' &2
REERAETHNRFABERERERE
%84,441,000% T( = & — K F:
71,186,000/ 7T) 2 Y13 2 FA & -t o 1%
FEDEEDFER -
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. N HEMRE

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET

The Group’s prepaid lease payments AEBZEMBEERTESER

comprise leasehold land in the PRC FEZAE LR ER

and are analysed for reporting mMEahA:

purposes as:

Non-current portion JEBNHR 2B & 1,516,323 1,493,028

Current portion BN ER 0 49,991 47,641

l!!!l!l 1,540,669

The leasehold land and land use rights are charged to consolidated METHR T EAELNESEREES
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a FTHEGKAERREME2E W AREN
straight-line basis over the term of the leases. B o
During the year, the Group is in the process of obtaining title deeds F A AKEIERH B {E30,782,000 %
from relevant government authorities for its prepaid lease payments T (ZF — 75 1 18,747,000 7T) f1 A
in the PRC amounting to HK$30,782,000 (2016: HK$18,747,000). ZTERIEE I A B BT R B
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group is not FrEREZYN - RRRAEBEERE A&
required to incur additional cost in obtaining the title deeds for its BARERTRBENHEHERBZMAE#E

prepaid lease payments in the PRC. AT E BB INB AN o
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U 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBE R 2 RE
As at March 31
R=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T T

Cost of investments in associates: AR & AR Z A

Listed in Hong Kong REBLET 881,765 881,765

Listed in PRC RERHEM 39,272 —

Unlisted L 1,945,510 1,564,113
Share of pre-acquisition dividend {45 B8 A AR B (1,296) (1,296)
Share of post-acquisition profit and other %31 Y B 18 & ) &2 B b 2 T Uk A

comprehensive income (net of post- ($0 Bk Uit B 1% BT U B 2)

acquisition dividend received) 1,067,568 1,155,297
Discount on acquisition of associates W BB & N A Z ITE 232,970 232,970

4,165,789 3,832,849

Fair value of listed investments, based on % & 2 A F(E (LT IBRE
quoted market price FrE) 3,002,010 1,979,243
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The Group had interests in the following significant associates:

Name of entity

EEE

EED)IRMRATIE
ERERAR

EESBEXERD
BRAF

BEMALLEER
RAREBRAA

MREETEMR
BREMERT
(MMemEHE])

BRABIEERL
BRAE

LR IRE B SR
AARBRAA

BMFARRERAT]

Zhongyu Gas

FHRRR

Form of
business
structure

ST 5

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

RIMR AR

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

PG ERE

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

IR ERE

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

RN AL

Limited liability
company
BREFAA

Limited liability
company
BEREERAA

Limited liability
company
BREEAA

Limited liability
company

BEREMEAF

Place of
registration/
incorporation
3074
AR 34t B

PRC
G

PRC

PRC

i

PRC

&

PRC
R E

Cayman
Island

HMEES

Principal
place of
operations
B
M

PRC

HE

PRC

PRC

HE

PRC

[

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

FE

PRC

HE

Class of
capital

i kil

Registered

AL

Registered

LA

Registered

ot fit

Registered

S

Registered

3

Registered

ot fi

Registered

ST

Ordinary

19. REBERFA 2 RE (&)

85

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T

78k A DA T B ) o

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered/issued

capital held
by the Group
AEBREEM
ERTRAEELLH
As at March 31
R=A=+—-8
2016
—E—RE
%
44.00
38.69
49.00
48.00
35.00
25.00
40.00
44.05

Principal activities

TEEH

Gas pipeline construction

MREBRR

Exploration, collection
transportation,
purification
and sales of natural gas

iR & &8 FL
RRARHEE

Sales of natural gas
RARHE

Sales of nature gas and
gas pipeline construction

AARBEERMRER
fe£4

Refining process, storage
of LPG

RAE B RAR R T
B

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction

AARHEERMAEE
i

Sales of LPG

BIERHREE

Investment holding,
sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
REZER  RARHEER
MREERER
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. RE(& QAR 2R E (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of

Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation operations capital by the Group Principal activities
531174 3 AEBFEEMS
SELBE EBEBER HEMAE EEGY REAER ERTRAEELS TEBEH
As at March 31
R=A=+—A8
2016
—ZE—RF

BNEEFEAAT  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 44.00 Sales of natural gas and
MREEERAR company gas pipeline construction
BEREERA HE HhE A AARHERMAEE
%&l
BRI AR AR Limited liabilities PRC PRC Registered 25.00 Sales of natural gas and
BRAA] company gas pipeline construction
BEREFERA H HE Bl AARHERMAEE
Ei&
ERPARARAES  Limited liabilities PRC PRC Registered 24.50 Sales of natural gas and
BRAF company gas pipeline construction
EREERA H Bl iy AARHERMREEE
B
Rankam International Limited liability Bermuda Hong Kong  Ordinary 20.00 Investment holding
Holdings Limited company
BEREEAA BRE B Tl & & Rk
Daily Pride Limited Limited liability Bermuda Hong Kong  Ordinary 49.00 Holding of project
company companies for trading of
heaters and boilers
BREERA BRE B8 =gl FEEBEEARRNAE
ZBBRA]
AL E B R R Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 31.00 Sales of gas meter, gas
BRAR] company pressure regulator and
gas pipeline construction
BREERA H B A B Al MREK REBRLMHEHEE
KRR EBRER
KEBUBIRERRREN  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 27.00 Development of energy
BRAR company technology and sales of
natural gas
BREERA H B A A BEIR BRI A 3 R RAR
HE
REBEFORIL AR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 40.00 Sales of LPG
BRAAE company
EREERAA R B Gl RIEBBREE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. RE(& QAR 2R E (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of

Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation operations capital by the Group Principal activities
531074 TE AEBREEM
rEER EBEBER EMAE EEGYE REAER ERTRAEELS TEBEH
As at March 31
R=A=+—A8

AR HERRR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 30.00% Sales of natural gas and
BRARA] company gas pipeline construction
BEREMERAA HE HhE i AARHERMAEE
2R
IIRERARFH Limited liability PRC PRC Registered Sales of natural gas and
BRAR] company gas pipeline construction
BREERA H FE Ealii AARHERMAEE
%
IIERERAREMIRE  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 25.00% Sales of natural gas and
BRAR company gas pipeline construction
EREERAA H Bl i AAREERRREE
&
MIHESsER Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 12.46% Development, production
RDBERAR company (Note) and sales of utility
(CIEE)D (M=) system
BEREERAA HE B Al BEFRRBERE  £E
RHE
Note: At the end of the reporting period, the Group held a 12.46% equity M R BERR REERFANIRE 2
interest in 13T & 2. The investment in 47T & £ was classified as an 1246% R A Em - RAFTTIHE 2R E
investment in an associate as the Group has the right to appoint one PHEAERBERRZIRE  RAANE
out of four executive directors in #iTE(£. Thus, the Group can BERFIRENVUATESHE
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies I EE o Et - AEE A ENIE
of ATEE. EVBRELEBRELEEATE -

At March 31, 2017, included in the cost of investment in associates R-ZE—+F=A=+—H stAHEZ
is goodwill of HK$976,339,000 (2016: HK$918,328,000). Az E KA R & £ 976,339,000/8
T (ZF— 754 : 918,328,000/ 7T) °
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The financial year end date for Zhongyu Gas is December 31. For
the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting, the
consolidated financial statements of Zhongyu Gas for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 have been used as the Group
considers that it is impracticable for Zhongyu Gas with its shares
listed on the Stock Exchange to provide a separate and complete
set of financial statements as of March 31. No significant
transactions requiring adjustments took place during the intervening
period.

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs for the
purpose of preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

All of the Group’s associates are accounted for using the equity

19. REBERFA 2 RE (&)

TRV BFELKERR T A=
TR -REREaAgE A£ED
EAPHRRRBEE_T-—RER-ZT
—HET_A=+-RLEFEZHEAY
BHE RARAKERBTHRE(HE
BOREBERMET) TR EREHER=A
ZST-RZBURBZHBREK - RH
RERE BIEZEBRFLHABNEAR
5 o

EEREL T BERBL

NEBEEEH LA ZHHBERES
HIMT e TXHI 2 HBER M EIE
BRELSEAVBREMBES SN
BamEERRE B2 QBB EREAT
TR

AEEREBZE AT DRBEDEN I

method in these consolidated financial statements: EIE AR EARNALE
REEFE BEBTE
As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FH&T
Current assets mE)EE 1,167,953 1,124,435
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,638,207 2,933,461
Current liabilities mEAE (1,136,440) (1,274,385)
Non-current liabilities EREBE (17,283) (44,365)
Net assets FEE M 2,739,146
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. RE(& QAR 2R E (&)

Summarised financial information of material EEBRE LDV ER B M
associates (Continued) (#&)
WEESE (E) WEEFE (E)

For the year ended March 31
BZ=A=+—HL
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET

Revenue g 1,589,988 1,538,365

Profit and total comprehensive income FRE A & 2w AR

for the year 107,674 203,495
Dividend received from K5 5R)&H B2 FABKERERE ZKE
during the year 194,383 =
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB ER M EHERNGE M B REE
carrying amount of the investments in associates recognised in the RZBERNRZRERMERE:

consolidated financial statements:

As at March 31
W=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—t&E —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FA&T
Net assets of K ER&E T B RREREZFEE 2,652,437 2,739,146
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRECBERE Z AR
interest in M ERER E 7 &5 Lh A 48% 48%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEBERERERE 2D
K EE B reflected in the Group’s REE(EANEEBZLGE8%

consolidated statement of financial position 4k 3. 3=/ f k) 1,314,790

2016/17 8164 4&
R R IERERA T

89
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of material EEHE LA KEERNH R
associates (Continued) (%)
Zhongyu Gas and its subsidiaries PHEBRREKE AR
As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Current assets mE)EE 1,653,727 1,933,467
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,969,936 6,775,842
Current liabilities mEAE (2,709,103) (2,610,921)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (4,108,629) (3,825,994)
Net assets FEE 2,805,931 2,272,394
Non-controlling interests FEE AR R S 252,725 265,730
For the year ended March 31
BE=BA=+—HL
2017 2016
= PR T F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
Revenue W25 3,722,507 3,276,666
Profit and total comprehensive income F G A R EERABEE
for the year 571,229 44,407
Profit attributable to owners of Zhongyu Gas AR A ¥R R B A JE 15 % 7l 206,150 93,390

19. REBERFA 2 RE (&)
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. RE(& QAR 2R E (&)
=

Summarised financial information of material EERME LN EEREMR
associates (Continued) (%&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the T HRER B EERGEA T SRR
carrying amount of the investments in associates recognised in the RHERNT 2 EEEEYE:

consolidated financial statements:

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT

Equity attributable to owners of Zhongyu %42 & BMIIESRER T 2R P AR R
Gas reported in the consolidated BB ABIEER
financial statements 2,553,206 2,006,664
Less: Fair value gain on revaluation of B FEAME - BE R
pipelines included in property, plantand Rz @ EH 2 A FE K=

equipment (480,240) —
2,072,966 2,006,664

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBRPBERMRZIERERERS
interest in Zhongyu Gas Lt 1 44.05% 44.05%
Goodwill Bma 483,469 483,469

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in ZN&E B R W IA R 2 S REE
Zhongyu Gas reflected in the Group’s (EAREBE 2 HRETBRRAKS
consolidated statement of financial =)

position 1,367,404
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19. RE(& QAR 2R E (&)

Summarised financial information of material EERE LN EEREMR
associates (Continued) (%)

Aggregate information of associates that are not BRAMESLFEAZCHELATNE
individually material sFE R

For the year ended March 31
BE=A=+—HL

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

The Group’s share of profit N E B FE G % F 84,893 46,647
As at March 31
R=B=+-—H

2017 2016
—z—+t5 [EEER
HK$°000 HK$000
FHT FHT

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s 7 £= 8] A 3% St ‘& N 7] 2 HEZS HY
interests in these associates AETREE 1,496,008 1,150,655
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20.

Cost of investment in joint ventures — REBERRIZEEKAN —FE L™

unlisted

Share of post-acquisition profit and other 23 1 Y B 18 % ) & B b 2 T Yk A

comprehensive income (net of post- (F0BR U B 12 FT B RZ B.)
acquisition dividend received)
Discount on acquisition of joint ventures U B & & A & 37 3%

REELNAZRE

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT FAT

3,154,253 3,128,684

2,206,784 1,890,597

As at March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in the
following significant joint ventures:

Place of Principal
Form of registration/  place of Class of
Name of entity business structure incorporation operations capital
31 FTELE
CEER EBEBER B it 26 it 86 B &R
N A R T A SR Sino-foreign equity ~ PRC PRC Registered
BRAR joint venture
HINEBERE il e Rl
BN RETREERE  Sino-foreign equity  PRC PRC Registered
BRAR joint venture
HINEERE g B Al
MEF R R TR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered
REBRBRAA joint venture
(P A0S 45 FR R D)
HINEEE 31E0 Ll Gl

51,050 51,050
5,41 2,087 5,070,331
E’\ TE+ERZTE-RF=ZA=T—
ZK?EK@EAJ/ATEEX SERNFIRHEE
$2§ i
Proportion of
nominal value
of registered/
issued capital
held by the Group Principal activity
AEBATEM
ERTRAEAELS FEXER
As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2016
—E-REF

%

50.0 Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

ARFRHE KRR
el

50.0 Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

ARREHE KRR
B8

51.0 Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

AARHERMAR
FEER

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

20. REERAZRE (&)

Proportion of
nominal value

Place of Principal of registered/
Form of registration/  place of Class of issued capital
Name of entity business structure incorporation operations capital held by the Group Principal activity
3V FTERE REBREEMS
TEER EBRRERS RSt B it Bk BRAEH ERTRAEELG FEEK
As at March 31
R=A=+—8H
2016
—E-REF
%
EN PR TR R Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0 Sales of natural gas
BRAR joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
RINEEDRE B H Gl RARHEERKR
EEER
FORRREEFRTEM  Sino-foreign equity  PRC PRC Registered 50.0 Nature gas refill service
RERRAF joint venture and gas station
administration
HINEERE [ A B Al RARIMERH K
PR
TEHEAAR AR AT Equity joint venture PRC PRC Registered 51.0 Sales of natural gas
FERE B i Gl RARHE
Fujian Anran Gas Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49.0 Investment holding
Investment company
Company Limited
(“Fujian Anran”)
REZAMRRBIRE BREERA A & H B Al REER
BRRA
(MBELAD
EERMAAREL Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49.0 Sales of natural gas
BREFAR company and gas pipeline
construction
EREERAA B A E Gl RARBERRR
EEER
RIBTRRRRREE)  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49.0 Gas pipeline
BRAR] company construction
BEREERAA B A E Gl MREBRER
SMPRE BRI MM Sino-foreign equity  PRC PRC Registered 50.0 Sales of natural
RERERAF joint venture gas and gas pipeline
construction
RINEERE B A = it AARBEERMRREE
B
SERIE DHERE Sino-foreign equity ~ PRC PRC Registered 50.0 Retailing and wholesaling
WHRRERE joint venture of gas accessories
BRAR] and provision of
maintenance
service
HINE B HE A B Al TERBBERRE M+ R

RERERS
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Name of entity

LB

REMRERRER
ARAHE

MMNBETRIER
BRAE

SR RTREIAR
BRAR

—HmERREER

g=/N

Pleasign Ace Limited

KRR OPREREIR
BRAT

TUNFRILRAEE %
BRAT

RREFIROFYI)ER
BEREEES
(BRRE%) (Note) (FifzE)

Form of
business structure

EBERBREA

Limited liability
company
BREERA

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

RN ERE

Limited liability
company

BREMERH

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

RN ERE

Limited liability
company

BEREMEAF

Limited liability
company

BREEAT

Limited liability
company
BREEAA

Investment
Fund L.P.

Investment
Fund L.P.

Place of
registration/
incorporation
531174
R it 26

PRC
L=
PRC
HE

PRC

0

PRC

HE

Hong Kong

N

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

GiE

Principal
place of
operations
FTERE
it B

PRC
B
PRC
B

PRC

hE

PRC

FE

Hong Kong

BB

PRC

i

PRC

ok

PRC

FE

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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20 REERAZRE (&)

Proportion of
nominal value
of registered/

Class of issued capital
capital held by the Group Principal activity
REEFIEEMR
R &R ERTRAEELG ETEBEH
As at March 31
R=A=+—8H
2016
—E-REF
%
Registered 40.0 Provision of pipe natural
gas
Al REEBERAR
Registered 50.0 Sales and distribution of
LPG
Al BALAHRHE R D H
Registered 50.0 Sales of natural gas,
petrochemical
products and gas
accessories
Rl AAR AILEMRR
AR SH &
Registered 49.0 Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline
construction
Rl ARRHERRR
EEER
Ordinary 50.0 Investment holding
e 1R
Registered 51.0 Sales of nature gas
and delivery of
hazardous products
A ARRHERBR S
e}
Registered 50.0 Sales of natural gas
Al ARREE
Registered — Investment in PNG,
LNG, CNG and LPG
energy projects
Al RABRAR R

ABRR  BBERAR
KAt 5 R IR
HERA
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

20. REERAZRE (&)

Note: During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group cooperated with M - Bz 22—+ E=A=+—RH I &

China Insurance Investment Fund L.P. (“CIIF”) to establish the China
Insurance Investment China Gas (Shenzhen) Clean Energy
Development Fund L.P (the “Fund”). The Fund is expected to have an
aggregate capital commitment up to RMB10 billion in which RMB7
billion and RMB3 billion will be contributed by CIIF and the Group
respectively. The Fund will provide capital support for investment in
the piped natural gas (“PNG”), liquefied natural gas (“LNG”),
compressed natural gas (“CNG”) and LPG projects. Prior to CIIF
having contributed its committed capital of RMB7 billion in full and
the investment projects of the Fund having generated income or
stable cash flow, the Fund shall not seek capital contribution of RMB3
billion from the Group. Up to March 31, 2017, CIIF contributed
RMBO.7 billion to the Fund.

CIIF is entitled to a preferential return based on its actual capital
contribution (after deducting any redeemed amount).

In connection with the Fund, the Company made an undertaking to
procure, among other things: (i) the divestment of CIIF in the Fund; (i)
the payment of the preferential return of CIIF by the Fund; and (jii) the
preferential redemption of CIIF’s interest in the Fund in the event that
the Fund does not have sufficient funding in satisfying the aforesaid

EoAEBEPERBREEES (BR
E&8)([FREDAIERLRREFRMR
(RINBEREFREEES(AREE)
(TZE&] ZESBEABHEBLE
B ARBA00E T B AREBT0E
TRARMEIEITED B BFRRER
REBEAE ZESHEAEERRA
(TPNG)) ~ &b R ¥k & (TLNG)) - [ 48
KRR (TCNG]) B&R LA i & (TLPG))
HERERBEALTE - RPRIEZH
REEARBOBIRBLEBRER
ZECEEBEDEARASEER
SR ZEESTEAAEESRKAR
BIBTHHEE - E-_T—+tF=ZA=
+—H FREEUZESIEHREEH
EHEARETRET -

FTREREEEERBLEBNRE
MEBEERER) SERZTEERLD
o

HRZESHNRE  AREEH AL R
EEFEE)  FPREEZEESHH
BA XN RERZESRENE
SRR ¢ R (i) A8 2 B 2 5T B A AR
EZESRENT WEZESALER

requirements. HERMENEERK
As all the relevant activities of the above entities require unanimous MR L BEEMARBEDFEREA
consent from all joint venture parties, they are accounted for as joint BRABIZEFH-—HARZR BEAERR
ventures. a&RA -
At March 31, 2017, included in the cost of investment in joint RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H FAEE
ventures is goodwill of HK$238,621,000 (2016: HK$251,481,000). A A AR ) PR 73238,621,0008 7T

(=

— N4 1 251,481,000 7T) ©
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of material
joint ventures

The summarised financial information below represents amounts
shown in the joint ventures’ consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of the Group’s joint ventures are accounted for using the equity

20 REERAZRE (&)

EEZERELAUBERBL

TXEINZHMBERBERRET AN
BREEARRZABRAHEAVBR
RTRE® -

AEBEMBRERRIRAERENZ

method in these consolidated financial statements. A HRRAALE:
& 45 R & 45 R
As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
= PR —T—RF
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FET AT
Current assets MEEE 1,336,543 1,230,978
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,974,780 2,979,936
Current liabilities mE) B E (2,108,494) (2,074,634)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (288,463) (389,310)
Net assets FEE - ,914,366 1,746,970
For the year ended March 31
BE=B=+t—HL
2017 2016
—EB—t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Revenue W25 1,626,386 1,540,080

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive FRmEAN(EE) RE2EKA (FX)

income (expense) for the year B

(256,153)

2016/17 8164 4&
R R IERERA T
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERAIZKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of material EESE LNTIHBER B M
joint ventures (Continued) (#8)
IR F01 3% 4% oh R (Continued) W F0 0545 PR ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the T ER M EENG S B RERE
carrying amount of the investments in joint ventures recognised in RZEERAIZREREMESHE

the consolidated financial statements:

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Net assets reported in the consolidated 42 & BA 7§ $R 2% AT 2 3RV 7105 45

financial statements of A4 1A % PRz EESFE 1,914,366 1,746,970
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBAFINEERR TR
interest in ME 843 R A e 8 75 tE 31 51% 51%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ANEERA B Q7 2 HEZHH
in the joint venture BREE 976,327 890,955
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERAIZKRE ({E)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of material BEESELQTMBEE R B
joint ventures (Continued) (#8)
Fujian Anran and its subsidiaries BEELZARENB AT
As at March 31
R=B=+-—H

2017 2016

S A = ¢
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THT

Current assets BB E 866,535 820,310
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,397,338 2,331,474
Current liabilities mE) B E (755,793) (797,732)
Non-current liabilities FERBER (567,023) (579,251)

Net assets BEFE m 1,774,801

For the year ended March 31
BE=B=+—HL

2017 2016

A = 7

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx AT

Revenue W 25 1,497,447 1,534,751

Profit and total comprehensive income 4 3 Fl| & & & g A 4228

for the year 323,477

Dividend received from Fujian Anran and  F RN B EE LT A R HHTE A 7 W B
its subsidiaries during the year 2B

)

352,096
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 200 REEQRIZEE (E)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of material EESE LNTIHBER B M
joint ventures (Continued) (#8)
Fujian Anran and its subsidiaries (Continued) EEZARENRB AT (E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the B A R B AR A B RS R R E
carrying amount of the investments in joint ventures recognised in RZEAEERAZIREREEYEE

the consolidated financial statements:

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Net assets reported in the consolidated 4 & B KRR ERBELT A

financial statements of Fujian Anran EEFE 1,941,057 1,774,801
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBREELAZER EER
interest in Fujian Anran Lk 1 49% 49%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interestin NEB N A E A 7 Z MR E
the joint venture

869,652

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually EARmElYEAZEERANETE
material: B}

For the year ended March 31
BE=HA=+—HL
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET

The Group’s share of profit N & B G % F 338,617 170,059

interests in these joint ventures AFTERAEE 3,484,642 3,309,724
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21.

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEQXRIZEE (#)
(CONTINUED)
Included in the balance of amounts due from joint ventures are HAEWAEBRAAIZEBEBERZER
loans of HK$38,636,000 (2016: HK$206,715,000) which are 38,636,000/ 7T (— & — /< £ : 206,715,000
unsecured, interest bearing at fixed rates 3.915% per annum (2016: BoT) JiEIKE IR E3915E(-FE —
5.10% to 5.81% per annum). The remaining balance is unsecured, NEFBFSI0EEL81E) 2 E T F X
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The balance is HE - EIRE . 28 AIRERKE
expected to be repayable within twelve months from the end of the EogmTETARNRERARE T @A
reporting period and shown under current assets. All balances are NEE Wt ARBEE BHNEEE
neither past due nor impaired at the reporting date as there has not EVESANE BEASEREEBES
been a significant change in credit quality and the Group believes BRI TFWE MR REBEE A
that the amounts are considered recoverable. R e HY RORE o
Included in the balance of amounts due to joint ventures of FAEBNABZERAIREZEH
HK$794,651,000 (2016: nil) are of non-trade nature, unsecured, 794,651,000 T(ZE—RF:B) R
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The remaining IESHEE  BEERF - RERIEERE
balance is of trade nature aged within 180 days based on invoice B - REESHEEBLEEHEER
date. wAE—aANTH-
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 2. At EZ2RE
As at March 31
R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—-t&E —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHEx AT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at ~ RA&E®E F 2 RAE S - IRAFE
fair value 5B 142,934 26,274
Unlisted equity securities, at cost less FELMBRAES RN AENNE
impairment (B E) 180,422 184,201
Club debenture, at fair value eHES  RAFESE 948 700

.!!I!!I 211,175

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair value. The
fair values of listed equity securities are based on quoted market
bid price. Change in fair value of the listed equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investments for the year ended
March 31, 2017 with a decrease of HK$21,794,000 (2016:
decrease of HK$11,042,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

REB LT ZBRABFTIIRAFEET
fRe FIRAZESRZAFETDIIREMRK
ZHBEBEABETE REBEE-_Z—tF
A=+ HLEFE WEEAAHY
EREZLFTRAZTL 2 AFEE D
21,794,000 L (ZF — R F - g
11,042,0008 70) Rér e Em R EM2mE
O

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

22.

(CONTINUED)

21.

Unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in
the PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at the end of
the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Club debentures are stated at fair value. Fair value of the club

debenture has been determined by reference to the bid prices
quoted in the second hand market. No fair value change was

recognised in both years.

GOODWILL

COST

At April 1, 2015

Arising on acquisitions of businesses
(note 38)

Exchange realignment

At March 31, 2016

Arising on acquisitions of businesses
(note 38)

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries

Exchange realignment

At March 31, 2017

22.

g
R-_ZE—RFMA—H
Bt B 7 (T 3E38)
3,25

R-_ZE—RF=A=+—H
B B UK 75 (M 7E38)

S B A B B R

AHEHEZRE (&)

FEETRAFE 25 70 B S AR S 2
ARBIET HRW|E R RLZKAHG
BEE RRAREAFEMTZHE
EAKX ARAEERR HAFET

ST FHEE -

EMEFDERAFEIR - EMESFZ
RFEDESE_FHEMBcEAE
B -ZmMEFEOYERIANFES
) o

[

T

HK$’000
FHET

2,505,688

109,341
(135,037)

2,479,992
1,002,453

(1,015)
(126,818)

3,354,612

The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and in the
financial year in which the acquisition takes place, or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

Impairment testing on goodwiill

Management considered the sales of piped gas and sales of LPG
business with each subsidiary represents a separate CGU for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing.

AEEREBFRNETREZVBFE
BelAREELTRE EEFREXHA
FERRERER - S EATAA -

[k RRER

EEERAS MAEREARAME &
MEAREEMRIEE KR AHRR
HEXBRRBURGELEM -
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22. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 22. & (8)
Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued) BHEHENR (E)
The carrying amounts of goodwill as at March 31, 2017 and 2016 RZE—tEFRZF—R"F=ZA=+—
are allocated as follows: AN ENREE BN T
As at March 31
MR=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T T

Sales of piped gas business withineach L T & B AT Z2EEBRSR

of the following subsidiaries HEXK
Clever Decision Enterprise Limited Clever Decision Enterprise Limited 140,105 147,656
BINF AR ERBR AT BMNFRE TR RERER QA 44,293 46,680
I RF AR B AR A A I RF AR ERER QA 15,363 16,191
WERIEE S ERER AT HMEBAEESEREBRA A 53,078 55,938
EEFMETmRRERER AT EAEFRHEmMRERERAA] 14,759 15,555
EER MR ERER AR EEHREmHRRERERAA 26,828 28,273
HARRIE AR EREGR AR HARBRETmRRERER QA 30,051 31,671
PR R SREERER A A PRPE R & EEIR AR A 115,719 121,955
I RERE iR AR AR I REEE RN R
BIRA A 31,927 33,647
China Gas — SK Energy Holdings Co., R —E B R EE BRI A R A Al
Limited 90,072 94,926
Fortune Gas Investment Holdings Limited & A 55,18 & 12 % B 'R A & 848,307 894,024
EHMIMRAR AR A A E MM R AR A 18,405 19,397
EEEHEAMRERAR (EAMR) GCHEMEAMRRERAF
(TEAKRED 116,329 122,599
ENPRBEIMRERAT (‘BN EIL) EMAMBIMRERAF
(E:3:i=pan)) 16,475 17,363
BT B TARERER AT BETRETHRRERERA A
("R (DB R 147,053 =

REE BRELEESMEREEAR AR and RZE BREAESMAE
China Gas Hong Kong Company Limited BRARMRAMREBER

(formerly known as: SK E&S — SINO A7) (ATF8 : SKE&S — SINO

HongKong Corporation Limited) (“Z/& A HongKong Corporation Limited)

RER) ([BEMRER]) 423,520 -
Beijing Gas Development Limited ERERBR QA

(“Beijing Gas”) (TbRE k) 310,227 -
sRMILIRIR R B R A T (formerly known as:  $8 M LR IR R AR A 7

A RIERER IR R A R A ) (RITE - A ARIE R (87 N)

(dERRERIN") MR AR AR (TERRER M ]) 118,559 =
Other CGUs EMIBeEESN 240,214 250,968

2,801,284 1,896,843
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22. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Sales of LPG business within each of

the following subsidiaries EpS
EEHRh IR Hxﬁﬁﬂ EEPHERIERERAT
EEERMEERA EBERMBERAA
5%?@%%’@%@&%%@257 BEREERREEBERAQDA

Panva Gas Holdings Limited

kS

Total goodwill

UTEMEBARZRICBHREE

Panva Gas Holdings Limited

22. B2 (&)

As at March 31

W=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
208,447 219,681
24,791 26,128
41,848 44,103
278,242 293,237

l!!l!! 2,479,992

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flows forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by management for the next five
years. The CGUs cash flows beyond the 5-year period until the
expiry of the relevant operation period or exclusive rights ranging
from 15 to 30 years are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2016: 3%)
growth rate for CGUs in the natural gas business and 5% (2016: 5%)
for CGUs in the LPG business. The financial budgets and growth
rates are estimated according to the stage of each operation with
reference to the development curve of the natural gas business and
LPG business in the PRC region. The pre-tax rates used to
discount the forecast cash flows for CGUs are from 14% to 17%
(2016: 13% to 15%). In the opinion of the directors, no material
impairment loss is identified for both years. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of CGUs to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of CGUs.

ReELSU 2z R RERNRERE
BEE-TEEREEITERKRAEA
EEZ2FHX EREREHREGRE
ERAE ERERRBRAAFGEEE
ZEHERRCELEBENZBERRZ
BATLL RAEFFFME - ERETREXAE
HERET EELYHLEERNARAB
FEGIRBEEMSRR 2SS METE

REBBRBEEEREBMERKRAF 2&A
My KEEREACREEE - BEX
AREBRRIEABAREBLFHRER
ZHEALZHHENBREERBAHT
FISENFIF)ER R ELEM
ReRBADFIRARBEEREI% (=
T—RNF:3%) KE5%(ZE—RNF :5%)
ETHEE MBEEEREREDIRES
E¥BoEREBRRELZREME 2 X
AREBRRIEABARER 2 ERME
st ARERAREEAEMZ TR
REREWMHOLEER4A%E1TR(ZE —
NFE AB%EE%) NE-EERAE N

ZMEFEREE R HRREER -
EEERRALBRZEMEIEARE
ENEHHTSERRSELEUZRE
A {E B 48 F] o] Y (B (E -
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23. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23 Htt B EE

Exclusive
rights of Production
natural gas sharing Technology Customer
operation rights rights Relationship Total
RRREKZ £E
BREERE o R ¥ i 1 EFBR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET THET TER

COST 5%
At April 1, 2015 R-_ZE—RA%&MA—H 2,088,730 1,151,332 59,947 16,519 3,316,528
Exchange adjustments [ i, & (112,567) (62,048) (3,231) (890) (178,736)
Addition NE 821 62,656 - - 63,477
Acquired on acquisition of 4 B 2 #5 F7 15 (Kff 5£38)

businesses (note 38) 178,577 — — — 178,577
At March 31, 2016 R-_E—R"E=ZA=+—H 2,155,561 1,151,940 56,716 15,629 3,379,846
Exchange adjustments RIS (118,105) (58,906) (2,900) (799) (180,710)
Addition NE 56 89,399 — — 89,455
Acquired on acquisition of Ui 8 % 7 B 15 ([T 5£38)

businesses (note 38) 105,038 — — — 105,038
At March 31, 2017 R-_ZE—+tF=A=+—H 2,142,550 1,182,433 53,816 14,830 3,393,629
AMORTISATION #a
At April 1, 2015 RZZE—RFMA—H 232,834 2,398 3,807 12,989 252,028
Exchange adjustments ~ fE i, 58 % (12,548) (130) (205) (700)  (13,583)
Charge for the year FAEH 70,625 7,770 1,284 1,500 81,179
At March 31, 2016 R-_E—X"E=A=+—8H 290,911 10,038 4,886 13,789 319,624
Exchange adjustments & i, 3§ 2 (14,880) (513) (250) (705)  (16,348)
Charge for the year FREHH 73,002 7,170 5,485 1,500 87,157
At March 31, 2017 R-ZZE—tF=A=+—8H 349,033 16,695 10,121 14,584 390,433

CARRYING VALUES BREE
At March 31, 2017 RZZE—+tF=A=+—H 1,793,517 1,165,738 43,695 246 3,003,196

At March 31, 2016 RZE—A~"E=A=+—H 1,864,650 1,141,902 51,830 1,840 3,060,222
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23.

24.

— &= A=+—AILEE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Note: The exclusive rights of natural gas operation, technology rights and
customer relationship are amortised on a straight-line method over
the period of 30 years, 40 years and 10 years respectively.

Production sharing right represents the right under the production
contract entered between a subsidiary of the Group and a PRC entity
for the exploitation and development of a coal-bed methane resource
in the PRC (“CBM Project”) under an exclusive right granted by the
PRC government to explore, develop and produced coal-bed
methane with that PRC entity as joint operation partner up to 2029.
The Group has a 50% participating stake in the CBM Project.
Production sharing right is amortised by using the units of production
method based on the expected proven reserve to be extracted during
the contractual period.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES

Included in the balance of amounts due from associates are loans
of HK$1,704,000 (2016: HK$14,200,000) which are unsecured,
interest bearing at fixed rates of 6% per annum (2016: 6% per
annum). The remaining balance of HK$13,493,000 (2016:
HK$52,096,000) are of trade nature aged within 180 days based
on invoice date and a dividend receivable of HK$239,818,000 (2016:
HK$34,244,000). A credit period of 30 to 180 days is granted to
these trade customers. The balance is expected to be repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
shown under current assets. All balances are neither past due nor
impaired at the reporting date as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the Group believes that the amounts
are considered recoverable.

Balance of amounts due to associates of HK$100,939,000 (2016:
nil) are of trade nature and aged within 180 days based on invoice
date.

24.

HtEPEE (&)

Mia : RAREB 2 BRIEEHE RITERE
P EE S BIR304F - 404 K105 2 B
BARAEBET AEH -

EESREREASE—HHMEB AR H
— AR EEERRESEBRTE LA
ZHHECEX(ERAREERE) BR
MBEREERERNBREEENE
RERBETERAERERIKERE
BNDRTUMAEEANET ZERZ AR
PE_T-_NF -AKENKEREEB
HHEO% S HEiEm - EEDKERER
BHHABRRNERERAREE
RAEESLEFREH

FE U FE 13 Bt & D B KR

FABUBERARBEBEBZER
1,704,000 7t (= F — /X F 1 14,200,000
BIL) DEEE KRB FeE(ZZ
—ANF:BFeE)ZEEAMEF B -
#8 £813,493,0008 (= T — X F:
52,096,000/ T ) B & % 1t & R e

HEEQHLTIS0E RN A K EK
B 5239,818,000/8 L ( = T — /X F ¢

34,244,000 7L) - AEBHZEESHIE
FRF¥30BE180B 2z EH - 458
SAEREERETZMARNEERE I
FAARHEE - AN EEEZTESE X
W BAEEBEEUSBERENT
o R BREBH R EEE)
FiBE®REESARRE -

JFE 1 B8 B8 2 &) 4% & FXTE 2 100,939,000 7%
T(ZE—ARF:R)BEFHHEARRK
REEHHELET180A A ©
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25. INVENTORIES 25. 7 €8

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET

Construction materials 2 577,076 504,888
Consumables, spare parts, gas appliances 4 # @ ~ B - MBS AR

and other materials H L 404,499 323,617
Natural gas KAR, 158,973 110,068
LPG AL AR 538,340 274,543

1,678,888 1,213,116
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: 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR  26. EWW () FEF2E NI

CONTRACT WORK ™I

As at March 31
R=BA=+-—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET

Contracts in progress at end of the RMERRCEREL
reporting period:

Contract costs incurred plus recognised B E 4 2 & 4952 N 2 7 225 7
profits less recognised losses B R EE 3,435,100 2,714,333
Less: Progress bilings B A R (2,342,186) (2,103,044)

1,092,914 611,289

Analysed for reporting purposes as: E2 B ® DT :
Amounts due from customers for BWEEZ2A#ITERE
contract work 1,738,107 1,136,446
Amounts due to customers for ENEFZAEHIRERE
contract work (645,193) (625,157)
- ,092,914 611,289
At March 31, 2017 and 2016, there was no retention monies held RZE—tFRZE—R"F=ZA=+—
by customers for contract work performed. At March 31, 2017, A TERBREBEHREFRBETZE
advances received from customers for contract work not yet HIEMBBE - RZFE—EF=A=+
commenced amounted to HK$377,169,000 (2016: HK$548,345,000) —B EAMHARERAZEHNIREEPI
which were included in trade and other payables in note 30. Bl 7 3 5377,169,00058 ;L ( — & — /X

F 1 548,345,000/ 7v) + A B 1 A 5E30
MESREMENKRE-
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Accumulated allowances

Trade receivables

Deposits paid for construction and
other materials

Deposits paid for purchase of natural gas
and LPG

Advance payments to sub-contractors

Rental and utilities deposits

Other tax recoverable

Other receivables and deposits

Prepaid operating expenses

Amounts due from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

Total trade and other receivables

27. ES R HMEWIRE
As at March 31
R=A=+-A8
2017 2016
= P T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FH& T
& 5 FE U BR 3K 2,407,026 1,814,935
B RETEAE (379,289) (394,188)
Z 5 FE W BR 3K 2,027,737 1,420,747
IREEMMEENIZS
379,795 418,902
BERAIERELAHRR
BN & 909,187 763,441
BN T EE KA 739,990 611,011
Hek RAEEES 190,736 174,462
H b, 7] U 8] %4 18 337,174 254,074
Hib U BRIE RiE € 1,077,147 1,068,245
AN EERX 380,223 350,226
JE W BfT B8 1 R FE 45 AR 4 25 FRIE
25,004 32,770

B REMERRIERRE

6,066,993 5,093,878

Other than certain major customers with good repayment history

BETHNREHRIZIETFPEASE
BEFAERREEHR Y BHKN - K

which the Group allows a longer credit period or settlement by
instalment basis, the Group generally allows an average credit
period of 30 to 180 days to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
impairment losses presented based on invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

0-180 days 0&180H
181-365 days 1812 365H
Over 365 days 365 H A

EE-MBMAEESEFIRHETFHI0E
180 ZZEH -

RERR REZAHEIN2ZEFHE
WHR (B REBR) 2 Kk o
™~

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAET
1,794,627 1,191,176
168,785 148,515

64,325 81,056

1,420,747

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The trade receivables with carrying amount of HK$1,794,627,000
(2016: HK$1,191,176,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the
reporting date for which the Group believes that the amounts are
considered recoverable.

The Group has policies for allowance of bad and doubtful debts
which are based on the evaluation of collectability and age analysis
of accounts and on the management’s judgment including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group made a reversal
of allowance of HK$1,289,000 (2016: an allowance of
HK$31,852,000) in respect of the trade receivables related to the
gas pipeline construction business and LPG business, which was
received during the year (2016: was past due at the reporting date
with long age and slow repayments were received from respective
customers since the due date. The directors of the Company
considered the related receivables may be impaired and specific
allowance is made).

olak
—|=0
ey
85 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
a
5 MEMBEHmKMEE
gE For the year ended March 31,2017 #{Z - —+HF =A==+ —HILFE
T
(@]

7. BB REMEWIRE ()

B8R (B 1,794,627,000/8 7T (— T — /X 4F
1,191,176,00078 7T) 2 & 5 & W IR 3R A 3k
ST ESHIEERE MASXE
HBEZERETHR AR -

AEE 2 RIBRBHBRTIREE R R
EHERZFERERZEHED T AR
BFEREYHEREREPAB ZERE
N R MWGREE 2 #I B -

REE-_ZT—+FE=A=1t—HILEE
N AEERERIEEERELEH
2 B 5 & W RR X 1E 11,289,000 T 2
BE (=T — N4 : 31,852,000/ 7T 2 B
#) ZSEREERAFERE(ZF—
ANE RFEAHOCHEE HERAER
BEEBEFEXRFAYEUARZEREE
g - ARREERAE BRI FKIAR
SRE WIER T EE) -

i)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RIZRREBE 2B

As at March 31

MR=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at the beginning of the year F 394,188 375,685
Exchange differences bE 5 =58 (13,610) (13,349)
(Credit) charge for the year F A (T A) 0k (1,289) 31,852
Balance at the end of the year F IR 4E 85 379,289 394,188
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
The trade receivables past due but not provided for impairment
were either subsequently settled as at the date these consolidated
financial statements were authorised for issuance or no historical
default of payments by the respective customers. The concentration
of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. Accordingly, the directors of the Company believe that
there is no further credit provision required in excess of the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors, with a
carrying amount of HK$233,110,000 (2016: HK$229,571,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amount are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these trade receivable is 349 days
(2016: 365 days) as at March 31, 2017.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

180-365 days
Over 365 days

18023865 H
365 H LA E

7. BB REMEWIRE (&)

HEE HRYRRETREE  NEH
EEBEHRUERZERERBEE
MAEHEREEREAHHM2E
& - BEERFHREZE S EK
BRREREBRNAGAM B RRERE
TEZADEN ABRLEBEAER
BB cEP ARETFPE#EREAX
RAETNEEE HEEETFRRER &
o ARREFHEBERRERRME
PAOMNE — BIRBHE B & -

AEECESERERTREREE
233,110,000/ 7. 2 R K (Z & — X F ¢
229,571,000/ 7T) - 2 ERERHE R
HoeBe BEAEEENEELEEERE
BAEESBEMWEATRE M s R
REREEHE ASEBTERZSES
EEEEMER R_T—+F=F=+
—H ZESESRRERZEHERERA
349H (ZZF—7"%F :365H) °

EEBERIIEREZE S BKERZ
BREC DT

As at March 31

R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
S T AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
168,785 148,515
64,325 81,056

!!!Il!l 229,571

The non-trade balances of amounts due from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

R BRREERER 2 EE HEH
HREER REHEEREREER-

2016/17 81 k=
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28.

29.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Equity securities at fair value listed in
Hong Kong

28.

BAFEAEZEALMBRAES

BFEEERE
As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FA&T
11,364

Held-for-trading investments as at March 31, 2017 and March 31,
2016, represent equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The fair
values of the investments are determined based on the quoted
market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange. The fair value of
held-for-trading investments was classified as Level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less and carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01%
t0 2.80% per annum (2016: 0.01% to 2.80% per annum).

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting
to HK$517,676,000 (2016: HK$275,554,000) have been pledged
to secure short-term bank loans and undrawn short-term facilities
and are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank
deposits carry fixed interest rates of 1.55% to 4.79% (2016: 1.55%
to 2.80%) per annum.

The details of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash which are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group entities are set out
below:

At March 31, 2017

At March 31, 2016

29.

RZB—+tF=RA=+—-HBKRZE—X
FZAZT - HORKFEEERERENE
BLEMZBRAES ZFEREZAFE
ERNBXMABzTHEBMET - #
FEBEREZAFEIERAFERER
E—Ae

EEBETER BRITLEF
KRz

BOEFELReEAEEREZE S
PEARN=ZEASHARNE 2 EEET
B EZSF00IEEZ280E(ZZE— X
£ HF001EE280E) 2 THHF Xt

=1
o

EEBETEREARNESEE AL
ExHRTBREMBERFETZE
3K °517,676,00078 7T ( = T — X F:
275,554,000/ 70 ) 2 17 3K B 1E 5 # LA B
SREBETERERARRZEHRE
Ao EARSDEE BIEMRITHER
HEFEIS5EZRL4TIE (T — K&
F155E2£280E) 2 EEFEF B ©

AEBASHEEEECEZEEE N
Shz EWFHE 2 BRI RITHFRIARIR
THRERREZFBHIET :

usbD HK$
E BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
equivalent
HER
164,183 75,857
576,566 101,695

e sans @it tmEna,
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZ REMEMIRE
Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade BEREMENEEREESFESTE LT
purchases and ongoing costs. The following is an aged analysis of BRAZ RESHE - RBEH R - IR
trade and other payables presented based on the invoice date at BRELQHINNE SR EMENMNEEY
the end of the reporting period: BEW DM T
As at March 31
R=ZA=+-—H

2017 2016
—EB—tHF —E—RF
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FTET T T

0-90 days 0Z290H 3,078,423 2,885,375
91-180 days 91%F 180 H 558,837 427,899
Over 180 days 180H LA £ 1,368,979 1,605,916
Trade and bill payables B SRR R EMNZE 5,006,239 4,919,190
Other payables and accrued charges HiENRIBREFE A 569,243 553,768
Consideration payable ERRE 550,964 =
Construction fee payables ENIREER 586,801 514,591
Other tax payables FE {~F o Ath F 1B 84,143 72,087
Accrued staff costs Bt B TR A 76,234 105,797
Loan interest payables FENERF B 109,098 134,332
Advance payments from customers KERE 2 AN HIE 2,013,342 1,469,674
Advances received from customers for BERHEABHAZEL
contract work that have not yet been TREEFPWE Z 2R
started 377,169 548,345
Amounts due to non-controlling interests & {< it 8 A &) JE 1% IR 25 20 1B
of subsidiaries 276,572 231,673
9,649,805 8,549,457
All of the balances were aged within 90 days based on invoice date REZHARELE  MTAEHAKRKREKROKX
and the average credit period is 90 days. BTFHEEHROKX -
The non-trade balances of amounts due to non-controlling interests FENWEB AR IEERER T IEE F &R
of subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable BEIRIE . B R AREREEE-
on demand.

31. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 3. BB AT EERESS

INTEREST OF A SUBSIDIARY i)
The amount was unsecured, bearing fixed-rate interest at 2% per S E A IREFR2ES S R
annum, repayable on demand and denominated in Japanese Yen BRI R AERSE -

(“JPY”).
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32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

2. RTRHEMEE

As at March 31

R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F & T FET

Bank and other borrowings comprise RITRHMEEREATSHE
the following:

Bank borrowings RITEE 17,498,605 15,601,734
Other borrowings Hip g 6,119,830 6,732,448
23,618,435 22,334,182
Secured Vgt 2,733,449 3,900,794
Unsecured 48 3K 4 20,884,986 18,433,388

23,61 8,435 22,334,182

As at March 31, 2017, included in other borrowings are two
corporate bonds of HK$1,170,848,000 (approximately RMB1
billion) and HK$2,270,030,000 (approximately RMB2 billion)
respectively (2016: HK$1,166,922,000 (approximately RMBH1
billion)). The first batch of corporate bonds of RMB1 billion were
issued with a term of 3 years with coupon and effective interest rate
of 4.2% per annum issued through private placement on January
13, 2016. Another batch of corporate bonds of RMB2 billion were
issued with a term of 5 years with a fixed coupon rate of 3.05% per
annum issued to qualified investors through public issuance in the
PRC on October 27, 2016. The two batches of corporate bonds
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange commencing February
19, 2016 and November 8, 2016 respectively. Remaining balances
are unlisted corporate bonds issued in the PRC and other
borrowings from independent third parties.

R-EB—+F=A=+—H8 #AHEM
B EEH M=KD 5 A1,170,848,000%5
L (8 A R #1018 7t ) & 2,270,030,000
BIL(HWARB20ET)(ZF — K
1,166,922,0007% 7t (#) A R 1018 7L) &
AIfEH - Bt ARBI0OE TR RES
B A=FIR-_E—XE—A+=
AEBLBERERTT BEMNXRER
MERBEFLI2% - 5 —H ARB201ET
RAESFERHARF HETEEF
RAEGEIB% R_E—NE+ A=
THtEEBARBTARBETFHRESE
BERLEE - ZARBESHR AT —
NEZAT+ABEZZ—XRF+—AN
AR ESELFIZA LT -2 T &8
ARPREBETHELTRARGESREAM
RKEABIE=ZHNEE -
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32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the above
borrowings is as follows:

Within one year

More than one year, but not exceeding
two years

More than two years, but not exceeding
five years

More than five years

Less: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

Borrowings comprise:

Fixed-rate borrowings
Floating-rate borrowings
— London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus 0.80% to 2.12%
(2016: 1.75%-2.35%)

— Base rate of People’s Bank of China

EfEFRZBBERMT

%

—FR
ZR—FETBBRAF

SHRMEETEBRF

ZRAF

o —FRAEBI A RS

BEZHA

— R Z KR

G Ct

pur

o o

— fm A I B F =
S MM0.80E E2 128
—E—RF175EE
2.358)

— B A RIRTT AR K

32. RITRHMEE (&)

As at March 31

MR=A=+—H
2017 2016
=B — T ~F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
10,873,256 10,324,484
4,739,895 2,093,984
4,486,561 8,188,859
3,618,723 1,726,855
23,618,435 22,334,182
10,873,256 10,324,484
12,745,179 12,009,698
7,738,621 4,005,862
6,255,927 5,310,290
9,623,887 13,018,030

During the year ended March 31,

HK$11,522,131,000, which was denominated in USD was early R
repaid.

23,61 8,435 22,334,182

2016, amount of RBE-F-RF=A=+-HILF
A2 7T EHE 1) 30E 11,522,131,0005%

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

32. RITRHMEE (&)

AEBEEE
RETHIH &)

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

ZEBRMNENGEE (A
0

contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows: T

As at March 31

MR=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
Effective interest rate per annum: BERFERE
Fixed-rate borrowings EBEE 2.02%-4.59% 2.00%-6.55%
Floating-rate borrowings FEE 1.44%-8.13% 3.29%-9.00%

AEERESEEEEERZIEEE N
S BB EZEREFBHIINT

The details of the Group’s borrowings which are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities are set out below:

usb HKD JPY EURO
EY BT HE |/
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET THET TET
equivalent equivalent equivalent equivalent
£E EE £E £E
At March 31, 2017 RZZE—tF
=A=+—H 815,550 881,651 544,511 18,175
At March 31, 2016 RZE—RF
=A=+—H 1,014,068 = 553,590 22,515
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B
Convertible
Ordinary shares preference shares Total
ZER AR E LR #Et
No. of shares No. of shares
'000 at ’000 at
HK$0.01 each  HK$'000 HK$1.00 each HK$'000 HK$'000
Bk =il
M {E0.0145 7T E{E0.01/8 T

MTEREE TET ®BTEREZE TET TEZX

Authorised JRTE 9,000,000 90,000 124,902 124,902 214,902
Issued and fully paid: BETRHR
At April 1, 2015 R-ZEE—hFE
MH—H 5,001,838 50,019 — — 50,019
Repurchase of shares (Note) 3] B & 1 (Fff 5%) (91,454) ©15) = = (919)
At March 31, 2016 RZTE—RF
=A=+—H 4,910,384 49,104 — — 49,104
Issuance of shares BT D
(Note 38(A)(v)) (B 5= 38(A)(v)) 110,823 1,108 - — 1,108
Repurchase of shares (Note) @ 8 A% 1 (Fff 3%)) (52,688) (627) = = (627)
At March 31, 2017 R —+F
=A=+—H 4,968,519 49,685 — — 49,685
The new shares issued rank pari passu with the existing shares in BETHRNS T EHERERO =6

all respects. F = -
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 33. BRA& (&)

Note: During the year ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as follows:

Mad HE—_T—tFR-_FT-RE=ZRA=
T—HIEFE  RARE B AOE

EBHFZBRHWMAT :
No. of
ordinary Price per share Aggregated
shares ERE® repurchased
Month of repurchase E % A5 of HK$0.01 highest lowest costs
FRO0.01B T
LZEREAE &S R W E R A
HK$'000
FHET
For the year ended BE-Z—tH
March 31, 2017 =SA=t—HLEE
November 2016 —E—R~"F+—A 3,264,000 10.28 10.12 33,416
December 2016 —E—X"E+=A 47,192,000 10.54 9.97 481,433
January 2017 —E—+F—f8 2,232,000 11.38 10.52 23,746
For the year ended BE-_S—X&
31 March 2016 =A=+—HBLEE
July 2015 —_ZTZ—RF+tA 27,934,000 12.00 10.74 313,741
August 2015 —E—RENA 7,438,000 11.88 10.36 81,644
September 2015 —Z—RFNA 1,628,000 10.64 10.36 17,109
October 2015 —E—RHFE+A 174,000 10.98 10.44 1,875
December 2015 —ZT—hF+=A 6,722,000 10.42 10.06 69,056
January 2016 —E—XRFE—A8 38,984,000 10.22 9.15 383,631
February 2016 —ZET—XRF¥_A 8,574,000 9.47 9.11 80,213
34. RESERVES 34. f#1E
As at March 31
R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—EB—+t5F —E—RF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Translation reserve BERE
At the beginning of the reporting period 7 i & HA 4] (26,225) 792,119
Exchange differences arising on translation [ #: & ifi & 4 7 & i, = &8 (1,078,487) (818,344)
At the end of the reporting period R EHR (1,104,712) (26,225)
Investment revaluation reserve RESHES
At the beginning of the reporting period 7 i &5 HA 47 30,776 36,355
Decrease in fair value on AIEHEZRERAFERD
available-for-sale investments (21,794) (11,042)
Reclassification adjustment for the REERIHHEZRER
cumulative loss included in profit or loss 5t A2 2 2t EE 2
upon disposal of available-for-sale B D AFE
investments 5,463
At the end of the reporting period Rk & HA R - 30,776




35. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

m¥aE

Financial liabilities

Cross currency interest rate swap contract 32 X & # 5| K5 H1 & 49

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

. PTEE®mI A
As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
4,500

In order to manage the Group’s foreign currency exposure and
interest rate exposure in relation to the Group’s borrowings which
are denominated in USD, the Group entered into a cross currency
interest rate swap contract to buy US$ for RMB.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has an outstanding
cross currency interest rate swap contract with an aggregate
notional amount of US$28 million (2016: US$35 million) that require
the Group to buy US$ for RMB at exchange rate of RMB6.534 (2016:
RMB6.534) for US$1 and the floating interest rate is 6 month
LIBOR + 0.175% per annum to fixed rate of 5.52% per annum with
maturity periods to be matched with the maturity periods of the
relevant borrowings.

The cross currency interest rate swap is measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period which is determined by reference to
the prices as quoted by the counterparty financial institution.

REEAREEAEUNXTHEZAEH
fEEMIINERR KA KRR - AEBEE
URXEEREEMELH UARER
AZETT e

RBEEHER AE@M RFHPRINEE
FEBEHANNBEEESE 28008 %
TL(ZZT— K& 35008FE L) HEAR
SEE1IEZETLH ARKEBS3M4IL(ZE —
NEFE ARG ZIERUARE
BAZET MTFEHFHNEA6HEABHK
BITEEREEIN0ATSEEEE FF &
5.52/E - AAMR B4R A 8 B ) HRR AR AL o

TNEEFREMRBRE P RRELE
WEHLMEBHREERTETHAT
{Ese -

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36. IEEH I

The following is the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and UNTAEREAKBERFERAMBERFEZ
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years. CHAEEHREBE(EE) ALARBE
& o
Fair value Impairment
adjustment on trade
on property, receivables
Revaluation plant and and amounts Impairment
Accelerated on equipment due from on property,
tax investment and prepaid Tax Intangible  customers for plant and
depreciation properties lease payments losses assets  contract work equipment Total
n¥- BER EE) U
REUREN RARER
mE RE HEREZ EFZAH Y% BER
BERE MEER ATERE BEFA BREE IBRRERE RERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL FET FiET TET FEL FiET TET
At April1, 2015 i
mA—H a7 28,199 140,365 (14,762) 580,513 (124,489) - 610,297
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A% - - 156 - (2,028) (2,189) - (4,057)
Charge (credit) to profitor ~ FRR B MK

loss for the year (%) (K zE10)

(note 10) - 817 (4,663) 231 (17,751) (8,328) (31,104) (60,798)
Acquisition of businesses Ut B Z 7% - - - - 44,645 - - 44,645
At March 31, 2016 RZE—RF

=A=t-8 471 29,016 135,858 (14,531) 605,379 (135,002) (31,104) 590,087
Exchange adjustments EH A% - - 130 - (1,638) 1,933 1,562 1,987
Charge (credit) to profitor 4 A Bz 1K

loss for the year (%) (K3E10)

(note 10) = 6,289 (6,341) (6,637) (18,282) 307 1,687 21,977)
Acquisition of businesses 4 & ¥ 7% = - 2,599 - 1,354 - - 3,953
At March 31, 2017 R-Z—+F

ZA=+-H 47 35,305 133,246 (21,168) 586,813 (132,762) (27,855) 574,050
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 36. BT IE ()

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets LT IEE =
Deferred tax liabilities L IE A&

REJNEEMBMRRERME & TEL
MEBEEENABEC THEE - AT AR
BHEMm s 2 ERBIBEEHRDH

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, withholding
tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profit earned by
PRC subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onward. No deferred
taxation has been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC entities amounting to
HK$16,239,199,000 (2016: HK$11,868,356,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

All'joint ventures and associates established in the PRC are held
directly by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC which are therefore not subject to the
above-mentioned withholding tax.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of HK$5,526,864,000 (2016: HK$4,932,062,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$128,288,000 (2016:
HK$88,062,000) of the tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised for the remaining estimated tax losses of
HK$5,398,576,000 (2016: HK$4,844,000,000) due to the
uncertainty of future profits streams. Included in unrecognised
estimated tax losses are losses of HK$3,361,606,000 (2016:
HK$3,001,303,000) that will expire in 5 years from the year of
origination which is ranged from 2017 to 2021 (2016: 2016 to
2020). Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
= LR T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
160,617 166,106
(734,667) (756,193)
(5690,087)
BERABECEMESENE BZZTTN\F

—RA—B& s EHEQR TR
ZE MM EIRZ RS BB TEM -

BEVMBHRERITERPFECER T E
#116,289,199,0007 L ( = T — X F
11,868,356,000 % 7T ) 2 H B = 58 1F 1 IR
ﬁ%ﬁl&i%ﬁ'@%ﬂi%labl%@@
TRERERBE BEREERAE
SRAI R REE -

PrERRBEIRIHNAEE QR R E QA
BRAKEAEPERIZET2EMNE
RABEEFA BB ASM £l 8
T o

RBEBHR ANEBITAUEKBE R
KepfzhBatRDARBEBEA
5,5626,864,000/8 L( = T — N F:
4,932,062,0007% 7T ) ° E Bt 128,288,000
BL(ZZ — /X 188,062,000 L) 2
MEEERRECHBEBEE - BHR X
RHEFRBFE S THET EHRGEAHE
/&5 185,398,576,000/8 7L ( = & — /N F ¢
4,844,000,0007%8 7T ) I & FERIELE T 1HE
E e ﬂﬁwfa;r%mﬁléﬂaqﬂ@%@UA
EF:? +tEEZT=—F(=ZF

JNE —RNEE-T-_TFHM) L
FH5F WE 2 3,361,606,00078 T (= &
— 7N 4F -3,001,303,0007% 76 ) &5 48 ©

B 18 AT #E PR B A5 85 o
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37. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES

(A)

Acquisition of additional interest in

subsidiaries in 2017

The Group entered into sale and purchase agreements with
the respective holders of the remaining equity interests
holders of certain subsidiaries in the PRC for a total
consideration of RMB133,386,000 (approximately
HK$151,575,000). The difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the additional interest
acquired by the Group of HK$127,400,000 was credited to
equity as capital reserve during the year ended March 31,
2017.

Acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiaries in 2016

The Group entered into sale and purchase agreements with
the respective holders of the remaining equity interests
holders of certain subsidiaries in the PRC for a total
consideration of RMB132,091,000 (approximately

HK$158,193,000). The difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the additional interest
acquired by the Group of HK$103,591,000 was credited to
equity as capital reserve during the year ended March 31,
2016.

37. W BB Fff /B 2 B #E /M

(A)

(B)

R-ZZE-—tFRBHWED
A #EMERS

AEBERETHRERNBRAAZ
BTHRARZSBZHEAAR
@R E AR 133,386,000 7T ( 49
151,675,008 L) R L BEE i - B
SR (E B AR 5 B BT U B RE O A
%= 8% M (B 2 % %8127,400,000% 7T
REE-_TE—ttF=ZA=+—H
IFFEURERREET AR -

REZZBE-R"FREBEHED
A #E SN R

AEEBHEREFTHREMNBRAAZ
BTHRARZSBZHEEAR
mARE AR 132,091,000 ( 4
158,193,000/ /L) E] (L BE B 1 7% ©
B X R B 8K 5 E AT RS A
7 %5 BR M (B 2 = %8103,591,000%
TRBE-ZZE—"EF=ZA=+—
HIEFEULERREEHT AR -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2017

(i) On August 23, 2016, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
89.55% equity interest of JEFIH A at a consideration
of RMB194,136,000 (approximately HK$223,145,000).
The acquisition was completed on January 1, 2017, on
that date the control in EEIFR KA was passed to the
Group. ERGFH#R is principally engaged in natural gas
and gas pipeline construction business. The directors
of the Company considered that the acquisition will
bring about a further synergy effect of the existing
business of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash B

38. XK UWEE
A R-ZZE—LtFEBRBWNEN
BARIWBER

RZE—R"FEFNRAR=Z+=
A A&BZWEBRQRHES
NE=ZFEIMLWE DS
Bt AEEWRBEBERS MR
289.55% % AN #E &= KB
B A R 194,136,000 7 ( 49
223,145,000/ 7T) - WE B R
—E—+F—HF—H=mEMK"
RE B B
EBREAEE - BEEPME
ENERAREBRRRE
EREREB - ARTESR
BRBEBEBEAASERE
E¥BEREZHRKE-

EERNAE
HK$'000

THET

223,145

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A R=ZZE—LtFEBWEK
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
()  (Continued) 0  (#&)

Provisional fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition recognised by the

Group:
Property, plant and equipment M- BB REE
Inventories FE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b U AR 18
Bank balances and cash ROEFLERS
Trade and other payables B hHEHAMENEEE
Non-controlling interests I AR =
Goodwil (EES

A 55 B R W O R 2 I
BEERMAERBENE
2 AFHE:

HK$’'000
TET

42,222
15,908
19,819
30,587
(23,564)

84,972
(8,880)
147,058

223,145

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to the property, plant
and equipment.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$19,819,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

LB BER NI G E
BLEREE  NAFRESHE
BYE BEEKRBZEXRM
ERHEE -

REER MAECESRE
MEKREBEATFERANE
%8 519,819,000/8 7T » A Ut B8
BHEHEZKESEOR S
M BEE-AT -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ## W k& (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A R-ZZE—LtFEBRBWNEN
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) BATWBER (&)
()  (Continued) 0o (&
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMELE 2B E
HK$’000
T T
Consideration transferred BEENE 228,145
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets W FTBE R B RFEE 2
acquired, net of non-controlling interests NF(E - MR IR E R (76,092)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEEZEE 147,053
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of &g £ was Welg B m R R E & 2
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales of BDDERERATHEER
natural gas and gas pipeline construction business. MR EBRERER 2EH
BF|EES -
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was T HA I A 5z 1B UL T E A
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Z BRI BIIE -
Non-controlling interests FERERS
The non-controlling interests in J#Eg & recognised at RWE AR 2 BERE R RIE
the date of the acquisition was measured by reference EREZEX2ZHENHRBE R
to the respective proportionate shares of recognised RIEEFENSHEEEER
amounts of net assets of relevant subsidiary and & %8 It fl 5 2 48,880,000

amounted to HK$8,880,000. JC °
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase

M

38. Wi (&)
R-ZZE—-—tFEBWEHK

(A)

of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) BArrWEE®K(E)
(Continued) o (&
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition KEMELEZEESREH
FH
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Tk RTEF RS 30,587
Cash consideration ReRE (223,149)
(192,558)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the KWBHASEEEBEZTE

(i)

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2017 was HK$5,426,000 attributable to the acquisition
of JERHHA. Revenue of PR included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2017
amounted to HK$48,370,000.

On March 31, 2016, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of ESHR KRR AREE AR A A
(EB#R”) at a consideration of RMB11,774,000
(approximately HK$13,533,000). The acquisition was
completed on July 1, 2016, on that date the control in
ESE8E was passed to the Group. EFSHED is
principally engaged in natural gas and gas pipeline
construction business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring about a
further synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

(i)

HE-_ZT—+tF=A=+—
AEtFEZRMBESBER
U B8 & B R R 25,426,000
B - ARNEEHEE=-ZT
—+F=ZA=Z=+—HItHF
EREHEmRRKE A
48,370,000 JT °

RZE—RNF=ZRA=+—
B ANEBEKHBARRE L
FEZARACNKBERE B
bt REBERBEES PR KX
RARBEARAR(ERS
B2 1) 2 100% A% 7N #% 25 - R
B A AR ®11,774,000 T (49
13,583,000/ 7T) < W E RN
—T-RXNFLtA—BREK-
RE B EGEk 56 #
EREAEE - EBHEE
ERFERAREBRRRE
BEREREB -ARAESER
BURBEEEEAAESERE
EBERELHRBE -

e sans @it tmEna,
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Consideration transferred

Cash B &

38. Wi (&)

2016/17 81 k=
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A R-ZZE—LtFEBRBWNEN

B A e W iEERK (&)
0} (%)
EEERE
HK$’000
FAT
13,533

Provisional fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition recognised by the
Group:

Property, plant and equipment M B R B
Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE Y BR 1B
Bank balances and cash RITEFERS
Trade and other payables B RkHEAMERIE
Goodwill =

AEBERNWE R ERZ TR
BEERMAEABEERE
EZRFE:

HK$’000
TETT

67,441
1,219
11,589
5,432
(75,242)

10,439
3,094

13,533

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to the property, plant
and equipment.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$11,589,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

tRRBERZ NS GAE
BhEREE DAFIE
ERME BMEARHBZE
EHEREE -

RUER TREZ2ES R
HihBUKWEBEBAFEREHN
48 %8 511,589,000 7T » A UL
BRYBEBBHEZREAGHOR
R REGBT AT
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ Ui (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A RZZE—tFEBWEBEK
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued)

(i)

e sans @it tmEna,

(Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition

Consideration transferred BEEZEAE
BB R BRI FEEZ

Less: Fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired

Goodwill arising on acquisition

REmEELzmE

BArRWBER (&)
(#8)
WEmMEE2EHE
HK$'000
TET
13,533
(10,439)
3,094

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of 5 &ific was
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales of
natural gas and gas pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

RBESBEMELE 2R
BNERNERRREE XK
EMREBREREH 2EB

EMEEN -

BEHYERZBEBEMES

ZEERBIE -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WETMEE>ES T H
FE

HK$'000
FH T
Bank balances and cash acquired ik ig 2 SRIT &7 MR € 5,432
Cash consideration HERE (13,533)
Deposit paid Bftize 4,598
(8,508)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2017 was HK$29,995,000 attributable to the
acquisition of #FE[Z#ifE. Revenue of E 5 #EAC included
in the Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31,
2017 amounted to HK$98,042,000.

WBEHEAEEEE X E

ALEFEZEERERBR
I i 3F 5 # BE 2 29,995,000
B AREEBHE=-Z
—+F=A=+—BIHF
FWEHEBGSHERZSA
98,042,000 JT °
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued)

(i)

In April 2015 and June 2016, subsidiaries of the Group
entered into acquisition agreements with an
independent third party and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of SK E&S Co. Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the
Group acquired an aggregate of 100% equity interest
of BEMAEE at a total consideration of
RMB495,000,000 (approximately HK$585,515,000).
Control in E&REER was acquired by the Group
on September 30, 2016. EXMFAEE is principally
engaged in investment, construction and operation of
natural gas related business. The directors of the
Company considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing business
of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash

Be

38. EHKWiE (&)

A R==F
BoRWEER (&)

(i)

—tFEBWBEHK

A\ —E—RAFNAKRZ
NEXNA AEBE ?WE
Tﬁﬁiﬁi%_ﬁ&SKE&S
Co.ltdz k2 EMWEB A
(SK E&S Co. Ltd. /& /& 2 A I
EREBE)ITLWERE &
B AEBERBEISRRE
B 2 A& H100%A & # 3%
# R (E B A R ¥ 495,000,000
_(£75855150005%7_c) ¥
EER-_TE—-XNENLA=ZT
HHX?%%%L%%%@Z%I%H
o BERREBDETENRSE
BE EREEZERARIE
BEB - AR ESERAK
BEEBEAXNESERBER
R E % R HE o

EEEAE

HK$’000
TETT

585,515

2016/17 81 k=
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A R=ZZE—LtFEBWEK
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) BArrWEER(E
(i) (Continued) (i) (#&)
Provisional fair value of assets acquired and liabilities REBRWEBERZ T
assumed at the date of acquisition recognised by the BEEMNMAIAEZEABEERE
Group: EZRFE:
HK$'000
F T
Property, plant and equipment M- BB REE 643,118
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 8,811
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and WEYE BELEIHEZS
equipment 13,929
Investments in associates REEE QA& E 2,247
Inventories FE 23,972
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b fE Y AR 18 91,035
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFRES 149,331
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAERNIRIE (463,189)
Taxation T8 (5,812)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (241,294)
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries BERMAE BB QR Z IR
of BIEMRER = (60,153)
161,995
Goodwill [EES 423,520
585,515
The initial accounting for the above acquisition has FTHWEFBE NS R
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of BHERET  DAFRS
professional revaluation in relation to the property, plant BRAYME BMEERBZE
and equipment. XHEREET -
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts RER - FIEZE SR
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted HEMmEREBEAFEARAGSL
to HK$91,035,000 at the date of acquisition. The best 48 %8 591,035,000 7T ° A UL
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash BHEHEREZKE G KR
flows not expected to be collected was nil. ERZ2EEBTAZT -

e sans @it tmEna,
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A R-ZZE—LtFEBRBWNEN
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
(i) (Continued) (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEHSE
HK$’000
FH&TT
Consideration transferred BEENRE 585,515
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B PTUBE RT B R B
assets acquired A/NS | (161,995)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEEZEE 423,520
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of 2% ¥k R & & KWEEBERREBMESE
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales ZEEBDERAEXRAREE
of natural gas and gas pipeline construction business. XBRMRREERREBZ
TEE R RIS -
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was TEER M A Z I W I E A
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. L REE AR IE o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEMEEZRESRE
FE
HK$’000
F#&IT
Bank balances and cash acquired Friiig 2 SRIT &7 MR € 149,331
Cash consideration ReRE (585,515)
Deposit paid Bftize 9,485
(426,699)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the KEBHAEEXECTE

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2017 was HK$108,579,000 attributable to the
acquisition of /% #AR %= E. Revenue of )& AEE
included in the Group’s revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2017 amounted to HK$612,827,000.

HE_ZT—+tF=ZA=+
—BLEFEZEMNBES
ERXKBEERIERZ
108,579,000/ 7T ° 7t A R &
EHz—_ZT—tF=-A=+
—BLEFERZNERRE
& @ i 25 A612,827,00078 T °

2016/17 81 k=
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued)

(v)

On June 23, 2016, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with Beijing Gas Group
Limited which is a subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited (“Beijing Enterprise”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 51% equity interest of JLASEM at a
consideration of RMB234,558,000 (approximately
HK$266,543,000). Control in 4L ¥k$8J1 was acquired
by the Group on December 31, 2016. Jb#AEEMN is
principally engaged in the distribution of city gas and
natural gas for vehicle use and the construction of
long-distance natural gas pipelines. The directors of
the Company considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing business
of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Consideration payable

38. EHKWiE (&)

A R=ZZE—LtFEBWEK
BAr W iE R (E)

(v)

R E

R-ZE—X"EXNA=-FT=
A AEEHREBRQRER
ARAFERRILRIERE
RAR(d R 2 M
BEARIEIAREERHF
BRARGZWEDE &
(1A NN B - I A I
Z51% % A m RE R
A R #234,558,0007L( 4
266,543,000/ 7T) ° NEB R
—E-XF+-A=+—8H
BU1S b R 85 I 2 42 I 4 - b
MBMNEZRERTHE R
BEAXRXARBERREREX
RAREBHNER - ARAE
ERAEREETEEALEE
RBEEBTRE L HRBE

o

EEEAE

HK$’000
TETT

266,543
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A R-ZZE—LtFEBRBWNEN
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
(v)  (Continued) (v) (&)

Provisional fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition recognised by the

Group:
Property, plant and equipment M- BB RE
Intangible assets mEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEE &S
Inventories FE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE U BR IR
Bank balances and cash RITEFERS
Trade and other payables B RkHEAMEMAERE
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR
Goodwill e

A 55 B R WO R 2
BEERMAERBENE
2 AT

HK$’000
TAET

241,315
76,723
110,485
134,689
56,991
33,713
(363,752)

290,164
(142,180)
118,559

266,543

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$56,991,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

rRRBEBEHEZNT G
BNEREE DAFIE
ERAYME BERREBRE
MEEzEREERET

REBER FEBZES R
HttRWER 2 A FERA
#) 42 %8 5 56,991,000% 7T © 7
Wis A e A EEKE AL
Ren&xEGBARE -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase (A)
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued)
(iv)  (Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition
Consideration transferred BEENRE

Fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired, net of

Less:

R-ZEBE-tFEBWREW
BARWBER (&)

(&)

AhEmELE2EE

HK$’000
FHET

266,543

W FTIRRE R BRI F B E

ZRFE MABRIFER

non-controlling interests HE 2 (147,984)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmEL ZEmE 118,559
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of 3t /%81 was WHEILRBENMEEZ R
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its EBERHEBTmMRERKXA
distribution of city gas and natural gas and the REXRREBAAREE
construction of long-distance natural gas pipelines BREB 2 EHRARES -
business.
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was T8 AR A (] 52 TE W R i = AR
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Z BRI RIE
Non-controlling interests FERER
The non-controlling interests in 1t #A£8 /1 recognised at ARS8 R 2 3 B8R N 3E
the date of the acquisition was measured by reference BERERKC2ZHEINEBER
to the respective proportionate shares of recognised RIEEFEMNSHBEER
amounts of net assets of relevant subsidiary and % 78 It Bl 51 2 /142,180,000
amounted to HK$142,180,000. BT e
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEMEEZRERA
FHE
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired ik g 2 SRIT &7 MR € 33,713
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group KWIBHAEEXE2TE

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2017 was HK$21,563,000 attributable to the
acquisition of L #AERM. Revenue of b #AEE M included
in the Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31,
2017 amounted to HK$116,836,000.

HE-ZTZ—+tF=A=+—
ALEFEZEMNPRERBR
U 8 4 R 98 M 2~ 21,563,000
B AREEBHEZ-Z
—+F=A=+—BIF
Elammb ik s
116,836,000 JT ©
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued)

W)

On June 28, 2016, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with Beijing Gas Group (BVI)
Co., Ltd, which is a subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The Group
acquired 100% equity interest of Beijing Gas at a
consideration of HK$1,270,031,000 by the issuance of
110,823,011 shares of the Company at the closing
price of HK$11.46 per share at the completion date.
Control in Beijing Gas was acquired by the Group on
March 31, 2017. Beijing Gas is principally engaged in
the distribution of city gas, natural gas for vehicle use
and construction of long-distance natural gas pipelines
in the PRC. The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further synergy
effect of the existing business of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Share issued at fair value

38. E#K Wi (&)

A R-ZZE—LtFEBRBWNEN
BArWiEER (&)

W)

ARFEETZ RN

R-E—XNFEXNA-+TN
A ANEBHBARIEAR
Al EER R 7R 2 KT
BraldmRREEBE
RARG L KEHE A%
= U B 4L 1R 3 R 2 100% B% AR
# @ & A1,270,031,000
B ARBIRERBUE
B U 85 (B B11.4678 T 3 17
AN A 71110,823,011 P& i 15 ©
AEBR=ZZE—+tHF=A=
+—BEBIRERE 2
oM BEREZ AP EK
EEARTHRIRRARLE
ERRBHAATEEER
¥ -ARREERAIE
EEEARNEERGERT
R EE 2 1op (R U HE ©

EEEAE

HK$°000
FET

1,270,031

2016/17 81 k=
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A R=ZZE—LtFEBWEK
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) BArrWEE®K(E)
()  (Continued) v (&)
Provisional fair value of assets acquired and liabilities REBRWEBERZ T
assumed at the date of acquisition recognised by the BEENMFIAREZEAEERE
Group: EZRFE:
HK$'000
F T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRE &ERE 729,678
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEME BEREELRS
plant and equipment 2,557
Intangible assets mEE 28,315
Investments in associates REE QA2 IRE 473,608
Inventories FE 49,570
Trade and other receivables B 5 REAMERIRIE 147,766
Bank balances and cash RITEF LR 222,435
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAERNIRIE (325,153)
Bank and other borrowings HITREMEER (336,818)
Taxation Bi1E (502)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE (3,953
Non-controlling interest of the subsidiaries of 4k ¥A 3% & [ff B A 7] 2 JF 125 f% # %5
Beijing Gas (27,699)
959,804
Goodwill & 310,227
1,270,031
The initial accounting for the above acquisition has FTHMREERBEZ NS R
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of BOEREE  DAFISE
professional valuation in relation to the property, plant BEAYME BMEERIBRE

and equipment and intangible assets. WEEEXEGHBEEET -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase A R-ZZE—LtFEBRBWNEN
of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) BARWEER(E)
()  (Continued) v (&)
Consideration transferred (Continued) SEENEE)
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts REBR FTKBEZESHR
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted HEpEREB AFLZERLS
to HK$147,766,000 at the date of acquisition. #4858 147,766,000 TC °
The best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual RUWE B S EEE L RE 4
cash flows not expected to be collected was nil. BN HEBTRET -
In addition to the 51% equity interests in JbAER N B DA b B FE38(A)IV) IR K Ui
acquired as mentioned in note 38(A)(v), the Group AR 88 M 2 51% A% #E o -
further acquired 48% equity interests in 1EJRERM AEEFEB Ll WE AR E
through the above acquisition at a consideration HERKBEEIINER ZERR
equivalent to the carrying amount of the additional EEE—PUWEILMIBN 2
interest acquired. 48% P HE -
Gooduwill arising on acquisition KEMEEZEE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEERE 1,270,031
Less: Fair value of identifiable B FTUE R B R FEE Y
net assets acquired NEE (959,804)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEmEL 7 2 310,227
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Beijing Gas WHEILMRERMEE 2R

was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its
distribution of city gas, natural gas and construction of
long-distance natural gas pipelines business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

BLOERERTMRE - XA
REEARREBEBRRAREE
EREBZERBHAEN -

BRI R %IRRT E L
Z B BIE
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase

(A)

38. EHKWiE (&)

R-ZZE—-—tFEBWEHK

of subsidiaries in 2017 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
()  (Continued) v (&)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEMELEZ2BERA
FH
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Frieig 2 RITH#FE RE S 222,435
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group W AEEXBE2TE

No profit and revenue for the year ended March 31,
2017 was attributable to the acquisition of Beijing Gas.

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016

(i) On January 10, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
acquired 51% equity interest of #th F 8/l 5 2 LR IT
BREAT (“MPiH ") at a consideration of
RMB33,880,000 (approximately HK$41,571,000). The
acquisition was completed on June 1, 2015, on that
date the control in #5# $l was passed to the Group.
HiThHR )l is principally engaged in natural gas and gas
pipeline construction business. The directors of the
Company considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing business
of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash H&

HE-T—+tF=FA=+
—BLEFE WESBRIK
BB R RN R -

—E-AEEBREBEKW
AL

RZZE—RF—A+AH &
EEC2WBEBAR BB LE
ZHEIMWE RS B
NEBEWKE KT IB R
BRI AR A A ([ +
P z51%lk AR RE
A A R #33,880,0007t( 49
41,571,000 ) - W2 RN
—E—RAFXNA—HZEK"
REB  #HslzEml i
HREREE #HPIE
ERERAREBRRRE
BEREB - ARAESFR
BRBEEBEAAESERE
EBERELHRBE -

EEEAE

HK$’000
TET

41,571

e sans @it tmEna,
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BAaWEEER(E)
()  (Continued) 0o (&)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at ANEBE R UHE B R 2 T
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group: BEENFIEAEAEZAT
H:
HK$'000
F& T
Property, plant and equipment M- BB RE 25,397
Intangible assets mEE 54,004
Inventories FE 1,229
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE U BR 1R 3,926
Bank balances and cash HITHEGTERES 20,519
Trade and other payables B RkHEAMEERIE (24,929)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEE & (13,501)
66,645
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR 7 = (32,656)
Goodwill mE 7,582
41,571
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts RER TEEBZE S R
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted EmEWERBEZ AFERE
to HK$3,926,000 at the date of acquisition. The best %) 48 58 53,926,000/ 7T ° 7
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash g BB B A B & 4

flows not expected to be collected was nil. ReERzREBSAS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

B R-ZEBE-—AFEBWEBHK

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BArWEER(E)
()  (Continued) (&)
Gooduwill arising on acquisition AREmMEEEE
HK$'000
T T
Consideration transferred BEEZERE 41,571

Less: Fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired, net of

B FTRB R BRI FEE
AR EREICE S

non-controlling interests (83,989)

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEEZEE 7,582
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of #4518 was eI mMEE 2B
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales of BDERERARHEEER

natural gas and gas pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Non-controlling interests
The non-controlling interests in #35 §)l recognised at
the date of the acquisition was measured by reference
to the respective proportionate shares of recognised
amounts of net assets of relevant subsidiary and
amounted to HK$32,656,000.

EMMREEREREBZEBR
BAEEN -

8 H 30 E [R) 5% TR MR Th B A
Z BRI IE o

FEEBER
RUERBRZET R IE
TRERELEHBRBA
REEFENSHBERER
& # 5t 2 A32,656,000
BT e
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

M

38. EHKWiE (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BA 7 W BB 5K (4])
(Continued) 0o (&)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition KEMELEZBEERA
FH
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Tk RITEF RS 20,519
Cash consideration ReERE (41,571)
Deposit paid [RENE &R 36,172
15,120
Impact of acquisition on the results of the KBHAEEXEZTE

(i)

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$4,130,000 attributable to the acquisition
of #hg)l. Revenue of #brg)l included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2016
amounted to HK$38,721,000.

On April 15, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired 80%
equity interest of MM EERRER AT (“PH/EE")
at a consideration of RMB86,666,700 (approximately
HK$106,340,000). The acquisition was completed on
August 31, 2015, on that date the control in B3 215
was passed to the Group. HIH/E#E is principally
engaged in natural gas and gas pipeline construction
business. The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further synergy
effect of the existing business of the Group.

(i)

HE-Z—XR"E=-ZA=1+—
ALEFEZEANRERBR
W 8 4 o5 7 9l 2 4,130,000
B - AREEBHE-Z
—A"F=ZA=+—HL*F
ERmm#gnhil s b
38,721,00078 7T °

RZZE-—HFMAB+HAB
AEBZHBERAREBIE
=HRI LB E L
AEBRBURERRRE
RaE (T ER]) Z280%
EAED KERAR®
86,666,700 7T ( £7106,340,000
AL WBER-_F—H
FNA=+—HEK RE
H W ERsEsfgER
EXAEE-PHREBLEIENR
FARREBEMAEER

BEEBAAEERBERH
R E % 15 R E -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XREEBWEK
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BArrWEE®K(E)
(i) (Continued) i  (#&)
Consideration transferred EEENE
HK$'000
F# T
Cash BE 95,706
Consideration payable FERRIE 10,634
Total et 106,340
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at R E R U B R 2 FTIR
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group: BEERAAREBEZRAYF
#:
HK$'000
F# T
Property, plant and equipment M WE k& 35,406
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 6,374
Intangible assets EREE 90,331
Inventories FE 1,078
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE Y BR 1B 2,382
Bank balances and cash HITHEGFERES 5,277
Trade and other payables B R EMEEKRIE (15,612)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEEE (22,583)
102,653
Non-controlling interests I AR 2 (20,531)
Goodwill ma 24,218
106,340
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts RER FIEZBES R
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted EMEWERBEBZ AFERE
to HK$2,382,000 at the date of acquisition. The best %) 48 58 52,382,000 7T ° 7
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash W ASNBHEEIREEH
flows not expected to be collected was nil. ReEnzxERARE -

e sans @it tmEna,
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
(i) (Continued) (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEHE
HK$’000
FH&TT
Consideration transferred BEEEAE 106,340
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W FTUCEE AT S RIE A
assets acquired, net of ZATE Ik
non-controlling interests FE 2 B (82,122)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEEZEE 24,218

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Jli%[E1ZE was
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales of
natural gas and gas pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Non-controlling interests
The non-controlling interests in B /2= recognised at
the date of the acquisition was measured by reference
to the respective proportionate shares of recognised
amounts of net assets of relevant subsidiary and
amounted to HK$20,531,000.

AUBOREEMELEZRE
BNERERRREEED
EMREBRZRXRF 2 AH
BB -

BRI R RS T A A
Z BB BIE

TR ER

R R ER I E = IE
IRESE2ERENRB A
RIEEFENSIHEECER
& # Bl 5t £ £&20,581,000
BT e

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AWEmELEZRESRE
FE
HK$’000
F T
Bank balances and cash acquired Frikig 2 SRIT &7 MR € 5,277
Cash consideration ReRE (95,706)
Deposit paid Bftize 31,902

(58,527)

2016/17 81 k=
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the Group’s result for the year ended March
31, 2016 was a loss of HK$1,627,000 attributable to
the acquisition of HIH/EE. Revenue of W EE
included in the Group’s revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2016 amounted to HK$565,000.

On April 3, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of JABARGIA R AR A ] (DAt
F#R”) at a consideration of RMB50,000,000
(approximately HK$61,350,000). The acquisition was
completed on August 31, 2015, on that date the
control in JAIEAR KA was passed to the Group. JA[ R
#A is principally engaged in natural gas and gas pipeline
construction business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring about a
further synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash

HE

38. EHKWiE (&)

B R-ZE-—AFEBWREN
B QR W ER (&)

(i)

(i)

(&)

BEHAEEXREZRE

AEEBHZ-_Z—XF=8
—t+—HALEFEEZEMNE
EEBRKRBUMERZZ
1,627,000 7L K518 » #F A AR
SEEHEE-_ZT—RF=ZAZ=
T-—BLEFERZNUNE
12 i 2% 5 565,0008 7T °

R-_TE—HFEWA=H K
EEzMBERAREB LS =
FEILWEHE Bt &
SEWETHASEKRRER
2 & (A F Bk 1) 2 100%
RAEZ REAARE
50,000,000 7T ( #961,350,000
BL) - WEERZ=ZZ—H
FENAZF+—HEK RE
=IO el e el R = R 2
EAEE MR REEY
ERAREB KRR EBZ
BEBH - ARAEETRANR
BEESALSE R AE
TR R B 2 10 R UE ©

CEEERE

HK$’000
FHET

61,350
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BAaWEEER(E)
(i) (Continued) (i) (#&)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at ANEBE R UHE B R 2 T
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group: BEEMNMAIAEABEZAYF
H:
HK$'000
F& T
Property, plant and equipment M- BB RE 5,693
Intangible assets mEE 34,242
Inventories FE 493
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE U BR 1R 21,969
Bank balances and cash HITHEGTERES 85
Trade and other payables B RkHEAMEERIE (2,758)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEE & (8,561)
51,168
Goodwil = 10,197
61,350
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts RER -FTEZE S R
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted EtEWERBE2 A FERE
to HK$21,959,000 at the date of acquisition. The best 474838 £ 21,959,00078 7T © 1
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash WEASBHEIZKREAEHN

flows not expected to be collected was nil. ReRs&EGHTAS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase

B R-ZEBE-—AFEBWEBHK

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BARUWEER(E)
(i) (Continued) (&)
Gooduwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEHSE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred BEEEAE 61,350

e sans @it tmEna,

Less: Fair value of identifiable net

W FTIREER BORF B E

assets acquired (561,153)

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEE 10,197
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of [t H A was E W B AT EE 27
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales of ENERERARBEEER

natural gas and gas pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

EMMREBREREZH 2EH

BB

TEHA I B A 5% TR WG T E A

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. BB EIE ©
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEmMEEZ2RERH
b=
HK$'000
FHEIT
Bank balances and cash acquired Frugeg 2 SR F RIB & 85
Cash consideration ReRE (61,350)
(61,265)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the KB AEEXE2FE

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$386,000 attributable to the acquisition
of Jas A #X. Revenue of jaibA A included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2016
amounted to HK$5,449,000.

HE-_Z—XF=-A=+—
AEtFEZRMNBEERRB
U B8 F b AR MR 2 386,000
B st AREEHEZT
—RNE=ZA=+—8BULt*#H
IR R R e
5,449,000/ JT °
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

(v)

On April 26, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of ZhF|ZEFEEMRER A
(“ZNFE&Z=F1") at a consideration of RMB30,376,000
(approximately HK$36,378,000). The acquisition was
completed on January 1, 2016, on that date the
control in ZhF|8Z=H0 was passed to the Group. Zh7)
B2Z&F0 is principally engaged in natural gas and gas
pipeline construction business. The directors of the
Company considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing business
of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash
Consideration payable

Total

R&
e R E

#Et

38. EHKWiE (&)

B R=ZZE-—A"FEBWREHK
BoRWEER (&)

(v)

RZE—RAFWH A=+~
A A&BZWEBRQRHES
VEZFIZKRERE B
1t 7N 5 Y HE B A & 2R
EEMRRBERAB(DFE
ZH]) Z2100% AR = - KR
& & A R #30,376,000 70 (49
36,378,000/ ;L)  WHE B M
A - =
RE B PG RN AL
HEBERNEER - P HE R
MEBRERARREBRMKR
REEEREG - ARRE
ERABNEEFEBEARNEE
BH B RE L5 R E

EEEAE

HK$’000
TAET

7,004
29,374

36,378

2016/17 8164 4&
R R IERERA T
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—RFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BAaUWEEER(E)
(v)  (Continued) (v (&)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at REBRWE B¥ERZATW
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group: BEENFIEAEEBEZAT
H :
HK$'000
FH&T
Property, plant and equipment M- BB REE 38,302
Inventories FE 215
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b U AR IE 393
Bank balances and cash WITHEGFERES 233
Trade and other payables B REMEEKRIE (8,325)
30,818
Goodwill = 5,560
36,378

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$393,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

RKWEH FIREBZES R
HEmEKREBRBZ AFERE
4 44 8 /5393,00078 7T ° 1 Uk
BAYBEHEXIKEE AR
SRZEEBITAS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BA 7 W BB 5K (4])
(v)  (Continued) (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEHE
HK$’000
F#&IT
Consideration transferred BEEEAE 36,378
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B FTIEE AT B B F & E
assets acquired (80,818)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMmEL ZEmE 5,560

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of ZF|EZ=F1
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales
of natural gas and gas pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

R B EMMEEZ
BEDEREXARHBEER
BEMREBREREH 2
Hi & N ge

BHYERNZBEREMES

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Z B AR IS o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AERBEMELEZRER
FH
HK$’000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Pt 2 SRIT 4T RIR 233
Cash consideration RHEeRE (7,004)
6,771)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WEHAEEXE2TE

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$883,000 attributable to the acquisition
of FHEEZHN. Revenue of ZNHEEZ=N included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2016
amounted to HK$4,091,000.

ﬁ:l:—v /\fﬁ H +_
AEFEZHENBEREBR
s B8 2 M §2 Z= A0 2 883,000
BT ALREBMEBEE_ZT
—RNFZA=F+—HLFE
WaHmDH &R =R
4,091,000/ 7T °
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XREEBWEK
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BATWEEXR (&)

(v)  On August 28, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered vy RZZE—FHFNAZ+N
into an acquisition agreement with an independent B AEBZMBARHES
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired VEZHEIVWEHZE &
100% equity interest of RS ILIUMELERRIBAR A [ = R SR TN
7 (“&£E8 L LNEE”) at a consideration of e RMEAER QG ([EHB
RMB26,358,000 (approximately HK$31,567,000). The L Fu M EE 1) 2 100% A% 7K #E
acquisition was completed on February 1, 2016, on @ KRB A AR 26,358,000
that date the control in #8511 fLMEE was passed to 7T (#931,567,0007% 7T ) ° Wi
the Group. ZEBSILAMBEE is principally engaged in ER-_E—R"F-_A—H=
natural gas and gas pipeline construction business. Bk R E B - EES L LM
The directors of the Company considered that the ZHHEEEENER
acquisition will bring about a further synergy effect of BBILAMNEEZZERERAR
the existing business of the Group. EBLMMREBRRER -

ARAREERRBBEIER
RAEE B BEEBERE
% 15 [R B FE o
Consideration transferred EEENE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration payable FERT R E 31,567
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at AEBRKEABRZ MK
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group: BEEMMAEZEEGZAT
H:
HK$’000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment M- BB R E 49,127
Inventories FE 103
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE U BR 1B 1,169
Bank balances and cash RITEEFELRS 12,325
Trade and other payables B RHEAMEERIE (41,417)
21,307
Goodwill [GES 10,260
31,567

e sans @it tmEna,
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

V)

(Continued)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$1,169,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

38. EHKWiE (&)

B R=ZZE-—A"FEBWREHK
BoRWEER (&)

W)

(%)

RKEE FREZEZ R
HitRWER 2 A FERA
#) 48 %8 /31,169,000 7T © 7
WERHEHEEZREEH
Renz&EMARET-

Gooduwill arising on acquisition KWEmMEEZ2EHE
HK$’000
FH&T
Consideration transferred BEENAE 31,567
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TR BRI FEE 2
assets acquired NFE (21,307)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEE ZEmE 10,260

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Z 85 11 J1i15E
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales
of natural gas and gas pipeline construction business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

B U5 B = 05 LU M BE T EE A
ZHEHEDERERARBEE
XGRMREERRET 2
BHAMEN -

8 HA 3 4 (R 5% TR MR Th & A

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. BRI RIE -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEMEEZRERA
FH
HK$’000
FHET
Bank balances and cash acquired Frik g 2 RIT T MR € 12,325
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WIBHAEEXBEZTE

Group

Included in the Group’s result for the year ended March
31, 2016 was a loss of HK$860,000 attributable to the
acquisition of #8511 JLMEE. No revenue contributed
by & 881 /1) BE for the year ended March 31, 2016.

AEBBE-_ZT—X~F=A
Tt BLEFEZEESE
EEREBEHRLAMEZ
860,000/ T 5 18 - # 5 1L K
MNERBE=-_T—XF=A
S+ BLEFELEEBMT
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

(vi)

On May 18, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of EAFINEREERER DA (‘&
AH ) at a consideration of RMB17,733,000
(approximately HK$21,237,000). The acquisition was
completed on March 1, 2016, on that date the control
in wATR was passed to the Group. EmATR is
principally engaged in natural gas business. The
directors of the Company considered that the
acquisition will bring about a further synergy effect of
the existing business of the Group.

38. EHKWiE (&)

B R-ZE-—AFEBWREN
BARWBER (&)

(vi)

R-_ZE—HEFAA+NAB"
AEBZWE AR HEB T
EZFRIURERE B
b AEBERBELRRE
BEBRBRAR(EAF
BR1) Z100% 0% 7~ fE 250 R
& A& AR ¥17,733,0007C (4
21,237,000/ 70) » WHE B R
—E-XNF=ZA—BEK"
REB BEAPMZEH#
HEEARE@ - EAPHE
ENRERAREE - AR A
EERARUBETEBAELE
BErHREBEEBEREZHR
BFE o

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FAT
Cash B 19,081
Consideration payable FERRIE 2,156
Total st 21,237
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at AEBNUWEB®ER 2K

the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Trade and other payables

Goodwill

WE - BERRE

B 5 R H A EWERTA
RITEFERRAE
g5 REMENKER

Tt
1)

BEEMFAEAGBZATF
H :

HK$’000
FHET

17,285
843
2,077
(3,320)

16,885
4,352

21,237

e sans @it tmEna,
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase (B) N =% — X F & B WM
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) B~ e WK (&)
(vi)  (Continued) i) (&)
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts RUWER TkEZE S K
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted EMEREBZZ AFELS
to HK$843,000 at the date of acquisition. The best #) 42 %8 /843,000 JT o A
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash BHHBEHEEIREEHOER
flows not expected to be collected was nil. SRZEEGBFTAS -
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZHSE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred BEENE 21,237
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TR R EEE
assets acquired NEE (16,885)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEE ZEHE 4,352
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of &4 F 4 was WEEAPMMEE 2RE
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales of ENEREXARBEEER

natural gas business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

ZIEH AN B

T8 3 30 4B R 5% TR MR Th & A

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. ZEETHURBIE -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AREmELE2RERE
FE
HK$’000
FHET
Bank balances and cash acquired Frikig 2 RIT T MR € 2,077
Cash consideration ReRE (19,081)
(17,004)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group KB EAEEXECHE

Included in the Group’s result for the year ended March
31, 2016 was a loss of HK$192,000 attributable to the
acquisition of & A H#A. No revenue contributed by &=
Ak for the year ended March 31, 2016.

AREBBEE-_T—AE=A
—t+—BILEFEZEER
EEERRBERTLMR
192,000 TEE - EAF M
REBEZE-_ZTE—XF=ZA=+

—HIEFEYERBEMK
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

(vil)

On August 31, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of (RILFPMIRRILIELRBERAD
A (“RIUPMTRELHE”) at a consideration of
RMB3,100,000 (approximately HK$3,713,000). The
acquisition was completed on March 1, 2016, on that
date the control in fRILFMATIZZSE was passed to
the Group. fRILH A T2 %% is principally engaged in
LPG storage, construction and maintenance of pipeline
projects business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring about a
further synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash

Be

38. EHKWiE (&)

B R-ZE-—AFEBWREN
B QR W ER (&)

(vil)

R-ZZE—HRFNA=Z+—
A A%BZWEBRQRHES
VEZAFEIVWERE &
It - AN 5 B RS AR WL AR R R
RIBREBR QA (RLWL
R TR R 2 ) 2 100% & 4
#m - RE R ARS3100,000
70 (#73,713,0007% 7T ) » U BB
BER-_ZE—XNF=ZH—H
TRCREBRRWUAPBKRT
B 2EflEEEERE
- RUPFPMRIRBLEETE
REBREAEHRHBT KA
EEESMRETEEAE
BoARaEERAKES
BEAAEB 2R ALK
RE % 1 RBE -

EEEAE

HK$’000
TETT

3,713
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)
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(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
(vii)  (Continued) iy (#&)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

Property, plant and equipment M- BB RE
Inventories F&E

Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b fE Y BR 1B
Bank balances and cash HITHEGFERES
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENIRE
Gain on bargain purchase HEBERS

REBRKE B ®R 2K
BEAEMALZAGBZAT
H:

HK$’000
TAET

7,370
1,018
10,037
615
(14,857)

4,183
(470)

3,713

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$10,037,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

RKER FIKEZES R
HEmMmEREBRZ AFERE
#4858 210,037,000 7T ° 7
W ASRBEEIZKEE AN
ReRs&xEHTAS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

38. EHKWiE (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase (B) EA —E-REEBWEK
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) LI& BEX(E)
(vii)  (Continued) (i) (#&)
Gain on bargain purchase REBEEWS
HK$’000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEENE 3,713
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TRl A FEE
assets acquired ZAFE (4,183)
Gain on bargain purchase HEEE ks (470)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEMEEZ2RERE
R
HK$’000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Pk 2 SRTT 7 MR € 615
Cash consideration HeRE (3,713)
(3,098)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the KW AEEEEZY

Group

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$2,107,000 attributable to the acquisition
of RILFFWATIZZ#. Revenue of (R TIR% %
included in the Group’s revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2016 amounted to HK$2,845,000.

%Z:n: iﬁ_/\¢ A= +_
HEFEZzHMNBREEB
RUWERILFPRIERE Z
2,107,000/ 7T ° 7t A& & H
%Z;l:_j /\¢ A= +_

ALEFERZNHRLUPKRT
2 77 2 U 25 52,845,000 T ©
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

(viil

On August 31, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of {RILUFPIAM AR EREREA
Al (“4RILER”) at a consideration of RMB58,680,000
(approximately HK$70,275,000). The acquisition was
completed on March 1, 2016, on that date the control
in {RILAIR was passed to the Group. RILFIR is
principally engaged in natural gas and gas pipeline
construction business. The directors of the Company
considered that the acquisition will bring about a
further synergy effect of the existing business of the
Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash
Consideration payable

Total

B&
PR E

#Et

38. EHKWiE (&)

B R=ZZE-—A"FEBWREHK
BoRWEER (&)

(viil

R-ZZE—HRFNA=Z+—
A A&BZWEBRQRHES
VEZFIZKRERE B
It AN £ B RS AR WL AR R
MHRRERBR QA ([RLWL
RBR]) Z2100% A% AR - K
& & A R #58,680,0007T (4
70,275,000/ L) - WHE B R
—TE-XRNFE=ZA—HZEK"
RE B R
EREAREE - RIUFKRE
ERERAREBERRRE
BEEREB -ARAIESER
BRUREEFEBEARNEERE
EHBERE %15 R WE -

EEEAE

HK$’000
TAET

46,323
23,952

70,275

2016/17 8164 4&
R R IERERA T
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase

38. ¥R (&)
B R=ZZE-—AR"FEBWREHK

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BArWEER(E)
(vii)  (Continued) (vii) (&)
Consideration transferred (Continued) SEENEGE)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

Property, plant and equipment I ER S
Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE U BR 1B
Bank balances and cash HITHEGTERES
Trade and other payables B REMENIKE
Goodwill Sk

RAEBRKER®BR 2K
BEEMHAEAGBZATF
g :

HK$’000
TETT

59,821
2127
5,692
7,279

(14,195)

60,724
9,551

70,275

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$5,692,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

RWER FTKEZEZ R
HEmEREBZ AFERA
49 48 %8 55,692,000 JC © A
W REBEBREEIZREEG L
BeRZEEGBTAST -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
(viil)  (Continued) (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEHSE
HK$’000
FH& T
Consideration transferred EEENRE 70,275
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TR BRI FEE
assets acquired NEE (60,724)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEE 9,551
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of /&1L F1 £ was WERLFMMEEZRE
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales of ENEREXRARBEEER
natural gas and gas pipeline construction business. RMRREBRREL 2B
27 ge

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

BRI R %IRRT E L

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. BRI RIE -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AREmELEZ2RERE
HE
HK$’000
T T
Bank balances and cash acquired ik 2 SRTT T MR € 7,279
Cash consideration ReRE (46,323)
(89,044)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group KBEBHAEEXEIRE

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$3,741,000 attributable to the acquisition
of fRILFKA. Revenue of fRILFHA included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2016
amounted to HK$6,115,000.

HEZT—XR"F=ZHA=+—
AEFEZEZABEFBR
W B8 R 1L R #R 23,741,000
BL - FAXAEEHZEZZT
—NEZA=+—H8B1It#F
ERa8RILUPREER
6,115,000 JT °

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T

159




160

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M EE

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

B R=ZZE-—AR"FEBWREHK
B QR W ER (&)

(ix)  On December 30, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group ix¥ R-ZZE—RHF+_A=+

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of ZHHET at a
consideration of RMB39,459,000 (approximately
HK$47,257,000). The acquisition was completed on
December 31, 2015, on that date the control in 41 H
7T was passed to the Group. ZHH T is principally
engaged in LPG and delivery of hazardous products
business. The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further synergy
effect of the existing business of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash B

A A%BZWEBRQRHES
SNEZ=ZFEIMWE B
Bt AEBKREENE
L Z2100% % A &= - X &
B A R #39,459,0007T ( 49
47,257,000/ 7C) - WHE B R
—E-RF+=ZA=+—8H
ERCREB EHBEIZ
THEEREREE - &
BEIFEREREABEEKR
ERYRZNER - XA T
EERANBETERALSE

BRAXBTRES HRK
fE
EEERAE
HK$'000
FET
47,257
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)
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(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XRFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
(ix)  (Continued) (ix) (%)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

Property, plant and equipment M- BB RE
Inventories F&E

Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b fE Y BR 1R
Bank balances and cash HITHEGFERES
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENIRE
Goodwill 5l

REBRKE B ®R 2K
BEAEMALZAGBZAT
H:

HK$’000
TAET

12,307
2,901

21,106
3,122
(9,542)

29,894
17,363

47,257

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$21,106,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

RKER FIKEZES R
HEmMmEREBRZ AFERE
#4858 521,106,000 7T ° 7
W ASRBEEIZKEE AN
ReRs&xEHTAS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XREEBWEK
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BA 7 W iE E % (&)
(ix)  (Continued) (&)
Gooduwill arising on acquisition KEMEEZEE
HK$’000
FHBT
Consideration transferred BEEEAE 47,257
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W FTE R B RFEEZ
assets acquired (29,894)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEEZEE 17,363

e sans @it tmEna,

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of &5 &, T was
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its LPG and
delivery of hazardous products business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

RKEEAa IMEEZD
BHERAERICARRANE
RYmXNEHZEREHN

ak
Be °©

EHYERNZEWREmMES

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Z BRI R AIE o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition HREMEEZEER
FH
HK$'000
SR
Bank balances and cash acquired Tk RTHEF RS 3,122
Cash consideration REeRE (47,257)
(44,135)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WBHAEBEBEZTE

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$3,014,000 attributable to the acquisition
of ##E /L. Revenue of M HE L included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2016
amounted to HK$18,506,000.

ﬁi_q /\¢ )E] +_
HEQEEZ/@%U FL% mﬁ%ﬁ/\\
U B8 % 8 | T 23,014,000
BT AREEHEEZT
—ANFE=ZA=+—HLHF
FEWANESBIWZR A
18,506,000 7T °
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

®)

On December 23, 2014, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of BEE5T L2( T&E
HEBRAR (‘BEETLE") at a consideration of
RMB3,800,000 (approximately HK$4,551,000). The
acquisition was completed on October 1, 2015, on
that date the control in 23T 22 was passed to the
Group. EFETEZ is principally engaged in sales of
chemical products business. The director considered
that the acquisition will bring additional business to the
Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash B

38. EHKWiE (&)

B R=ZZE-—A"FEBWREHK
BoRWEER (&)

*)

RZE—OF+A=+=
A A&BZWEBRQRHES
VEZFIZKRERE B
g AREEREZETIEE
tIEREEERAATR
BET &2 |) 2 100% % A ##
@ L E A A R #3,800,000
7o (494,551,000 T ) » W BB
ERZTE—AF+A—HE
B REH BeEIgEy
RHEEBREAEE - i
TER2XTENE(TYHH
EXBK - ARAEERAW
BEEBEAANESBRAER
R E %t B JHE o

EEEAE

HK$’000
TAET

4,551
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—RFEEBWEMH
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BArWEER(E)
x)  (Continued) x (&)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

REBRKE B ®R 2K
BEAEMAEZEAGZAYT
H :

HK$'000
FAT
. |

Property, plant and equipment M- BB RF 2,615
Trade and other receivables B 5 RkEAMEWIRIE 1,129
Bank balances and cash ROEFLERS 2,362

Trade and other payables 5 REMENIKRE (2,513)
3,593

Goodwill = 958
4,551

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$1,129,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

REBER MEBZESZ R
HitbBWER 2 A FERA
#) 48 % 731,129,000% 7T A
WERHEAEEZREELH
Ren&xEGBTARE -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
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38. ¥R (&)
B R=ZZE-—A"FEBWREHK

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
x)  (Continued) x (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEHSE
HK$’000
FE T
Consideration transferred BEEEAE 4,551
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W FTUE AT R RIF A
assets acquired ZAFE (3,593)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEEZEE 958
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of BT &2 WHEREICEMES 2

was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales
of chemical products business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

BMEDERE{CTEMEE
EBzEHAMESN -

T8 H E R) 5% TR MR Th B

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. BRI RIE -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition AEREmMELEZRERA
HE
HK$’000
F T
Bank balances and cash acquired Frigid 2 RIT/GFERE S 2,362
Cash consideration ReRE (4,551)
Deposit paid EffiEE 4,651

2,362

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$57,000 attributable to the acquisition of
EEeTZIZ. No revenue contributed by 258/ L2 for
the year ended March 31, 2016.

WIEBHAEEXE2TE
HE-_Z—XF=ZA=+—
AEtFEZRMBESBER
U i 2 3801 22 2 57,0008
Lo BRERITLENEE_ZT
—RNF=ZRA=F+—RHLEFE
I 4 J BR T Uk ES o
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase B) RZE—XREEBWEK

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

(x)  On March 26, 2014, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of AT HEMRABR AR (YA
ST 5%”") at a consideration of RMB2,000,000
(approximately HK$2,395,000). The acquisition was
completed on October 1, 2015, on that date the
control in YHZETH /7% was passed to the Group. SHEE
7% is principally engaged in gas appliances
business. The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further synergy
effect of the existing business of the Group.

Consideration transferred

Cash e
Consideration payable &R AB

Total FEE

BARWEER (R

RZE—WNWF=F =+~
A A%BZWEBRQRHES
SNEZ=ZFEIMWE B
Bt AEEWREAET A
HERRAR AR (CAET A
2 |) Z100% % AN #E 250 R
& & A R #2,000,0007C (4
2,395,000/ L) - WEE N =
T-—RAF+A—ABAEK B
EHAEM A E 2 EH
R EAREE - HBETHE
FERERAIBEL - &
RAEERABRBEEEA
REBREEBHREZR
[ 2k o

EEREAE

HK$'000
TET

2,108
287

2,395
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued)

(x)

(Continued)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

Property, plant and equipment Y - B &R
Trade and other receivables B RkHEAMERE
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRS
Goodwil A

38. EHKWiE (&)

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
167

B R=ZZE-—A"FEBWREHK
BoRWEER (&)

(x)

(&)
REBRKE B ®R 2K
BEAEMAEZEAGZAT
H:

HK$’000
TAET

525
667
1,076

2,268
127

2,395

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$667,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

RUER TREZ2ES R
EMmEREBRZ AFERA
49 48 %8 5667,00078 7T ° 7 UK
BHHEREZKEDEG IR
Rz REGBFAT -

Goodwill arising on acquisition HAhEmELEZEHE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred BEERE 2,395
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TR BB AT R RF & E
assets acquired AN (2,268)
Goodwill arising on acquisition HAWEmMEEZRE 127

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of JAZET /5 &
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its gas
appliances business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

RBEREm A EMELZ
BEDERERRAREER
ZIEMBFEED -

EHMYENZAREMES
Z BRI o
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
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38. ¥R (&)
B R-ZE-—AFEBWREN

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BArrWEE®K(E)
(x)  (Continued) x) (&)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEMELEZ2BERA
FH
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Frii g 2 SRTT 17 MR € 1,076
Cash consideration RerE (2,108)
Deposit paid Bftize 2,108
1,076
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WBHASEEBEBEZTE

(i)

e sans @it tmEna,

Included in the Group’s result for the year ended March
31, 2016 was a loss of HK$2,000 attributable to the
acquisition of JHEET /7. No revenue contributed by
SASAT 7 £ for the year ended March 31, 2016.

On April 30, 2014, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of BT R /GEH IR AR A 7
(“HZETHEE") at a consideration of RMB24,500,000
(approximately HK$29,341,000). The acquisition was
completed on October 1, 2015, on that date the
control in YHZET 8,8 was passed to the Group. Y438
MEE is principally engaged in natural gas and LPG
business. The directors of the Company considered
that the acquisition will bring about a further synergy
effect of the existing business of the Group.

(xii)

AEBBE-_T—X~E=ZA
=+t HLEFEZEESR
EEBRRBAEM FEY
2,000 T 518 - JREE T 7 I
REBEE=-ZE—XRF=A=1+
—BLEFETESE TR

BX

RZE—NFMA=+H"
AEBZWEBE AR BB LE
ZHEIM B RS B
ANEBWREABEMRGE
WMMRARAR(ABET R
1) 2100% R A& & R
& A& A R #24,500,0007T (4
29,341,000/ ) - W2 R
—E—AF+TA—HEK"
RE B AHEMEE Z1EH
HEBEAREE - HEMR
BEERERRIEERR
tEABREK - ARAES
REWREEEBEALEER
EEBEREZ R RWE -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk (&)

B R-ZEBE-—A"FEBWEMN

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) B A e W iEERK (&)
(xii)  (Continued) (xiy (&)
Consideration transferred EEENE

HK$'000
FET
Cash & 25,820
Consideration payable FEHRE 3,521
Total 4=t 29,341

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at

the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

AREBERWE R #ERZ TR
BEERFAEABZAT

g :

HK$’'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment M- BB RE 13,822
Inventories FE 153
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H M EUERE 11,849
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRS 2,657
Trade and other payables B RHEAMERIE (14,194)
14,187

Goodwil P 15,154

29,341

RKER FTKEZES R
HEmMmEREBRZ AFERE
#) 4858 511,849,000 7T » 1
W AR BEEEIZKEE A
ReRs&EGBTAST -

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$11,849,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase

B R-ZEBE-—AFEBWEBHK

of subsidiaries in 2016 (Continued) BArrWEE®K(E)
(xii)  (Continued) (&)
Gooduwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZEHSE
HK$’000
F# T
Consideration transferred EEENE 29,341
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W T E R B RFE E
assets acquired (14,187)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEEZEE 15,154

e sans @it tmEna,

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of SAZE T H/&
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales
of natural gas and LPG business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

A REmREMELZ
HMEDERERMABEEE
% N s RE S 2 B H
BREEN -

T8 30 4 R 5% TR MR Th B A

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. ZREEAT IR BIIE -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AREmELEZ2RERE
FE
HK$'000
F#&IT
Bank balances and cash acquired Tk RTHEF RS 2,657
Cash consideration HERE (25,820)
Deposit paid [RENE &7 10,079
(13,184)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group KBHAEEXEIRE

Included in the profit for the year ended March 31,
2016 was HK$1,873,000 attributable to the acquisition
of YASATE/E. Revenue of AT & included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31, 2016
amounted to HK$14,807,000.

HE-_Z—XF=ZA=+-—
AEFEZEZFBESBER
W B8 SR TE T 8 2 1,873,000
BT ARKEBEHEZT
—ANFZA=ZT—HLFE
WHEHREMRERE A
14,807,000/ 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R M EE

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(C) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of additional in interests in a joint venture in
2016

U

On March 15, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
acquired an additional 51% equity interest of 4t &
EREYRARAT (“EEWR”) at a consideration
of RMB1,975,000 (approximately HK$2,365,000).
The acquisition was completed on November 30,
2015, on which date control in EZE¥);7% was passed
to the Group. Since then E#¥)R ceased to be a
joint venture of the Group and become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. =37 is principally
engaged in the business storage and transportation
of gas and hazardous products. The directors of the
Company considered that the acquisition will bring
about a further synergy effect of the existing business
of the Group.

38. EHKWiE (&)

C R=Z—XREEBWRESE
ERRENERSWIBER

RZE—RF=A+EA"
NEBZHWEBRRERB LS
“hAKERE B
REBRBIETEEZERRD
REBRAR(EEYRDZ
51 AT REAAR
1,975,000 7t ( #J2,365,000
B WBER -_ZT—F
F+—A=Z+AZEK RE
H SEMR2EsEER
EAEHR-HJUI BEEWR
TEAALEBEZAERARAL
KERXEBZ2EHEB A
BleBEUREEREMA
kBT RER X
BoARREETRAKES
B AASERBEBLR
B 2R E -

Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FET
Cash B4 2,365
Fair value of previously held interest R AR ATE 2,273

4,638

2016/17 8164 4&
R R IERERA T
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

(C) Acquisition of a business through purchase C R=ZE—XREZEBRWES
of additional in interests in a joint venture in EQNREMEZNBER
2016 (Continued) (%&)

()  (Continued) 0 (&
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at ANEBEAYHE B R 2T
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group: BEENMEAEBBEZAYF
g :
HK$'000
F T

Property, plant and equipment LE =N 57,087
Inventories FE 158
Trade and other receivables B R EAMEKRIRIE 7,917
Bank balances and cash HITHGTERES 484
Trade and other payables B RkEMENIKE (65,027)
619
Goodwill = 4,019
4,638
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts RKEE FTREBZ2E SR
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted EmEREBEZ A FERE
to HK$7,917,000 at the date of acquisition. The best %) 48 58 57,917,000 7T ° 1
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash WEASBEHEZKREEH

flows not expected to be collected is nil. BemexEMBTAS -
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(C) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of additional in interests in a joint venture in

38. EHKWiE (&)

C R=Z—XREEBWRESE
ERNAHEMMERBBEER

2016 (Continued) (%&)
()  (Continued) 0o (&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEEZHE
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration transferred BEERE 2,365
Previously held interest in ZZEY)i as ajoint B A FEAFZLRIFFIFEESE A A
venture, at fair value BEMR I ERS 2,273
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B FTBERI B RFEE 2
assets acquired (619)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEAZEE 4,019

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of & =¥ was
attributed to anticipated profitability of its investment in
storage and transportation of gas and hazardous
products.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The fair value of the 49% equity interest in EZE¥R
previously held by the Group was re-measured as of
the date of acquisition, resulting in a gain of
HK$1,970,000 recognised in profit or loss and for the
year ended March 31, 2016.

RBEEMRIMELEZRE
BNEREMRRRERY G
REREGEBNREZHE
HIEFIBEN -

BERYEEZBRBENES
Z BRI

REBERMBBENEEY
TA9% M HE 2 A FERUE
HEHTE BHHEHEZZT
—RNEZA=Z+—8BLt#F
EREaTRAZWEAR
1,970,000 7T °

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEMEEZRESRE
FE
HK$'000
FET
Bank balances and cash acquired Frui b 2 SRIT4EF RIR© 484

Cash consideration

RERE

(2,365)

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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38. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)  38. ¥ #& Uk i (&)

C R=-ZB—XREZFBKRES

(C) Acquisition of a business through purchase

of additional in interests in a joint venture in
2016 (Continued)

i) (Continued)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group’s result for the year ended March
31, 2016 was a loss of HK$9,665,000 attributable to
the acquisition of EiE¥)E. Revenue of ZEWR
included in the Group’s revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2016 amount to HK$4,795,000.

If the above acquisitions during the year ended March 31,
2017 had been completed on April 1, 2016, total group
revenue and profit for the year would have been
HK$33,997,795,000 and HK$5,057,221,000 respectively.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had above acquisition been completed on April 1,
2016, nor is it intended to be projection of future results.

If the above acquisitions during the year ended March 31,
2016 had been completed on April 1, 2015, total group
revenue and profit for the year would have been
HK$29,432,600,000 and HK$2,885,770,000 respectively.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had above acquisition been completed on April 1,
2015, nor is it intended to be projection of future results.

ENARENMEDZRBER

(%)

0 (&)

W AEEXEBEZFE
AEEBHZ-_Z—XF=8
T+t BLEFEZEER
EEBRRBEEDRZ
9,665,0007% 7T fE5 18 7t A&
SEEHEE-_ZT—RF=ZAZ=
+T—BLEFERZNEEY
R ZS 4,795,000 7T ©

WLt RNBEE-_T—+tF=A
T+ BALEEFEZHKEEEY
ER-_FT—XNFWMA—A=E
B FRZEBRBKE KRG F
# o Bl %33,997,795,0005% 7T M
5,057,221,00078 7T © f# & & FHE #
S BAM AW M WEEEY
ER_ZTE—AFNA—BHTEKE
REBEBRENSZRa LEE
EEZERE  NTBREARRKRERE
ZTER o

WEARNEBEE-_FT—XF=A
T+ BLEFEZHKESZEY
ER_ZFT—HAFWMWA —B =
B FARAZEEBRKEREF
# 9 Bl %29,432,600,0007% 7T M
2,885,770,000/8 7T © & & FHE #t
S BAM AW EMKEEEY
ER-ZZ—RAFWMA—HERE
REEERENBZRFEREE
EEZEE TTEERRKEE
ZTEA o
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39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
PURCHASE OF A SUBSIDIARY

On October 12, 2015, a subsidiary of the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to
which the Group acquired 95% equity interest of SZ3I| T FRpR R EE
ZRBRAA ("RREELE") at a consideration of
RMB119,487,000 (approximately HK$143,098,000). The
acquisition was completed on October 25, 2015, on that date the
control in AR SAZ #E was passed to the Group. FIRRSEZE s
principally engaged in property holding business.

Assets at the date of acquisition recognised by the Group:

Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE
Non-controlling interest FE 1 IR =

3. ZBRBEMBARIWBEE

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
175

R_ZT—RAF+A+=-—H xEEZH
BABEBYE=FI L WBEWHE-
B AEEKRBRI TR MREER
HERAR([PHMEELE])BRRK A
i B A ARK119,487,0007T (4
143,098,000 7T) - WEBER =T — A
F+AZ+HRAZEK RER AR
BRIV EEBEARNET - hIRE
BRI BENEMETREY -

AEERKRBRAERZEE
HK$’000

TET

150,630
(7,532)

143,098

The non-controlling interests in ARAIZEEZ S recognised at the
date of the acquisition was measured by reference to the respective
proportionate shares of recognised amounts of net assets of
relevant subsidiary and amounted to HK$7,532,000.

RUEE B R 2 PR R FE i I
S ZHRENBRATEEFENZE
B RO E £ /7,532,000

o

2

Sl 8 Bk
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
the amounts due to joint ventures, associates, a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and bank and other borrowings disclosed in
notes 20, 24, 31 and 32 respectively, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital disclosed
in note 33, reserves and accumulated profits as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the management, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

40. EXERER

AREEEEAAS  REAEEET
ERETRENSEGELELE R
B 375 8 1B {1 5 75 T BB A F 46 48 K SR
o P AR R -

AEBMEAKBREER(HEBRES
BIAMEE20 24 - 31 R B2FE 2 B A
BENR - BER T RKE QR IR
R EUERRITREMEER) K AR T
HAEANELEZ(BMEBREZEE
TRAUNRGEER S RBEEHFE
N 2aEHEFHEK) o

EEEREZEARAREZERER
BRZEABRRTEAEB EREEE
ZEF O AKEBEBKNEE - BT
MR ETHEIEOREERFEE
EEEARERE-

1.E@MIT A

Categories of financial instruments WM IAEER
As at March 31
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—t&E —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Financial assets CRMEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE 324,304 211,175
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERA 27,402 11,364
Loans and receivables (including cash BEREERKRIE
and cash equivalents) (BREAeRESEEER) 9,102,191 8,817,280
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost B 31,776,065 28,866,133
Derivative financial instrument PTESmITA 936 4,500
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments, amounts due from
associates and joint ventures, trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, amounts due to associates and joint ventures,
amount due to a non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, derivative
financial instrument, bank and other borrowings, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risks

Currency risk

The Group collects most of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures as well as capital expenditures are also denominated
in RMB. However, the Group has certain bank balances, amount
due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and bank and other
borrowings that are not denominated in functional currency of the
respective group entities. The appreciation or devaluation of RMB
against foreign currencies may have positive or negative impact on
the results of operations of the Group.

During the current year, the Group entered into a cross currency
interest rate swaps contract to mitigate against the USD foreign
currency risk arising from its USD denominated bank borrowings.

As at end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currency are as follows:

HK$’000
FEx

Uss$ EV
HK$ BT
JPY =i
EURO BT

41.

Assets
BE

2017

—E—tHF

164,183
75,857

@I A (&)
BEBEEEEREE

AEBzFESRTITABDRFEAHEEE Y
RE FFEERE BUABERAAR
RERRFE EHREMEKRER
B LEMENERER BNBERTR
BERAFIA - BB DR FERE
TEEMIT A RITREME
E BEARTHERUAERITESF - Z
FeMTAZHFBRERMERE - T
XEEZEeM I AR ZRARRE
MR EZERAR BR - EREE
BREEZERR  AERREENER
WEITHEE ZEHE -

Az £
K8

™ % E

B E R

REBRBHRAGAAREWER
REMAXRERRZ T AAREE
BTl AKBETAETRITER:
JE AT BT JB8 % R 3F 8 AR 4 R FORUA R R 7T
REMEESFFUABEEERNINEE
S E ARBHIINEAEIRER
EEHAEERZKEXEBNERNKE

22
R °

RAFR  AEBFTLIXEBH X
a4 WREEUE T ENRITE
EEAZETINERR

RBEMR AEBSINESHEZEE
BERBBEZEREENT

As at March 31
R=BA=+—H
Liabilities

afE
2017
—E—iF

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
F# T

2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FHET

HK$’000
FHEx

576,566
101,695
= 544,511
= 18,175

816,486 1,018,568
881,651 =
554,099
22,515

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

41.

SEIA(E)
jﬁiﬂﬁﬁ"‘qfia ﬁ&ﬁﬁ(nﬁ)

Market risks (Continued) ™5 B B ()
Currency risk (Continued) B g ()
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DM

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%)
increase and decrease in RMB against respective foreign

TRAMAEERARE L ZINERE
Kz EE%( =T — N 1 6%) ZHKE -

currencies. 5% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when 5%(ZZF—R"NF:5%)AREBZEEA
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management ERNMERINERBITAZHEREL

personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in foreign
currencies rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5% (2016: 5%) against the
USD, JPY and EURO or where RMB weakening 5% (2016: 5%)
against HKD. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of RMB against the
USD, JPY and EURO or strengthening against the HKD, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the result for the year
and the balance below would be negative.

- WRERERERINEE XS E A A
BERET G  HRESNTEREHE
TN ZINEFFEEEIEE - Wk INE
MR 25%(=F —/XF :5%) BN W
HHARFAREBRE - TR T ZIESUE
HiMARBEZET - BEMBITHESS
ZERNF 5% I HEBTEESN(Z
T—RNEF 5% R - BRRERNEEM
Ao Tﬁ}\E’#fF‘L%TE* EI&EZTEEZ
BEHAEBTHE(ZZF—XF  5%)
B #SEFEXEBRAERERRZ
2 BTlE®niEEAaH -

Increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit
for the year end March 31,
BE=A=+-—-81L
R B 12 0% R 38 0 Ol 2)

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
US$ impact EJIn- 16,575
HK$ impact BT & (3,814)
JPY impact wE 20,779
EURO impact BT & 845
-I!!I 34,385
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative BHRERL - ARFARE BRI 8E <M
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure FAZRER WBERESFTTAREKE
does not reflect the exposure during the year. BZHNER R
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on interest
rate level as well as potential impact on the Group’s financial
position arising from volatility.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
amounts due from associates, amount due to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and fixed-rate bank and other borrowings
issued by the Group (see notes 24, 31 and 32 for details of these
balances respectively).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and floating-rate bank and other
borrowings (see notes 29 and 32 for details of bank balances and
these borrowings respectively). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rate risk for both floating-rate bank and other
borrowings, together with the interest capitalised to construction in
progress at the end of the reporting period. Floating-rate bank
balances have not been included in the sensitivity analysis as the
management considers that the interest rate would not fluctuate
significantly in the near future and therefore the financial impact to
the group is not significant. A change of 100 basis points (2016:
100 basis points) was applied to the yield curves and interest rate
on both floating-rate bank and other borrowings, together with the
interest capitalised to construction in progress. The applied change
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. If the interest
rate of variable rate bank and other borrowings, had been 100
basis points (2016: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, after taking into account the interest
capitalised to construction in progress, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the vyear,
construction

after taking amount of interest capitalised to
in progress, would decrease/increase by

HK$130,440,000 (2016: HK$150,616,000).
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s certain available-for-sale investments and held-for-
trading investments are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price
risk. The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks of listed equity instrument at the
reporting date. A 10% (2016: 10%) change is used when reporting
equity price risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in equity price.

For the year ended March 31, 2017, if the market bid prices of the
listed investments had been 10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year would increase/decrease by HK$2,288,000 (2016:
HK$949,000) and the Group’s investment revaluation reserve will
increase/decrease by HK$14,293,000 (2016: HK$2,627,000)
respectively. This is mainly attributable to the changes in fair values
of the listed held-for-trading investments and available-for-sale
investments respectively.

41.
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Credit risk

As at March 31, 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties or debtors provided
by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at each half-reporting end date and end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks in the PRC and banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any
significant concentration of credit risk on trade receivables, with
exposure spread over a number of sub-contractors, commercial
and household customers.

The policy of allowances for doubtful debts of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s estimate. In determining whether impairment
is required, the Group takes into consideration of aging status and
likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for
receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is recognised on
the difference between the estimated future cash flows expected to
receive discounted using the original effective interest rate and the
carrying value. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group

were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowance may be required.

41.

@I A (&)
BHEREEBERBKE)

™ 5 E & (&)

EE R
RZE—+F=RA=+—8B KXEEFH
HEAEIAEEHRAMBEENEAXN
EERBIDARXZHFREBITEB K
AEBEREERNGEEWBHIRRKRAT Z
ERRACHEENBERAENELE ZE
Ig

SREEREEERR AEBEZEEE
EEERRMEEECEERE SR
MR EMERER - ARG &S
EERBBETE - U REBR &
EPHRE R RREHRENSHEMER
BoEE AT E SR AR KRG
YWl e BIELRABERE- LM
FOARREERRAKREZEERR
E AR

HRRXZHFHBTEEERS ZRIT
REGEREEFCHEAGFERBSRE
EFBZRT AURBESZ Z2FEER
BRAER -

RBREHR AEELTEFAEHEES
FBUEBRZEREHEERR BRD
MREZ2DEH ARRKEETP -

AEERREBRBEZIBRIBREBERRZ
AU Bl B e D BT AT OB IR B A AT
BE RETSAAFLRER K&
B EERERL R AKREE- EEHT
K AJRE U 13 2 KRR T R R B B
W IR 8 R BB A & BRI B ET R R AT IR
O3R % EARE(E 2 R ZRAER - M
AEBEPZEBRRAEBE  BEKE
ZBFREEFIR 55 0 R FT B 7R 1F I RE S
o

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T

181



182

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

41.

@I A (&)
HHREREERERBEEE)

Market risks (Continued) 5 R Ry (4E)
Liquidlity risk T B JB B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition to issuance of
new shares, the Group also relies on bank and other borrowings as
a significant source of liquidity. The Group has net current liabilities
of HK$7,216,492,000 (2016: HK$6,156,331,000) as at March 31,
2017. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis because the directors believe that the
Group has sufficient funds to finance its current working capital
requirements taking into account of the cash flows from operations
and assuming the continuing ability to utilise the available long-term
bank loans facilities. As at March 31, 2017, the Group had available
unutilised long-term bank loans facilites of HK$62,955,853,000
(2016: HK$49,894,666,000). Details of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings as at March 31, 2017 are set out in note 32.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal gross cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) A1. €@ T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEEEERBE(E)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) 5 R R (4E)
Liquidity tables HEEH K
Weighted Carrying
average amount
contractual  Payable Between Between Total  attheend
interest on  Lessthan 1to  3months  Between Over undiscounted  of reporting
rate  demand 1month 3months  to1year 1to5years 5years  cash flows period
mEFY ARER -fiAZ =fEAZ RER  RESHR
EEEES &2 SR-BR ZH@A -F -EZRf HENL REREE BREEE

% HKS000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS00D  HKS00D  HK$(000 HK$000  HK$000
TEr TER  TER  TERT TR TR  TER TR THERL

At March 31, 2017 RZZ-t&
=A=t+-AH
Non-derivative financial ~ {74 ¢REE
liabilities
Trade and bill payables ZHEMEER
ERERE 2,317,685 760,737 954,695 973,122 5,006,239 5,006,239
Other payables and accrued . {t & B 18 |2
charges it BR 1,478,412 344,443 153,628 - 1,976,483 1,976,483
Amounts due to non- ERHBARE
controlling interests of BRER B
subsidiaries 276,572 - = = 276,572 216,572
Bank and other borrowings /7 R E- A& &
— fixed rate -E8 - - - 1211817 6,376,468 478,962 8,567,247 7,738,621
— floating rate - 28 707,266 476,912 19,725,679 15,879,814
Amounts due to joint EREEREZHE
ventures 797,393 - 797,393 797,393
Amounts due to associates [ fi B &

NG S 100,939 - 100,939 100,939

1,174904 4,503,363 1,582,092 11,478,312 16,342,924 1,368,957 36,450,552 31,776,061

At March 31, 2016 BWZB-RE
=A=t+-A
Non-derivative financial ~ ¥{T£&BEE
liabilities
Trade and bill payables BHRNEER
ERZRE - - 2487386 397,989 1075683 958,132 — 4919190 4919190
Other payables and accrued  H i fE 48R 18 |t
charges BB - - 1,032,674 240,597 107,308 - - 1,380,579 1,380,579
Amounts due to non- FERHB AR
controling interests of BRERZHE
subsidiaries - 231,673 - - - - - 231,673 231,678
Bank and other borrowings  $17 R A b fE &
— fixed rate -E8 472 - - - 1,383,026 2,527,750 459,461 4,370,236 4,005,862
— floating rate - %8 5.32 - 155,320 — 9315122 8,829,316 1,755,343 20,055,101 18,328,320
Amount due to anon- R —AMBARFE
controling interest of a BRER
subsidiary E 2 509 - - - - - 509 509
232,182 3675380 638586 11,881,138 12,315,198 2,214,804 30,957,288 28,866,133
The amounts included above for variable rate bank borrowings are WFEAEN BB ERNRNREEHARME
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those ERMEETFE - AL ERZERITEE
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting RS EWE -

period.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 4. €@ T A (8&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERMITEAFESTE
This note provides information about how the Group determines fair AWETREEBAEBNAEESES
values of various financial assets. MEEAFEZER-

() Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial

) AEERESFEEERLQATE
SFEBRERMEELTE
AEEZAFEFABRZEZ®
EEDRESBREPREZAFER
E-TREHBHAUNMNETZSS

assets are determined. MEBEEZAFEEZER
Fair value as at March 31
AFER=ZA=+—H Fair value
Financial assets 2017 2016 hierarchy
EREE —B—tF —E-RE NTEEER

Held-for-trading

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

investments — HK$27,402,000 — HK$11,364,000 Level 1
B LEHRAEES B EMRAFS
FIEEERSE -27,402,00 78 7T -11,364,0007% & £
Available-for-sale (RS Y T TIAYACEIN [ R M L o) (G )l Listed equity securities in Hong Kong
investments — HK$142,934,000 — HK$26,274,000 Level 1
AHEEZIRE BTN BB L MRAESH
-142,934,000% 7T -26,274,0007% 7C £
Available-for-sale Club debentures in Hong Kong — Club debentures in Hong Kong
investments HK$948,000 — HK$700,000 Level 2
AHEEZIRE BNl BEEGMES
948,000 7T ~700,0007% 7T F
Derivative Financial Cross currency interest rate swap Cross currency interest rate swap
Instrument Hong Kong — HK$936,000 Hong Kong — HK$4,500,000 Level 2
MEERIA BEERXEHRARED EBRXEBHM x4
-936,0007% 7T -4,500,0007 7T B

There were no transfer between instruments in Level 1 and 2

in both years.

E-R-GITAZENRMESFE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis
The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities,
except for corporate bonds, is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate their respective fair
values.

42. COMMITMENTS

Operating lease arrangements

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises and equipment which fall due

4. €@ T A (&)
ERMTAAFEEE

(i) BEFSBEEIFRAIFEFT
Bt REERERMEBERY
=1
HhemEEREREABE(RAE
FHRINAFEDIREBEABZEE
BEAZBRRERESNMEE -

ARBEER /LB HEK AT K
ZEMmeREEREBABZR
HEAEZEZAFERE-

42. &I

REMENRH

TEBEREBEA

RBERR AEEREE T HHEE
MZ A HEEEMERREBELERY
MAREBRARZNZ&EBSOT

as follows:
As at March 31
R=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Within one year —FNR 72,969
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFEFERAF(BIEEERT) 48,861
After five years A F 1% 79,893 92,933

.I!Il’ 214,763

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
in respect of rented premises and equipment. Leases for rented
premises and equipment are negotiated for an average term of one
to six years with fixed rental.
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42. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Operating lease arrangements (Continued)

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises
which fall due as follows:

42. #iE (&)

REENO R (8

FEBERHBEA

RN|ERR - REBEETHNHEERZ T
AREHENEREERY AEEDH
HERATAREEBEENKEITE
"

As at March 31

R=RA=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tfF A
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET

Within one year —F R 9,670
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRLF(REEEMTE) 8,287
After five years AF%& 5,716

.!l’ 23,673

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to ten years with
fixed rentals.

Capital commitments

The Group has entered into the following significant transactions,
which have not been included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year end March 31, 2017.

(i) In January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement with an
independent third party to acquire 100% equity interest in 7
% AAGBR /AT at a total cash consideration of
RMB31,775,500 (approximately HK$36,109,000). Total
deposit of RMB5,000,000 (approximately HK$5,682,000)
was paid during the year ended March 31, 2016. The
transaction has not been completed as at the date these
consolidated financial statements were authorised for
issuance.

MOZFHFHERER—E+5F B
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42. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Capital commitments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

In January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement with an
independent third party to acquire 75.66% equity interest in
SRS 2 LR R A 7 at a total cash consideration
of RMB16,800,000 (approximately HK$19,090,000). Total
deposit of RMB13,278,000 (approximately HK$15,089,000)
was paid during the year ended March 31, 2016. The
transaction has not been completed as at the date these
consolidated financial statements were authorised for
issuance.

In October 2016, the Group cooperated with CIIF to establish
the Fund and the capital commitment of the Group regarding
the Fund is set out in note 20.

In January 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement with an
independent third party to acquire 100% equity interest of
Continent Hong Kong Group Limited which holds 25% equity
interest in JEBGEMMA AR A7 at a total cash
consideration of HK$750,000,000 and other consideration
payable of HK$249,985,000. Total deposit of
HK$200,000,000 was paid during the year ended March 31,
2017. The transaction has been completed as at the date
these consolidated financial statements were authorised for
issuance.

As at March 31, 2017, the Group has capital commitments in
respect of the acquisition for property, plant and equipment and
construction materials for property, plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
amounting to HK$121,324,000 (2016: HK$226,399,000) and
HK$81,825,000 (2016: HK$83,379,000) respectively.

42. FiE (&)

BERZH (&)

iy MZZTE—ARF—A XARQRARIz—ME
2EMBARE—FZBILE=
71 3L BR P G e AR BB BSOS R
MR SRR E R A 575.66%
BAEZ BRESREAARE
16,800,000 7T (#719,090,0007% 7T.) °
Wiz e A AR 13,278,0007T (4
15,089,000/ L) E RN E ZE —Z T — X
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MEVBRRERERNE B Z
EXFEARTR °
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HEWMEREEEH D20 -
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43.

44.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. EEEKH
The Group pledged certain non-current and current assets and AKEBERETHEBRARIZE TR
equity interests over certain subsidiaries to banks to secure loan ErReEERKREERBETFRT  (EAE
facilities granted to the Group. Carrying amount of the non-current EEEZEZRECER DEBTER
and current assets pledged to banks to secure loan facilities TEAREBERZETMEERZIE
granted to the Group is as follows: MBERRBEERABENT :
As at March 31
R=ZA=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—iE —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FA&T
Long-term loan facilities RHBER@EE
Investment properties "EYE 64,000
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 68,536
Short-term loan facilities BEHERRE
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITER 517,676 275,554
.!II!I 408,090
At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s equity interests RBEHR ARRRETHB AR Z
in certain subsidiaries were pledged to a bank for credit facilities BARZERBETFTAEBR 2 FERER
granted to the Group. Y —RHRTT -
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 44. RKBE R &

The Group has joined a MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect of the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years at March 31, 2017 and 2016.

AEBAMMERBREELNMATE ST
Bloa LB NBERFERTESIE
Bl matlE A EEAtEEREBEM-
RESHECZEERASEZEED
BAVTHBIZITATE -REBRES
FrElZRA - BEREBEANUSAE
EZH &Mzt a8 REE R iE
B —BEXARETE 2B k#
K MRZE—EFRZE-R"F=ZA=
+— 8 2 U AT MR R R AR B
FRNZHR -
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44.

45.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are covered by
the retirement and pension schemes defined by local practice and
regulations. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement and pension
schemes. The only obligation of the Group in respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified contribution.

The calculation of contributions for PRC eligible staff is based on
certain percentage of the applicable payroll costs. The contribution
to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the rules set out in the
MPF Ordinance which is 5% on the basic salary of the relevant
employee subject to a specific ceiling.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant to
a resolution passed on February 6, 2003 (the “Old Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to any directors of the
Company, any employees of the Group, or any employee, partner
or director of any business consultant, joint venture partner,
financial adviser or legal adviser of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Old Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’
approval of the Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10%
limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the
renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Old
Scheme must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company then in issue. Each grant of options to any director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors. Where any grant of options to
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
or any of their respective associate would result in the shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already
granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in
the 12-month period up to the date of grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

44.

45.

iR k8 F EF & (&)

AEEBEANBEARZEEXMITED
KR R 2 RN SRR 2 5 BIRIE -
MEARAREKIEREFTEIZESE
TERAZBEADLERMR - A&
B RABHNFEHZETER/FLEE
K o

BARERE THRDBBERTENX
AETEOLARE HARBRSAEHZH
RRIBRBEZ GO ATIARE
BIEREBRH 25% M E LR -

B8 B B R DL A3 Y K Y

FA

ARARBRBR _ZEZ=F_ARAAEA
ZRFBRMEPM—ABRESFS(ZE
e ZAEZEIEREDRERAK
RAMEMES  NEBEEAEESHEM
XBEH GEBH AKSEYBER
FERBEZEMNREE ABALES -

BEZTE R E CBREMS R 2R
MBE - TR BBAREMEZETEE
AARREE#EITRD Z210% ([ 58] 5% #
FR])HMZI10%REE T A E 37 - Bl45
BRI EBRFTERELREAARQA
EEITRMGZ210% - RITFEREZE
BB EEMKITEZARITERER
HEMARERIT RN ER ERAEBE
RARTEEETRMAEKZ30%- T
1218 B EARI I TR A T Z BB RAEAT
BRZEBHEE  THHBERFARQG
ERTHRNDEE 1% SREBRETT
MEF THREZXETEREASIB
VBT ESHE - FRNRLEBRET
FERBRIELIERNITE S H (F (T
BATESBRTEEEERETEL
ZHENEBEITRE TEITROBAR
NAIEBETRA0AI%MEBEEEERD AL
121E A HA [ (& (& #8 #5,000,000%8 7T * &
ERHARARBRRELIME -

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T

189



45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$10 per grant. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date to be determined by the board
of directors to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant and (i) the nominal value of a share.

The life of the Old Scheme is effective for 10 years from the date of
adoption until February 5, 2013.

Since the Old Scheme expired on February 6, 2013, no further
options can be granted thereunder. However, the provisions of the
Old Scheme shall remain in force in all other respects and all
options, granted prior to its expiration shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance therewith.

A new share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on August 20, 2013 (the “New Scheme”). The purpose of
the New Scheme is to grant share options to eligible persons as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group. The New
Scheme will expire on August 19, 2023.

The eligible persons as defined in the New Scheme are individuals
or entities who or which may participate in the New Scheme (“Eligible
Persons”). The following individuals or entities who in the absolute
discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company have
contributed to the Group on the basis of their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group may participate in the New
Scheme:

(i) an eligible employee; and

(i) a non-executive director and an independent non-executive
director of any member of the Group; and

(i) anagent or a consultant of any member of the Group; and
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

V)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any director or employee of such supplier; and

a customer of any member of the Group or any director or
employee of such customer; and

person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy or
professional services to any member of the Group or any
director or employee of any such entity; and

a subsidiary; and

a company in which the Company holds, either directly or
indirectly, 20% or more of its equity interest.

Maximum number of shares available for
subscription

)

(i)

Subject to the Listing Rules, the maximum number of the
shares of the Company subject to outstanding unvested or
vested options under the New Scheme (“New Options”) and
outstanding options under other share option scheme of the
Company (“Other Options”) must not exceed 30% of the
shares or the Company in issue from time to time (“Overriding
Limit”). No New Options or Other Options may be granted if it
will result in this Overriding Limit being exceeded.

Subject to the Overriding Limit, paragraphs (i) and (iv) below,
the total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all New Options and Other Options
must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the August 20, 2013 (subject to adjustment in the event
of a capitalisation issue or rights issue or open offer of shares
of the Company, or consolidation, sub-division or reduction
of share capital of the Company (other than an issue of
shares of the Company as consideration in respect of a
transaction)) (“Mandate Limit”). Unless approved pursuant to
paragraphs (i) and (iv) below, no New Options or Other
Options may be granted if such grant will result in the
Mandate Limit being exceeded. New Options and Other
Options lapsed according to the terms of the New Scheme
or other share option scheme(s) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Mandate Limit.
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Maximum number of shares available for
subscription (Continued)

(i)  Subject to the Overriding Limit and an approval of
shareholders of the Company, the Company may from time
to time “refresh” a Mandate Limit provided that the total
number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all New Options or Other Options to be
granted under the limit as “refreshed” must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
resolution to approve the “refreshed” limit (“Refresher Date”).
New Options and Other Options previously granted (whether
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed (according to the New
Scheme or the other share option schemes of the Company)
or exercised) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as “refreshed”. The Company can seek
the approval of shareholders of the Company to “refresh” a
Mandate Limit any number of times as the Board of Directors
of the Company considers appropriate. Unless approved
pursuant to paragraph (iv) below, the board of directors of
the Company cannot grant any New Options on or after the
Refresher Date if such grant will result in the Mandate Limit
as refreshed being exceeded.

(iv)  Subject to the Overriding Limit and a specific approval of
shareholders of the Company, the board of directors of the
Company may grant New Options to Eligible Persons
identified by the board of directors of the Company. If the
approval of shareholders of the Company is obtained, the
board of directors of the Company may grant New Options
to any Eligible Person in respect of such number of shares of
the Company and on such terms as specified in that approval
of shareholders of the Company.
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Options granted under the New Scheme must be taken up within
20 business days of the date of grant and pay the Company the
amount payable, if any, on acceptance of the option. Any option
under the New Scheme which has vested, in respect of which all
conditions attaching to it have satisfied and which has not lapsed
may be exercised at any time, by no option may be exercised if
such exercise would, in the opinion of the board of directors of the
Company, be in breach of the New Scheme, any applicable law,
rule or regulation or the terms and conditions of the relevant option
granted under the New Scheme.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.

For the year ended March 31, 2016, 102,400,000 share options
were granted by the Company to certain directors of the Company
on June 25, 2015 and none of the share options were exercised.
100,000,000 share options are exercisable from June 25, 2015 to
June 24, 2022 upon satisfaction of some conditions and 2,400,000
share options are exercisable from April 16, 2017 to April 15, 2019
upon satisfaction of some conditions. The estimated fair value of
the options granted on this date is HK$268,000,000.

No share options were granted by the Company during the year
ended March 31, 2017.
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the share options granted on June 25, 2015 was
calculated by using the Monte Carlo Simulation Model. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of a
share option varies with different variables of certain subjective

45. B8R RSB R LR 4 7 2 A4
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CFTEBEREZATFERFERANTE
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BREBETEASETEEBRINTRAZ

assumptions. The following assumptions were used to calculate the AEMWE -t HEREANTLEREGFEH
fair value of the share options: TUAT/RE:
Tranche 1 Tranche 2
=it Eoi
Share price on valuation date F1E B ARE HK$11.06 HK$11.06
11.06% 7T 11.067 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$13.84 HK$13.84
13.848 7T 13.84%8 7T
Expected life of option B E 2 TEE ST 7.00 years 3.80 years
7.005 3.804F
Annualised volatility FEKRE X 36% 36%
Expected dividend yield T HR AR B M as R 1.15% 1.15%
Risk-free interest rate £ 2 B ) = 1.35% 0.72%
Exercise multiple ITIEBE 4.1 4.1
Post-vesting exit rate FBER X 0% 0%
As at March 31, 2017, the directors of the Company consider that RZE—tEF=ZA=+—H #BHR
the options being granted on April 16, 2014 and June 25, 2015 BEXNTEINR =_ZE—MNEMA ‘T‘/\
respectively will not vest as it is not probable that the non-market ARZE-—RAFAAZT+THERBEED E’J

performance conditions for exercising those share options will be
met. For the year ended March 31, 2017, no share-based payment
expense is recognised (2016: nil).

At March 31, 2017, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remaining outstanding under the
New Scheme is 345,600,000 (2016: 350,400,000) representing
6.96% (2016: 7.14%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED 45 BEREFTEI R UK B FE XS
PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) ™ (&)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TRIWHEE (BHEES)FEFEARQAEE
options held by employees (including directors) and movements in EzHEFEEAEEE-_E—+E=/A=1+
such holdings during the two years ended March 31, 2017: —HBIEWMEFEEEEREZZYE
o
Number Number of
Number of share share
Exercise of share Granted Lapsed Transfer p at C: lled pti at
Vesting Exercisable price options at during during during March 31, during the March 31,
Date of grant period period per share  April 1, 2015 the year the year the year 2016 year 2017
RZB-1%F RoB—KRE R=B—t%F
R mA—-RAZ =A=+-8 =B=+-8
REAH SEH ATEAR THME BREME SRERE FRBAR FREZ ZBREHE SFroaH ZBREXE
((Note 4)
(B 7 4)
Held by Directors
HESRSE
4.16.2014 (Note 1) (Note 1) 12.40 23,000,000 - — (2,000,000) 21,000,000 (4,000,000) 17,000,000
(B &ET) (B &E1)
6.25.2015 (Note 2) (Note 2) 13.84 — 100,000,000 — — 100,000,000 — 100,000,000
(P &E2) (P 5E2)
6.25.2015 (Note 3) (Note 3) 13.84 — 2,400,000 — — 2,400,000 (800,000) 1,600,000

(B 7E3) (Bt #£3)

23,000,000 102,400,000 —  (2,000,000) 123400000  (4,800,000) 118,600,000
Held by Others
HEMARFE
10.20.2005 10.20.2005t0 10.20.2010to
10.19.2010  10.19.2015 1.50 94,800,000 —  (94,800,000) = = = =
4.16.2014 (Note 1) (Note 1) 1240 225,000,000 = — 2,000,000 227,000,000 — 227,000,000
(BE&E1) (B EE1)
319,800,000 — (94,800,000 2,000,000 227,000,000 — 227,000,000
342,800,000 102,400,000  (94,800,000) — 350,400,000  (4,800,000) 345,600,000
Weighted average exercise price HK$9.39 HK$13.84 HK$1.50 HK$12.4 HK$12.82 HK$12.64 HK$12.82
MEFHTEE 9.39% T  13.84/ T 15078 7T 12470 128287 126487  1282% T
Exercisable at the end of the year 94,800,000 - - - - — -
ARERITE

Notes: M -

(1) The validity period of the options is five years from April 16, 2014 to (1) BREZEXBHA-Z—NFWAT
April 15, 2019. And the options may be exercised on or after April 16, ANAEZE-AFHNA+THEAB - MER
2017. The exercise of the options will be subject to the conditions AR Z—_T—tHFWA+ B zE
that (i) the audited profit after tax of the Group after deduction of non- TE-TEBREAIBRRUTGRYE
controlling interests for the financial year March 31, 2017 or before N EERBE=_T—tF=A=1+—
shall not be less than HK$5.5 billion; (i) if the above condition is not AL BFE k2 8l 2 I EZFE R T
fulfilled, the options may be exercised if the audited profit after tax of (MR FERERE) BT DRN5E
the Group after deduction of non-controlling interests for the financial I ()M A B R EER - AIER
year ended March 31, 2018 shall not be less than HK$6 billion; and (ii) BAERMAEBEREBEZE_T—\F=A
the options will lapse if the above two conditions are not satisfied. ST -HUEMBFEZEEZRE ST

(FEMBRIE IR B2 18) T DR B0E A T
BB AT+ R (i) 15 A | PR T8 I 1 R
BERK - RIIE R G E R o




196

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

2016/17 FINANCIAL REPORT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

45. IR HES

IR UGS

= (%)

Bt s ()

(2)  The validity period of the options is from June 25, 2015 to June 24, 2 EBREZERBEZZ-—RFAAZ
2022. And the options are exercisable upon satisfaction of either one +THEBEZT-_FAA=Z+MA M
of the conditions that (i) the Group’s audited net profit after tax and FERRE ] R ERCA TR — IH R 18
deduction of non-controlling interests for a full financial year based on T ()REBEASEZGEASCEXMBE
the consolidated audited financial statements of the Group amounts WK AEER—EATEVRELZ 2L
to HK$7.5 billion or above; or (i) the total market capitalisation of the ERBEAR(EMBRIETERERRZ)
Group amounts to HK$150 billion or above, where the “total market ERT7SEA TN L HMAEEZE
capitalisation” shall be the product of the closing price of the shares MEZER1,500B8 sk AL fml4@m
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock BIEAERRAGNRMVEMRS AT
Exchange at the end of any trading day and the total number of EERBRXAMEBHEREXRMY 2 WH
issued shares of the Company on that same day. The options will B "RUAAQRAIRBEBEITRMDEE -
lapse if none of the above conditions is satisfied within the validity fitt EHUE B RREREZBRARN
period of the options. EAKC RIBRESE R -
(3)  The validity period of the options is from June 25, 2015 to April 15, @ EBEREZERHBEZZ-—RFASAZ
2019. And the options may be exercised on or after April 16, 2017. +HRBE-_ZT-NAFWOA+HEB M
The exercise of the options will be subject to the satisfaction of either BEAR=_ZFT-—LtFHA+ B
one of the conditions that (i the Group’s audited net profits after tax BT - TR BRI R ZE R R — 1B
and deduction of non-controlling interests for the financial year ending AT (BREBEAEB 2 REKEEZ
March 31, 2017 based on the consolidated audited financial MmE AEERBEE_Z—tF
statements of the Group amounts to HK$5.5 billion or above; or ii) if —A=T-BLHUBFEZLEZR
the above condition is not fulfilled, the options may be exercised if the B R (SRR IR E S 18 ) iZ FI55
Group’s audited net profit after tax and deduction of non-controlling BA T A b ¢ sk (i)E £t i R =
interests for the financial year ending March 31, 2018 based on the B AR B RSB G RERME
consolidated audited financial statements of the Group amounts to W& AEERBE_Z-N\F=A=
HK$6 billion or above. The options will lapse if none of the above T —BUEMBFE LT ZREMLETR
conditions is satisfied within the validity period of the options. (EMBIEEBEREZ) ZEF6GOEET
A E - BIREBE A /TR - i &
L9 R P PE IR 2 B SR R E A
B B AR AR K R o
(4)  The options were forfeited upon resignation of the employees. 4 HERNESBBERK-

RZZE—LHE=ZA=+—8 HR1TE
MEZMEFARBEOFRRIF (=
TRNF45F)-

The options outstanding as at March 31, 2017 have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 3 years (2016: 4 years).

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BB FT R Z

B HT3520 2427 - 3031 DRI E
ZEW () BB 5 2 B RR B I
AEEBETVIIAEEXNERRZETEHN

BRI MRS

Apart from the amounts due from (to) related parties and
transactions as disclosed in notes 20, 24, 27, 30 and 31
respectively, the Group entered into the following transactions with
major related parties that are not members of the Group:

(i) Hz_Z2—+F#=ZA=+—H1t
FE - AEE L4 527,045,000
B IL( = F — 7N F 1 69,248,000%8
TRAEERRIEBERR -

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group purchased
gas for total amount of HK$27,045,000 (2016:
HK$69,248,000) from joint ventures.
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(V)

(v)

(vii)

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group sold gas
for total amount of HK$136,475,000 (2016: HK$11,672,000)
to joint ventures.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group received
gas connection revenue for total amount of HK$42,389,000
(2016: Nil) from joint ventures.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group purchased
consumables and spare parts for total amount of
HK$309,445,000 (2016: Nil) from associates.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group purchased
gas appliances for total amount of HK$234,029,000 (2016:
Nil) from an associate.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group received
interest income for total amount of HK$1,120,000 (2016:
HK$3,429,000) from a joint venture.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group received
interest income for total amount of Nil (2016: HK$836,000)
from an associate.

The remuneration of key management of the Group was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post employment benefits

72 H3 4R A
BB IR B A

46. BB AR 5 (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vii)

HEzE-_Z—+tF=A=+—H1
FE - AEE D4R 136,475,000
B (=& — /8 F 111,672,000
TLAAEBERBIHEMRT -

HE-_ZT—+tF=-A=+—H1
FE AEEREERQAKIUMK
R B 4 5 542,389,000 7T
(:l7 JNAF iﬂ

HE-_T—ttF=-—A=+—H1t
FE AEENMBE QAR REERE
o M1 - 4858 /5 309,445,00075 T
(ZB—RF:F)o

HE-_Z—+tF=ZRA=+—8H1
FE AEBUE-—FRBERARRE
Wﬁ%ﬂ@%%%mmmm%m
(ZBE—RF:T) -

HE-_Z—t#=ZA=+—81t
FE AEERR—REEQE KRR
FE U A 42 %8 51,120,000 7T (=
T — N 4F 3,429,000/ 7T) °

HE-Z—+tF=-A=+—HLt
FE - AEEHN—REE Q8 W
FEWABEAST(ZT—~F:
836,000 7T) °

AEBEIEEEEZMEWT

For the years ended March 31
BZE=RA=t+—H1L

2017 2016
=B TR fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERx FTET
40,759

54

40,813

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

47.

The remuneration of key management is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

)

On March 30, 2017, the Company received a form of claim
filed by a former director of the Company in the Labour
Tribunal of Hong Kong claiming approximately HK$140
million (being the alleged loss of salary in the sum of HK$21.6
million (annual salary of HK$7.2 million) for the three financial
years ended March 31, 2014 and the aggregate bonus in the
sum of approximately HK$118.4 million for the four financial
years ended March 31, 2014) and other unliquidated
damages and interest from the Company for the alleged
wrongful dismissal by the Company of a former director of
the Company as a director and an employee of the Company
on March 29, 2011. By the mutual consent of the parties to
the claim, the claim has been transferred to the Court of First
Instance of the High Court.

In addition, the above former director and other share option
holders initiated legal proceedings against the Company with
regard to their respective purported exercise of share
options.

In respect of the aforementioned legal proceedings, the
Company has sought advice from its legal advisors and has
been advised that there is a sound basis for defending the
above claims. For details of the legal proceedings, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated June 2,
2017 on the website of the Stock Exchange.

On June 9, 2017, the Group cooperated with BOCOM
International Trust Company Limited (“BOCOM International”)
to establish the China Gas BOCOM (Shenzhen) Clean Energy
Equity Investment Fund L.P. (the “BOCOM Fund”). The
BOCOM Fund is expected to have an aggregate capital
commitment of up to RMB10 billion in which RMB9 billion
and RMB1 billion will be contributed by BOCOM International
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and the Group respectively.
The BOCOM Fund will provide capital support for investment
in the Group’s 4G (PNG, LNG, CNG and LPG) energy
projects.

46. BB AR 5 (&)

B

EEEMEAFMNEZESKLEEE

ARRETIEBEIREE

47. BEHREE

)

R-E—tF=ZA=+8 £A2Q7
BEEARARNTESEREBLE
BEHERINBRE  UEHEEE
BARREERRER T ——
FZAZ+NBHEARETERF
BABHRARNGERNIABET
(ABBEZEZE_ZT—HWE=/A=+
—BLE=ZASBRFENFSIEX
BENEEETL(FEHSAT2
AEBT)REE-_ZE-NME=A4
=+ —HIMEYBREERNLL
D184 BAE L) R EMAKE TR
EFERFE - KEHFRE %8
RREISEARERERE -

Bibzsh BlATEESEREME
BEFEARESEBRITER
PR IR AN A AR AR DA R AR AA ©

Pl ZERFRME  ARAE
AEZEBRASKERLESH
HAEASKES LABRFELT
R BBZRFDLRNFEB F2H
RARARRZZE—+FRNAZRE
BT UPTE R o

RZZE—+FXANB AEEHE
RBPEBEEEARAA(RRE
1) MR R ER CR YD 7B R BB TR
BREREECABLE(BRER)
(IRBES])  -BARBESHR
BEARFEEGEAREKI00ET - H
FARBIOEBITEAREI0ET
EoBAREREREEENE
RAIRAEBEE RRESK A
K & E #4G(PNG ~ LNG * CNG I
LPG) e RBEREIREE S -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tHF=A=+—HILFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HEAR AR

PIMAE LRI ER
A

FREEERAT

b e R AR R A
ARRE

@B R R TR R R
ARRE

PR TR R
ARRE

HEFRUTHREER
ARRE

EER RN TRRER
ARRE

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations
AR 3 = R R
SEE

PRC

PRC

FE

PRC

FE

PRC

FE

PRC

FE

PRC

FE

Form of
business
structure

EZ T3 %

Wholly-foreign
owned
enterprises
("WFOE")

SERE
(TWFOEJ)

WFOE

WFOE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

FIHEGERT

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

FIHEERA

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

FIHEERT

Limited
liability
company
EREERA

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

FIHEGERT

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital
HMEERITRE/
EMEAR

Registered
US$29,800,000

i
29,800,000 7

Registered
RMB898,637,000
AR
898,637,0007T

Registered
RMB20,000,000

it A K%
20,000,000

Registered
RMB44,000,000

it A K%
44,000,0007C

Registered
RMB100,000,000

EAUIPN
100,000,007

Registered
RMB70,000,000

EAUIPN
70,000,0007C

Registered
RMB72,000,000

it A K%
72,000,0007C

48. TEMBRAFE

TEMBRRFE

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
ARAMBERITRE
EMEAEELA
As at March 31
W=A=+-R
2016
—E-RE
%
100%
100
60*#
80*#
90*#
70*#
100%

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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LU

Principal activities

TEXEH

Investment holding
and treasury

REZBNER

Investment holding
and treasury
REERRER

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMREERR

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMREERR

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMREERR

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

ARFRHERMREERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARFRHERMREERR
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Name of subsidiary

HEAR AR

B8 e A998 T A R B B
BRARF

ZRAMRARBBRRA

ERPERTMRAER
BRARF

B PRRTRRER
BRARF

B R TR B R
BRATF

M PR TR R
BRATF

BRPRRHRRER
BRARF

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

o 1 AR 37 =5 R
SEESE

PRC

A

PRC

PRC

A

PRC

22l

PRC

PRC

HE

PRC

22l

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Form of
business
structure

ES EL %

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

P A EAT

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

FIHEERT

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

P A EAT

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

FIHEERT

WFOE

WFOE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

FIHEEBERT

WFOE

WFOE

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital
HMEBRITRE/
EMEA

Registered
RMB35,000,000
A ARK
35,000,0007C
Registered
RMB118,950,000
A ARK
118,950,0007C
Registered
RMB16,002,000
A ARK
16,002,0007T
Registered
RMB11,274,000
A ARK
11,274,0007C

Registered
US$3,060,000

wEfit
3,060,000 7T

Registered
US$40,000,000

wEfit
40,000,0003% 7T

Registered
US$1,000,000

wEfit
1,000,000% 7T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31,2017 B Z T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
ARAMBERITRE
EMEAEELA
As at March 31
W=A=+-R
2017 2016
it SN — T F
% %
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
75*#
100%

48. T EK B~ 8 FF15E (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Place of

incorporation Form of Paid up issued

or registration/ business share capital/

Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital

= 78 B 32 25 = R HREEBRTRA/

Liip PNk SEE EBEBERA EE AR

BRARETRRER PRC Sino-foreign Registered

BB AR equity joint RMB265,725,000
venture

2l FHNEE DA AfMARY

265,725,0007C

ERPRATRAERE PRC Sino-foreign Registered

BB AR equity joint RMB200,000,000
venture

2l FHNEEBE DA AfMARY

200,000,0007T

EHRRETIRAERE PRC Sino-foreign Registered

BB AR equity joint RMB42,000,000
venture

2l FHNEEB DA AfMARY

42,000,0007T

SERMRADRRAER PRC WFOE Registered

BRAA RMB50,000,000

th & WFOE HMARE

50,000,0007T

BIER AT IRAERE PRC Sino-foreign Registered

BB AR equity joint RMB133,330,000
venture

2l FHNE B DA AfMARY

133,330,0007T

EEFRETRAERE PRC Sino-foreign Registered

BB AR equity joint RMB20,000,000
venture

2l FHNE B DA AfMARY

20,000,0007T

BETRRERAA PRC Sino-foreign Registered

equity joint RMB183,800,000
venture

2l FHNEE DA AfARY

183,800,0007C

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
ARAMBERITRE
EMEAEELA
As at March 31
R=A=+-8
2016
T RE
%
64%
100%
100%
100%
70%
100%
80“#

48. TEM B~ 7 FF15E (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

AARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

AARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

AARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

AARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

AARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction

AARRHERMAEERR

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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(CONTINUED)

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Proportion of

48. T EM B~ 8 FF15E (&)

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
o 1 AR 37 =5 R BEBRTRE/ AQAMBERTRES
Liig PN SEESE EBEBERA EMEA EMEAEELA TEEH
As at March 31
R=A=+-8
2017 2016
it SN — T F
% %
B mEERERER AR PRC Limited liability Registered 100" Investment in
company RMB1,130,000,000 petrochemical facilities
of storage and
transportation,
fundamental facilities
of pier, sales of raw
chemical materials and
construction materials
R BREERARA AR & AltRERFRERES
1,130,000,0007C REREBORZME
[RIG1L S0 K R 22 5E
MHEHE
BMNESN A ARRERAR PRC Limited liability Registered 95.37" 95.37% Manufacturing of highly
company US$60,000,000 purified LPG, highly
purified propane and
butane
R BREERA iy EERFELPG
60,000,000 7T SELERERT &
BREFHEERERA A PRC Limited liability Registered 60 Storing and trading of
company US$7,000,000 LPG, sales of chemical
products, filing of
PG and delivery of
hazardous products
B BEREERTA At ff BERBEELPG T
7,000,000 & EmHE LT ALPGR
el R+
IEPHREIACARAR PRC Limited liability Registered 100* Producing and storing
company US$10,000,000 PG and chemical
product
HE BREERAA at SERBEFLPGRILIER
10,000,000% T
EREERRERAA PRC Limited liability Registered 80" Sales of natural gas
company RMB50,000,000 RARHE
B BEREERA HHARKE

50,000,0007C
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

HEARAMH

EHMREEERAT

EHEERRERAR

BERTREREMRERAF

EETHRREMRRERAT

BEM A g AR
ERERDF

MR TR
ERERDF

BRI
MRRERRF

1M IR TR
ERERDF

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

= 8 B 32 25 = R
SEESE

PRC

FE

PRC

FE

PRC

HE

PRC

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

Form of
business
structure

ES 2L i

WFOE

WFOE

Limited liability
company
BEREERA

Limited liability
company
BEREFERARA

Limited liability
company
AEREEAR
Limited liability
company
AEREEAR
Limited liability
company
AEREEAR
Limited liability
company
AEREEAR
Limited liability

company
EREERA

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital
BEBRITRE/
EMEAR

Registered
US$30,000,000
iy
30,000,000% 7T

Registered
RMB64,000,000
AR
64,000,0007T

Registered
RMB38,000,000
A ARE
38,000,0007C

Registered
RMB20,000,000

AMARE
20,000,0007C

Registered
RMB30,000,000

AMARE
30,000,0007C

Registered
RMB100,000,000

AMARE
100,000,0007C

Registered
RMB20,000,000

AMARE
20,000,0007C

Registered
RMB50,000,000
AR
50,000,0007C

48. TEM B~ 7 FF15E (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
ARAMBERITRE
EMEAEELA
As at March 31
R=A=+-8
2016
T RE
%
100
100*
64%
64%
100%
100%
80“#
100%

2016/17 81 k=
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Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding

RERR

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
ARARHEERMREBER

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
RAARHERMRE BER

Design, construction and
maintenance of city
pipeline projects

WHRRE B TR
ERR&E

Sales of natural gas and

gas pipeline

construction
AARHERMREBRR

Design, construction and
maintenance of city
pipeline projects

WHRRE B TRR
ERR&E

Design, construction and
maintenance of city
pipeline projects

WHRREE TR
ERRA&E

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction

ARRHERMREERR
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

HEAR AR

EERPRAR
REERAF

FER H o BRI T AR
RBERERAF

RER MRS
MRERERAT

HE R R TR R
ERERAF

BE BRI TR
FRERRDA

AT IR E SRR
BRATF

TRESETRER

BRATF

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

o 1 AR 37 =5 R
SEESE

PRC

A

PRC

FE

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

Form of
business
structure

ES EL %

Limited liability
company

BRAFEAT

Limited liability
company
EREERA

Limited liability
company
BEREERA

Limited liability
company
BREFERARA

Limited liability
company
AEREEAR
Limited liability
company
BEREEAR
Limited liability
company

BRAFEAT

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital
HMEBRITRE/
EMEA

Registered
RMB16,000,000

AMARE
16,000,0007T

Registered
RMB150,000,000
AR
150,000,000 7T

Registered
RMB24,489,800
AR
24,489,8007T

Registered
RMB40,000,000
A AREK
40,000,0007C

Registered
RMB300,000,000
A ARK
300,000,0007T
Registered
RMB300,000,000
A ARK
300,000,0007T
Registered
RMB50,000,000
A ARK
50,000,0007C

—E—tF

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ARAMBERITRE
EMEAEELA
As at March 31
R=A=+-AR

2017 2016
—T—RF
% %

75“#

felelid

69.80%

69.80*

100%

100

100

100

48. T EM B~ 8 FF15E (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Design, construction and
maintenance of city
pipeline projects

WHRREE IR
ERRA&E

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction

AARHERMAEBRR

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
ARARHEERMREBER

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction

ARRHERMAEERR

Design, construction and
maintenance of city
pipeline projects

WHRREE IR
ERRAEE

Producing and storing
LPG and chemical
products

EERFEFLPGRILIER

Producing and storing
LPG and chemical
products

LERFEFLPGRICIER
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/ business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
= 8 B 32 25 = R HEREBRTRE/
Liip PN SEESE EBEBER EMEAR
KB R EER(ORIN) PRC Limited liability Registered
BRAR company US$59,600,000
B AEREEAR ff
59,600,000 7T
R AR R R R PRC Limited liability Registered
AR A A company US$10,000,000
HE BREMFRA af fit
10,000,000% 7t
BEM/IRKE PRC Limited liability Registered
TR company RMB8,000,000
HE EREERA AR &
6,000,0007C
R AR AR B PRC Limited liability Registered
BRAR company RMB20,000,000
HE BEREFERARA HHARE
20,000,0007TC
TERRFRETRR PRC Limited liability Registered
BEREBRAR company RMB397,050,000
H B BEREFERARA HMARE
397,050,0007T
HIRRAEIRE S PRC Limited liability Registered
BERAR company RMB100,000,000
B BEREERRA FHARKE
100,000,0007C
ERBERS ORI PRC Limited liability Registered
BRAT company US$30,000,000
B BEREERA i

30,000,000 7T

48. TEM B~ 7 FF15E (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
ARAMBERITRE
EMEAEELA
As at March 31
R=A=+-8
2016
T RE
%
100%
100%
66##
100*
85*#
100%
100%

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
205

Principal activities

TEEH

Gas station construction,
management and
consultancy services

MRMER BER
& 3 BR 75

Production of natural gas

ABREE

Design, construction
and maintenance
of city pipeline projects
WHRREEIRRA
HERR#E

Consultancy services on
[T communication
systems and sales of
computer software

IT3B R Ao A R
REMBEHHE

Design, construction and
maintenance of city
pipeline projects

WHRREE TR
ERR&E

Development,
consultancy services
and investment in
clean energy

- FARER
BRRRRE

Provision of finance
leasing consultancy
services

RERERELARE
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

HEAR AR

PRELEETED
BRARF

IR (SR E I (R )
ARRE

RY R R
ARRE

DRZERERRA
BEEERARA

Panva Gas Holdings
Limited

China Natural Gas
Investments Limited

Panriver Investments
Company Limited

China Gas - SK Energy
Holdings Co. Ltd.

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

o 1 AR 37 =5 R
SEESE

PRC

i

PRC

i

PRC

22l

PRC

FE

BVI

KBRRZS

BVI

KERXZS

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

£

Form of
business
structure

ES EL %

Limited liability
company

BRAEAT

Limited liability

company

BRAEAT

Limited liability

company
BEREERARA

Limited liability
company
EREERA

Incorporated

FETT AR 32

Incorporated

M AL

Limited liability
company
EREERA

Limited liability
company
EREERA

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital
HMEBRITRE/
EMEA

Registered
RMB200,000,000

EAUIPN
200,000,0007C

Registered
RMB100,000,000

i AR %
100,000,0007C

Registered
RMB400,000,000
A AREK
400,000,000 7T

Registered
RMB133,000,000
AR
133,000,0007T

Ordinary
Us$1,111
)
1,111

Ordinary
US$100

g
100% T

Ordinary
HK$200,000,000
%R
200,000,000 7T

Ordinary
HK$18,200,000
]
18,200,000/% 7T

—E—tF

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ARAMBERITRE
EMEAEELA

As at March 31
W=A=+-R

2017 2016

—E—REF
% %

100

100%

100%

65“#

100

100*

100

100

48. T EM B~ 8 FF15E (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Consultancy services on
IT communication
systems and sales
of computer software

BARGEARS
REMBM M HE

Provision of

management services

to group companies
REBRAREEERS
Sales of LPG
LPGH#H%E
Sales of natural gas and

gas pipeline construction

AARHERMAEBRR

Investment holding
and sales of LPG
REZRRLPGHE

Investment holding

REZK

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERR
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

HEARAMH

EHARRRERAE

Fortune Gas Investment
Holdings Limited

Energy Link Investments
Limited

China Gas Energy
Utilisation Holdings
Limited

Zhongran Energy
Network Development
Limited

EH&ER

EE TR

Rosy Link Investment Limited

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

o {7 AR 37 =5 R
SEESE

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

£

Hong Kong

£

Hong Kong

£

PRC

FE

PRC

HE

BVI

KBRZS

Form of
business
structure

ES 2L i

Limited liability
company

BREFEAT

Limited liability
company

BREFEAT

Limited liability
company
EREERA

Limited liability
company
BREMFRA
Limited liability
company
BREMFRA
Limited liability

company
BEREERA

Limited liability
company
BEREFERRA

Incorporated

T AR 3L

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital
BEBRITRE/
EMEAR

Ordinary
US$59,027,780

3]
59,027,780% 7T

Ordinary
HK$702,730,911

g
702,730,911 7T

Ordinary
HK$800,000,000
%R
800,000,000 7T

Ordinary
HK$1

Hi
17

Ordinary
HK$100

#i
10078 7T

Registered
RMB10,000,000
AR
10,000,0007C

Registered
RMB11,000,000
A ARE
11,000,0007T

Ordinary
US$1

£
1E7T

48. TEM B~ 7 FF15E (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
APAMBERTRE
EMEAEELA
As at March 31
W=A=+-R

2016
—E—RF
%

70“#

1007

100

100"

100"

207
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Principal activities

TEEH

Exploration and
production of coal
bed methane

R R A ER R T 5

Investment holding,
sales of natural gas
and CBM business

REER RARHE
K CBME 7%

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
ARRHEERMREBER

Sales of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
RAARHERMREBER

Investment holding
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. T EMB QR FE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
o 1 AR 37 =5 R BEBRTRE/ AQAMBERTRES
Liig PN SEESE EBREBER EMEA EMEAEELA TEEH
As at March 31
R=A=+-8
2017 2016
= PR AN — TR F
% %
REFMEREEFR AR PRC Limited liability Registered - Development,
company RMB390,310,000 production and supply
of gas appliances
ale AEREEAR AR % EERRBMEAA
390,310,0007T
Beijing Gas BVI Incorporated Ordinary - Investment holding
US$1
IR E R RABRERS Gaiif2ava g REEK
1E7T
JEFRER N PRC Limited liability Registered ~  Distribution of city gas and
company RMB300,000,000 natural gas for vehicle use
and the construction of long
distance natural gas pipeline
2l BEREEAR AfMARE BHRARERRAR
300,000,0007T HERREBAARES
EofEs

The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered
capital/registered capital directly held by the Company.

ki The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered

capital/registered capital indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Note:

1) The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, practically
carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote
at any general meeting of the Company or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the both years.

¢ ARAEREFBEZERTRA ZME
A/IMEREELLH -

" ARAEEREZERTRA ZME
AIMERBELLH -

ERFINEZRREAKEREXEE
BEXEREZARAZIEMBRA -
EERAs RHEHEAHMBRARAFEEE
HEMBRILEK -

() EBEEEOKAFBAEESE MERL
A B 75 U HR AR B, B M R X R AE AT R
RREBE HESIANETLERER
RIBEEF D ZAER D IR ZHER

&8 2 R % M E R S R (T
A REEBEBES
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of the financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Available-for-sale investments
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables and prepayment
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year

Net current liabilities

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Non-current liability
Bank and other borrowings
— due after one year

FRBEE

B N

FABT B 2 R 2 R 5
REEREZHRE
REERAZKE
AHEEZKRE

& W P /i 2 ) 3R IR

mEBEE

H i & W AR I8 & TR AN R IR

RiTHEFERBA S

mEBAE

Hoh & A AR IE I B 5 RROR

JE& A P /B 2 R)3RIR
RITREMEE
—R—FREH

FRBEME
RITREMEE
—RN—FREH

49. KRB BB AR K

ARBRBERR 2P HAMRNKE R0

T

As at March 31
R=A=+—8

2017 2016

o S T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
- 608
7,064,688 6,443,140
1,410,350 1,410,350
598,974 598,974
2,900 2,900
12,249,298 13,028,688
21,326,210 21,479,660
208,842 14,251
229,572 329,095
438,414 343,346
60,622 33,062
4,235,982 6,808,389
1,758,886 1,095,504
6,055,490 7,937,455
(5,617,076) (7,594,109)
15,709,134 13,885,551
49,685 49,104
8,711,119 8,413,628
8,760,804 8,462,732
6,948,330 5,422,819

15,709,134

13,885,551

L.

2016/17 81 k=
R R IERERA T
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? 49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE =~ 49. Zx A &) B #& ik R 3k (&)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: KANBZ2FERT
Employee
share-based Capital

Share compensation Translation Contributed redemption Accumulated

between the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company as a result of the group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1995 and the nominal amount of the
Company’s share capital issued as consideration for the acquisition.

premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits Total
EERHB E5EE
43 % E BHEE ERRE ESES wE Rt RA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FiEL FiEL T FEL T L  TEn
(note)
(M3E)
At April 1, 2015 RZE-RFENA—A 8,020,635 1,368 (115,794) 65,475 192 1,267,627 9,239,503
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EE%E 7k 2 AW A 858
income for the year - - - - - 1,162,142 1,162,142
Exchange difference arising from & & 4 7 [E 3 =58
translation - - (89,570) - - - (89,570)
Repurchase of shares [ 8 % 2 (946,354) - - - 915 (915)  (946,354)
Transfer to acoumulated profits ~ RRMEBRER EEE
upon forfeiture of share 27
options - (1,368) - - - 1,368 -
Dividends paid BERKRE = = = - = (942,093 (942,099)
At March 31, 2016 R=E—~"FE=ZA=1+—H 7,074,281 — (205,364) 65,475 1,107 1,478,129 8,413,628
Profit and total comprehensive B &I R 2 E KA B4
income for the year — - - - — 783,267 783,267
Exchange difference arising from B E 4 7 [E 3 =5
translation - - (262,815) - - — (262,815
Repurchase of shares Bl B R 3 (538,068) - - - 527 (527)  (538,068)
Issuance of new shares upon BT B 2 A1 21T H XD
acquisttions of subsidiaries 1,268,923 - — — — — 1,268,923
Dividends paid ERRE - = - - — (953816 (953816)
At March 31, 2017 R=ZE—+tF=A=+—-H 7,805,136 - (468,179) 65,475 1,634 1,307,053 8,711,119
Note: The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference M ARRZERBBEARAERLRRAR

BHR—NWNAREFLTAMETEES
HEmEEIHBARZEBEEFE
RARBEREBZREMET 2R
AZHEEZERE-




Financial Summary

MBRE

2017
—EB—tF

HK$’000
FTHER

Results E4
Revenue g A 31,993,323

Profit for the year attributable 7~ A 14 B A FE1G
to owners of the Company £ /& % Fll 4,147,732

2017

S
HK$’000
FHT

Assets and liabilities EENKAE
Total assets BEE 59,986,820
Total liabilities wafE (36,059,212)

23,927,608

Equity attributable to owners 57 /& 74X A & % A A

of the Company 2T 20,550,233
Non-controlling interests FEPERR = 3,377,375

23,927,608

For the year ended 31 March
BE=H=+-—-HL
2016 2015 2014
ZE-RF ZE—RF ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FET

29,496,869 31,666,111 26,007,997

2,273,121 3,371,058 2,575,506

HK$'000
TEIT

17,955,672

1,764,264

As at 31 March
R=RA=+—8H
2016 2015 2014
—E-RE ZE-hHF —_T-WNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

53,632,801 50,624,436 45,264,629

(32,568,771) (29,188,936) (27,107,617)

20,964,120 21,435,500 18,157,012

17,852,662 18,396,317 15,783,489
3,111,658 3,039,183 2,373,523

20,964,120 21,435,600 18,157,012

2013
—F—=%F
HK$’000
FH&T

32,495,039

(19,752,254)

12,742,785

11,484,640
1,258,145

12,742,785

2016/17 8164 4&
R R IERERA T
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23

I

o}
Location Type Group’s interest (%) Lease term
b B 5l KEE 2R (%) i

Leasehold land and buildings
HELHRETF

In Hong Kong:
BRI

16/F., AXA Centre Office premises 100 Long lease
No. 151 Gloucester Road b NELY I ES REAAEA
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

B

B

ELATEI515%

LR 1612

In the People’s Republic of China:
R EARAME :

2R I T & AT K 3 5002 55 Commercial 100 Medium term lease
A EISBEGIE - 812 1012101 E « B AR EATA 4T
1342 « 151 K 184%

Bt A BISABEAEA4305F Commercial 100 Medium term lease
[EES HREAFE A
ItEmERMEREES Office premises 100 Medium term lease
WAEYHE HREAFE 4Y
Investment properties
REY ¥
No. 28-30 Kai Tak Road Vacant land 100 Medium term lease
Kowloon City EETH AR EATEAY
Kowloon
Hong Kong
BE
BE
JUBEI

R 1= 38 28-30 5%

e sans @it tmEna,
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